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Apuk Q& HA5 NOTICE
Regarding the Convening of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025

To: Esteemed Sharcholders

The Chairman of the Board of [Jirectors hereby notilics esteemed shareholders of
the crucial role they play in the convening of the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders
2025 of Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transport Joint Stock Company - Vietravel.

1. Time and Venue of the Meeting:
»  Time: 08:00 AM. Saturday, May 17, 2025
« Venue: Fleur de Lys Hotel Quy Nhon, Address: 16 Nguven Hue Sireel, Thi Nai
Ward, Quy Nhon City, Binh Dinh Provinee
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2. Main Agenda of the Meeting:

- According to the Program of the 2025 Annual General Mecting of Sharcholders, whi
has been disclosed on the Company's websile as ol April 22, 2025.

3. Participants:

- All shareholders whose names appear in the list of shareholders of Vietravel as of April
14, 2025, and anv individuals duly authorized by shareholders/shareholder groups.

4. Meeting Attendance Procedures:

- Shareholders attending the mecting are kindly requested to bring the Invitation Letler and
a valid ID card/passport/identilication document,

- In case of authorization, the authorized person must bring a valid 11 card/passport and
the ariginal valid Power of Attorney.

3 Mecting Docnments:

- Please refer to the Company's website from April 14, 2025, at:
httpsfww vietravel comdyn/thong-lin-¢o-dong. aspx

G. Confirmation of Attendance or Aunthorization:

- To ensure proper arrangement and organization, shareholders are Kindly requested 1o
confirm their attendance or send the Power of Attorney Torm via phone, email, post, or
fax to the following contact before 5:00 PM on May 12, 2025,

* Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transport Joint Stock Company — Vietravel
» Address: 190 Pasteur Street, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City
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* Phone: ((128) 3866 8999 — Ext, 1489
* Fax: ((028) 3829 0142
* Email: vir-thongtinZvictravel.com

Notes:

= Authorization for attending the General Meeting must be written using the form
provided by Vietravel or a Torm accepted by Vietravel. It must be notarized by a
compelent notary oflice or bear the efficial scal of Vietravel (applicable for emplovee
shareholder groups at  affiliated umiis). For institutional sharcholders, the
authorization must bear the legal representative’s signature and the institution's
official seal. The authorized individual must bring the original Power of Attorney for
veritication with the shareholder list,

= The shareholders shall bear all travel, accommodation, and related cxpenses.

* In case of authorization or meeting registration changes, shareholders are requested
Lo notify the Company no later than 12:00 PM on May 12, 2025,

This notice has been disclosed on the Company's website at www vietravel.com under the
“Shareholder Information™ section and through other means as prescribed by regulations,
and has been sent to all sharcholders.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

Drate: Saturday, May 17, 2025

Venue: Fleur de Lys Hotel Quy Khon, Address:

16 Mguyen Hue Steeet, Thi Nay Ward, Quy Khon

Cily, Binh Dinh Provinee
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No Time Opening Ceremony = Formal procedures
| | 8g00—8g30 | Cuest reception and verification of shareholders eligibility
2 Bg30—8p33 | Intoduction of attending participants
3 Bgds —Hedh Momination of the following committess:
Elizibility Verification Committee and Vote Counting Committes:
Members: Le Thi Tuyvet Mai, Ho Quoc Binh, Nguyen The Hung, Nenyen Th |
Minh Thi, Le Wan Hung, Nguyen Phu Son. Hoang Thi
Sharcholders vote using voting cards.
4 Momination of: A
Spd0 — Hpds Chairing Board Members: Mr. Mguyen Quoc Ky, Mr. Tran Doan The ! %\".rl .
Dy, Mr, Vo Quang Lien Kha, Ms. Nguyven Thi Le Huong, Mr. La Quoc a5 "3
K hanh. ] ]
Meeting Sceretaries: Ms. Mai Thi Ngan, Mr, Nguyen Minh T,
Shareholders vote using voling cards. i
5 | %g45  8gS50 | Reporton verification of sharcholders® eligibility and confirmation of meeting
quorm
6 | BuS0 - valls {pening speech of the Meeting
Approval of the AGM 2025 agenda
Meeting Proceedings
T Ggls —-9p15 Approval of the Regulations for Organiring the 2025 AGM
Sharcholders vote using wimg cards.
§ | Opli—9g30 | - Presentation of 2024 Business Results and 2025 11mmmq Plan by the
Executive Board
Shareholders vole using ballots,
g .ng — G40 | - Report of the Board of Directory’ activities in 2024 and 2025 Plan with
Yision to 2030
Shareholders vote using hallots,
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Sharcholders vote using ballots.

11| BeS0-10g10

11 | 10el0—10g20

12 | 10220- 10h30

Submission for approval:
- Addjusiment of the Company's full name in Vietnamese and English

Shareholders vote using ballots.

sSubmissions for approval:
Amendments and supplements o the Company Charter

- Amendments and supplements te the Internal Corporale Governance
Repulalions
- Amendments and supplements to the Beard of Directors' Operational

Repulations
Shareholders vote using ballats.

Submission regarding Board of Directors’ personnel for the 2024-2029
[2rim

Shareholders vote using ballots,

13 | 10g30— 1100

Submissions for approsval;

- 2024 Aundited Finaneial Statements

- 20024 Profit Distribution ’lan

- 2024 Dividend Payment Plan and 2023 Proposal

- Selection of the Independent Awdit Firm for 2025

- Continuation of the Share lssuance Plan approved by the 2024 AGM but not
vl complaeled

- Remuneration and salary plans for the Board of Directors in 2024 and plans
for 2025

shareholders vote nsing ballots,

14 | 11gdd-11g10

- Rubmission for suthorization to the Board of Dircctors (o approve
transactions arising rom daily operations with related and vnrelated partics
and shareholders during 2025

Shareholders vote using ballots

14 | 1leld- 11220

- Approval of the Election Regulations for the 2025 AGM and conducting
the additional alection of members of the Beard of Dircctors for the 2024—
2029 term.

Voting guidance

15 | 118201130

Prescntations, discussions, feedback, and answers to sharcholders' quenes

Break, Vote Counting, and Closing

16 | 1130 11g45

- Announcement of ballot counting and election results
- Intradection of new members of the Board of Directors

17 11g45- 1155

I 11g33— 12200

Approval of the Minutes of the 2025 AGM

Sharcholders vote using voting cards

Closing ol the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
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Recipients:

1
2
3
4

AGMN Participants

Members of the Board of Threclors
Public DMaclosure (fficer

Filing: Buanl of Threctars (Miice

On behalf of the Board of Directors ¥

Chairman
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REGULATIONS ON ORGANIZATION
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VIETNAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT
STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL

- Parsuant o the Law on Enterprives No. 5920200001 1 passed by the National Asvembly
af the Socialist Republic af Vietham on June 17, 2020

- Purswant to the current Charter of Fierrave!;

- Pursuant to the Internal Corporate Governanee Regulations of Vietrave!,

CHAPTER 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Scope and Subjects of Application

L. These Repulutions spply to the orpanization and operation of the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Sharcholders (“AGM™ of Vietravel,

2, They specify the rights and obligations of shareholders, autherized representatives, and other
participants; as well as the conditions and procedures lor convening the AGM and passng
resolutions,

2. All participants must comply with these Regulations.
Article 2. Objectives

l. Ensure ransparency and publicily,

2. Facilitale a successful and legally compliant Meeting,

Article 3, Effectiveness

These Regulations ake cffcet from the dale of signing unless annulled or replaced by
resolution of the AGM or & competent authority.,
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CHAPTERII

CONIMTIONS FOR PARTICIPATION, RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF

SHAREHOLDERS AND PARTICIPANTS

Article 4. Conditions for Attending the Meeting

Shareholders whose names are on the list as of the record date have the right to attend the
Al directly or authorize one or more individuals or orgamizations in wriling fo attend the
Mecting as per this Regulation, the Company Charter, and applicable laws.

Article 5. Shareholder Rights at the Meeting

L.

[
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Sharcholders are entitled 1o discuss and vote on all maiters within the competence of
the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) in accordance with the Company Charter,
the Law on Enterprises Mo, 39202000H 14, and other relevant legal documents.
Shareholders or their zuthorized representatives (for instifutionsl sharcholders) may
attend the Mecting in the following forms:

2.1. Attend the AGM 1 person;

2 2. Authorize one or more individuals or organizations o atlend the AGM on their
behalf.

Authorization must be made in writing using (he Company®s lemplate or another form
approved by the Compuany, netarized or sealed (for stall sharcholders under subsidiary
units). For instifutional shareholders, the authorization must be signed by the legal
reprisentalive and sealed, The authorized individual or organization must present the
authorization letier lor verilication,

Be publicly informed of the agenda and content of the Meeting.

Upon registration with the Shareholder Eligihility Venification Committee, each
sharcholder or authorized representative shall receive a Voling Card containing their
registration number, full name, and number of voting shares.

The voting power of cach Veting Card cormresponds (o the sharcholder's or proxy's
ownership ratio amoeng lotal volng shares present gl the Meeting,

Sharcholders or proxies arnving afler the Meelung begins may sull register, participate,
and vole, However, the Chair is not obliged 1o pause the Meeting to accommuodate late
arrivals, Voles passed prior w their arrival remain elfective, The Vore Counting
Committes will add their voting shares to the total when caleulating subsequent voting
resulls,

Exercise other rights in accordance with the Company Charter, the Law on Enterprises,
and other relevant legal documents.

Shareholders must comply with this Regulation, the Chair's mstructions, and respect
the decisions of the Mecting.

Article 6. Obligations of Shareholders

Sharcholders or authorized representatives musl bring the following documents:
L1, Invitahion letier (1F any);
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1.2, ID Card/Cilizen IDPassporl or valid personal wdentification; Business
Eesstration Cerlificate or equivalent legal document (lor insiiotions);

1.3, Authoreation documents (1f zpplicable):;

a. Appointment ol 4 proxy lor mstilutional sharcholders:

b, Civil law-hased authorization stating clearly the shareholder™s name, proxy’s
name, autharized number of shares, scope and term of authorization, and sighamres
of both partics.

Sharcholders may only vole upon successtul regisiration and cligibility venfication.
If 4 sharcholder revokes & proxy without inlorming the Company i wriling belore
the Meetling starts (or reconvenes), the proxy may still vote, and the shareholder will
not be 1ssued & Volmg Card.

During the Meeling, shareholders and proxies must comply with the rules, follow the
Chair’s direction, behave respectfully, and maintain order,

Vialations of these Regulations may result in disciplinary measures per Clause 7,
Article 146 of the Enterprise Law.

I a sharehalder or proxy must leave the Meeting before voting, they must notify the
Vote Counting Committee of their votes in writing.

Article 7. Rights and Responsibilities of the Presidiom

L.

Lid

The Presidium consists of a Chairperson and several members clected by the Mecting,
responsible for presiding over the Meeling,

The Chairperson ol the Meeting shall be the Chainman of the Board of Dircelors. The
Charperson has the authority o make Gnal decisions regarding the order, procedures,
0T any ansing ssues nol mcluded 1 the agenda.

Meeting, ensuring that it reflects the collective will of the majority ol sharcholders
presernt.
lhe Chairperson may postpone the Meeting or change the venue despite the required
number of shareholders being present in the following cases:
a. The venue docs not accommodate all attendecs comfortably;
b. Communication facililies al the venue are inadequalte for discussion and voting;
¢, There are disruplhions or acls that could hinder the Far and lawiul conduct of the
Mesting.
d. The postponement must not excead 03 working davs [rom the scheduled siart
date.

Article 8. Rights and Responsibilities of the Sharcholder Eligibility Yerification
Committee

L;

The Commiller consists of 07 members appoinled by the Board of Direclors and
miroduced o the Meehng, with dulies as follows:

d. WVenly shareholder ehabalily based on submitled documenlts: ID card Cilizen
1D Passport or valid identilication: Business Registration Cerlilicale or egquivalent

3
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Imvitation lelter; Power of Atlomey (il applicable); and other supporting documents.
b, Distribule Yoling Cards/Ballois and Meeting materials to shareholders.

¢, Repart the verification results to the Meeting,

The Committes may establish a support team to fulfill its responsibilitics.

If an attendee fails to meet eligibility requirements, the Committee has the nght 1o
deny participation and refusc to issue & Volung Card,

Article 9. Rights and Responsibilities of the Vote Counting Committee

L

L]

3.

The Chairperson nominates the Yote Counting Committee, which is elected by the
Meeting. Members musi meetr the conditions as per the Company's miemal
sovernance regulations.
The Commities’s duties cluade:
8. Guide shareholders/authorized representatives n using Voling Cards and
Ballots;
b, Collect Voting Cards after the Meeting concludes:
c. ¢. Amnpunce and explain voling provedures [or the election of the Board of
Dircctors/Supervisory Bourd,;
d. Conduct vote counting and prepare vole counling minutes;
e. Report voling resulls and election oulcomes 1o the Meeting, as regulated by the
Enterprise Law and the Company Charter,
The Committee may form a support leam (o carty out its tasks.

Article 10, Rights and Responsibilities of the Secretariat

b

]

The Seerelarial includes one [Head and one Member nominated by the Charperson and
approved by the Meeting,

The Secretariat suppores the Chairperson by recording the Megting minules, accurately
reflecting the discussion and resolutions adopted. [L may also present the Meeting
Winutes and Resolutions before the Moeeting,

The Secretariat has the right to form a supporiing feam fo assist in documenting
Meeting proceedings, sharcholder questions, and responses.

CIHAPTER III
MLEETING PROCEDURES

Article 11, Conditions and Procedures for Convening the Meeling

]

Each sharchelder attending the AGM must present their Clitizen [DAD Card Passport,
for institutional shareholders, a copy of the Business Registration Certibicale 15 also
required, slong with a Power of Attarney if attending as a proxy, lor verilication by
the Shareholder Eligibility Committee.

The Meeting shall be convened when sharcholders sttending represent maore than 50%
of the wotal voling shares. After verifving cligibility, the Committee shall report the
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mumber of attending sharcholders, total voling shares represented, and the attendance
raticy, confirming the quorum for proceeding.

3. The Meeting will sequentially discuss and approve agenda ilems, Voling on each item
ghall follow the voting procedures and be decided in accordance with the regulations
of the AGM,

Article 12, Code of Conduct al the Mecting

Participants are regquared Lo

5. Diress appropriately and formally.

b,  Follow the arrangements of the Organizing Committes and directions from the Presidium.

e. Refrin from smoking {except in designated areas), silence mobile phones, avoid private
conversations, and refrain from using phones during the Meeting,

Article 13, Azenda and Meeting Contenl

1. The agenda and content must be approved by the AGM at the opening session. The
program must clearly specify the timeline for cach 1em,

2, Any changes to the agenda from what was previously published (e.g., on the company
website) must be approved by the AGM.

Article 14, Discussion and Q& A atl the AGM

1. Nepending on the number of sharcholders and available ime, the Chair may select
the most suituble discussion format. Sharcholders or their proxics may express
opinions or ask questions by raising their hand (with the Chair’s approval) or by
submilling written questions o the Presidium. Only one person may speak at a time;
in the case of multiple requests, the Chair will invite speakers in order.

2. Comments must be concise, focused, and relevant 1o the agenda. Sharcholders may
not raise personal or unlawfil issues, or malters beyvond the authority of the
company. The Chair may remind participants to stay on-topic to maintam efficiency
and discussion quality.

1. For questions raised, the Presidium may respond immediately or note them dewn for
written replies from the Board ol Directors within 3 working days of the Meeting™s
conelusion.

Article 15, Voting Methods at the AGI

1. Voting Principles:
a. All matters on the agenda must be publicly discussed and voled upon by raising the
Voting Card, simultaneously with marking an "X in the appropriate box on the
Ballot.




b, The Company will print and distnbute Voting Cards and Bazllots to sharcholders
during eligibility verification procedures.

¢, Votng Cards and Ballots may contain encrypted data for computerized vole
connting,

d. Each sharehalder receives one sel ol Voling Card and Ballol, Both documents show
the shareholder cade, full name, number of voting shares owned, shares held by
proxy, and the total represented votes.
¢. Sharcholders vote dircetly by rzising the Voting Card and marking an “X™ in the
box indicaling Agree, Disagree, or No opinion for each matter on the Ballot issued
and signed.
I, Sharcholders amiving afler a vete has concluded may still register and vole on
subsequent matlers, bul cunnol vole on decisions already made. Provious voting
results remain effective,

2. Yoling Methods:

a. Yoling by Raising the Voling Card:

Shareholders raise the Voting Card to express their opinion, The Presicium will ask
sequentially: Agree - Disagree — No opinion.

The front of the Voting Card (showing full info) should he raised toward the
I'residium.

If a shareholder does not rzise their card for a matter, it will be deemed as having no
opInIon.

It the card 15 rased more than once, the final rase 15 counted.

A decision is approved il the majorily voles Agree.

b. Voting by Filling the Ballot:

Even aller approval by card, shareholders muost mark ther vole on the Ballor and sipn
it for archiving. Fach item will have three boxes:
v Apree
» Disagree
» Mo apinion
Mark an “X" in the chosen box, sign and write full name, then return to the Vote
Counting Committee. If a mistake is made, cross out the incorrect mark, sign again
next to the corrected cholee (no crasures or overwriling).
If the sharcholder leaves a section blank or selects mulliple boxes Tor one 1ssue, that
seclion is invalid,
A ballot is valid if:
* It i5 issued by the Company
+ It i5 signed and has the shareholder's full name
« [t i3 intact, not erased, altered, or torn
Each decision has only one box marked

h



Valid ballots with some invalid items will still count valid items toward voling
results.

Invalid Ballots include:

» Non-standard forms not issued by the Company

» Missing sipnatures or [ull names

« Torn, erased, altered ballots

+ All marked items are invalid

* Ballots not submitted per instructions from the Vote Counting Commitize

3 Voting Resulis:

The Vote Counting Committee will determine the result based on ballots received.
WVoting outcomes must be publicly announced at the AGM after vote counting is
compleled.

Article 16. Election Methods at the AGH

The election ol members 10 the Board of Divectors and the Supervisory Board shall be
conducted in accordance with the Election Repulations.

Article 17, Adoplion of AGNM Resolutions

s
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A resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders {GMS) shall be passed at the
Mesting if the following conditions are met:

a. The resalution is approved by shareholders representing more than 50%; of the
total votmg shares of zll shareholders attending the Meenng, except as provided m
Clause 1.b, Clausc 2, Clause 3 of this Article. and Clausc |, Article 17 of the
Company Charter.

b, Resolutions relaled e changes in busimess hines or industry seclors; Cypes and 1otal
number of shares of each class; organizational structure; reorganization or dissolution
of the Company, investment projects or asset sales with a value equal to or greater
than 50% of the total asset value recorded in the latest financial statement must he
approved by shareholders representing at least 63% of the total voting shares of all
shareholders attending the Meeting.

c. For resolations adopted by written consultation, they shall be deemed passed if
approved by sharcholders holding mere than 50% of tolal voting shares,

The clection of members to the Board of Dircctors shall comply with Clause 3,
Article 148 of the Law on Enterprises.

Resolutions passed by unanimous consent {100%) of the voling shares are legally
valid and cffective even il the formal procedures were not fully followed.

The resolution must be notilied wo shareholders entitled to attend the Meeting within
15 davs Irom the date of adoption. Motification may be replaced by publication on
the Company’s official website.



Article 18. Minutes and Resolutions of the AGM

L.

The approval of the Mecting Minules and Resolutions is based on the voting results
for cach item and/or election results as provided in the Election Regulations and the
Caompany Chareer.

The proceedings of the AGM must be recorded in Minules and/or other law/lul
formats. The Minutes must be in Victmamese and contain all legally required
contents. They shall be posted on the Company’s website and finalized before the
end of the Meeting. The Minutes, Resolutions, list of attending shareholders, and
related documents must be archived al (he Company.

The Presidium and the Scerctaniat are juintly responsible for the accuracy and
integrity of the Meeling Minules,

CIHAPTER 1V
OTHER PROVISIONS

Article 19. Cases in Which the AGM Cannot Be Held

L.

[

I the lirst AGK cannot be held duc to not mecling quorarm conditions under Article
10 ol this Regulation, & second AGM must be held within 30 days from the
ariginally scheduled date. The sccond AGM may proceed if shareholders attending
represent at least 33% of total voling shares.

If the second AGM still cannol be held due to insufficient quorum as stated above, a
third AGM must be convened within 20 davs from the second scheduled date. In this
case, the third AGM may proceed repardiess of the number of voling shares
represented and shall be deemed valid and authorized to decide on all matters
proposed at the first ACGM.

CHAPTER Y
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 20. General Provisions

1.

[ |

This Regulation includes 5 Chapters and 20 Articles and was adopled on .. day ...
mianth ... vear 2025,

The Chairperson is responsible for condueting the AGM in aceordance with this
Regulation.

Shareholders amd all participants are responsible for complying with the provisions
of this Regulation,
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:ﬂ*‘;{ ;MFE:CL”%vl ETRAVEL BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REPORT 2024
Ao agt, 205 AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2025-2035
1. Tourism Industry Overview and Key Trends
= Global Recovery: Tourism continues its strong recovery worldwide. According
1o LUNWTO, inlernational tourist arrivals reached 1.3 billion in 2023, achicving
88% ol pre-pandemic 2019 levels. Tourism revenue was estimated at 1.1 trillion
USD, a 12.1% increase vear-on-year, surpassing the 2019 rccord by 7.5%.
Tourism has reaffirmed ifs stralegic role in the global economy, and many
countries have prioritized tourism as a key driver of economic recovery.
= Vietmam's Growlh: Vietnam welecomed over 17.5 million international visitors
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international awards in 2024 (e.p., “Asin’s Leading Destination™ by World Travel
Awards).
« Changing Market Structure:
o Northeast Asia (notably Korea) accounted for 26% of international
visilors,
o Ching and Taiwan represented 21%, while Southeast Asia (Thailand,
simgapore, Malaysia) and India posted strong growth.
o European and American markels continued recovering but at a slower
pace than Asia,
Damestic Tourism Trends;

#
= Sustained demand with over 110 million domestic trips annually.
o Increasing preference for premium, personalized, and experience-hased
travel.
= Rising popularity of emerging destinations (e.g., Quy Nhon, Hue, Phu
Qunc).
o Growth of wellness, eco-lourism, and adventure travel,
= Business Trends:
o Strong recovery in MICE (Meetings, Incentives, Conlerences, and
Exhibitions) travel.
= Growing demand for local. sustainable, and authenlic experiences.
= Rapid rise of Tuxury wurism (Michelin restaurants, resorls, vachls, private
TOrs ),
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= Personalization driven by Big Dala and Al
= Inereasing leend loward small-group, customized, and private travel,
+  Challenges:
o Busmg cosls across the tourism industry.
o Talent shortage.
o Heighlened compelition regionally and globally.
o Changing consumer behavior requiring rapid adaptation.
= QOutlook 2024: According to the 2024 Vietnam lourism Report, Vielnam's
tourism will maintain its growth trajectory, focusing on quality, sustainability,
and customer experience.

2. YVietravel 2024 Business Perlformance

Indicator Unit 2024 Result YoY Growth

Mumber of customers Millien trips 1,91 122%

MNetl revenue Billon YD 6,735 113%

Gross prolit Ballion VIKD 606 100%%

Pre-lax profil Bilhon ¥XID 36 56%

Adfler-lax profil Ballion WD 35 46%
Highlights:

« Recovered growth across both revenue and customer volume, oulperforming
many incustry pears,

o Conlinued market leadership in travel operations,

« Sirengthened brand positoning through diversilied products and competitive
pricing.

« Expanded international network: Added five new overseas offices and one
domestic branch {An Do Office in Thailand).

«  Strengthened inbound travel with strategic global parinerships amd destinalion
marketing,

3. Business Orientation 2025
A Key Markel Trends
« Domestic Tourism: Continued strength in domestic travel demand, with new
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products focusing on experience, family, and wellness tourism.
« International Inbound Tourism:
Cirowth from Northeast Asio (China, Korea, laiwan).
= Emerging markels: India, Middic East.
¢ Slrong compelilion wilh Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore.
«  Outbound Tourism:
o ateady recovery.
= Rising demand tor premivm services (VIP tours, conciergze travel).
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a Crowth in FIT (Free Independent Traveler) segment. especially among
Gen £ and Millenmals,
o Rising demand for experiential and personalized travel products.

3.2 Tourism Trends 2025

« Microcations, eco-tourism, wellness tourism gaining ground,

« Growth in luxury travel and personalization,

« Digital transformation across booking, payment, and customer service,

= BExpansion of outbound tourism post-pandemic.

= Sustanability and envirenmenta] awareness as key purchasing drivers.
4. 2025 Action 'lans and Key Solutions
4.1 Business Ohjectives 2025

»  LExpand business scale and market share.

= Consolidate two key business pillars: Travel and Financial Services.

» Grow outbound and inbound FIT markets by 12-13%.

« Achieve total revenue growth of at least 10%.
4.2 Key Solutions

= Oiptimize business models.

» Sirengthen branch operations efficiency.

« Restructure products and services for higher competitiveness.
Develop digital platforms (OTA, CRM, ERP, Al personalization).
= Expand marketing, especially through digilal and social media channels.
slrengthen parinerships with airlines, hotels, and global tour aperators,
« Enhance customer service excellence and lovalty programs,

5. Vietravel Strategy 2025-2035
Vision:
= Build Vietravel into a "Green - Smart - Connected” tourism business,
» Translorm inlo a leading tourism enterprise with strong regional influence,
Strategic Pillars:
« Green:
Drive sustainable louvrism, reduce carbon emissions, and develop eco-friendly
produets,
«  Smart:
[.ead in digitalization and innovation; apply Al big data, and smart management
svatems.
»  Connecled,
Expand parinerships globally: integrate tourism services to create an ecosystem
connecting travel, lifestyle, and technology,



Key Milestones:

« 2025
Complele business model transformation, achieve rapid revenue growth, and
elevate brand positioming,

«  2030:
Reach $1 billion TSI in annual revenue; become one of Vietnam's larzest
LoUTISIm EToups,

« 2035:
RBecome a leading tourism brand in Asia; achieve USD | billion in market
capitalization,

Tran Doan The Duy
CEQ - Vietrave]l Corporation’ -
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: REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Presented at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietravel

. OVERVIEW OF THE SOCIO-ECONOMIC CONTEXT AND TOURISM
INDUSTRY IN 2024

- The year 2024 wimessed a strong global recovery in the tourism industry following the
COVID-19 pandemic. I Vietnam, the Government continued to implement supportive
policies to stimulate woerism, such as visa excmptions, expansion of internaticnal flight
routes, and support for travel businesses. These favorable conditions enabled Vietravel
to enhanes its domestic and intornational business operations.

Additionally, frends such as Free & Easy travel, Bleisure (business + leisure), and
sustainable tourism continued o rise, requiring travel businesses o adapt by
innovating products and customer service modzls,

In this context, with the concerted efforts of all staff, Vietravel achieved notable
accomplishments in 2024,

Below i3 a detailed report on the activities and respensibilities carried out by the Board of
Directors in 2024,

L PERFORMANCE OF TASKS ASSIGNED BY THE 2024 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of Vietnam Towlsm and Transporl
Marketing Joinl Stock Company — Victravel was held on May 11, 2024, Purscant to the
resolutions passed, the Board of Directors (BoD) was assigned to implement the decisions of
the Mceeting., The results are sununarized as [ollows,

1. Business Performance Resulis

« 2024 Business Plan:
= Hevenue targel: WND 6,921 billion
« 'rofit befors tax: VND 68 billion
«  Actual 2024 Performance:
» Revenue: VND 6,733 billion {achieving 97%: of the targel)
= Prizlit belore tax: VNI 56 hillion {achieving 2% of the largel)

OVEREERS DFFLES" 1A« FRARGE - GUETRALIA - GINGAFDR: - Al AHI - CAMELLTTA

WEIHAW BREASIHER: T WO — DET KIS = Te=a1 H3OVEH - 4% F-CHa = e = HiE - lg'l'.r'-'ul o= TG WoE] - JU REON - B BA TELCT - YA TRaiHa = G LAT = WikRE T
e Pt B DUOKE = CO0 THI = LG DIRER = NACH e, - PAL DDC Tl Ml

TRANEL BOCKIG OFFEES I HLG: LG O - 03 VAP - PFHURY UG

VIEHEIERS 0F VITTRRYTL: ETEAVEL ARLIMES — WORLIETHARS — Wl 101 PRabsT — THIPU - BEEVERT Ja2 - LIMWEX — AISIA EXPREGS TRARICHT SSiV Bt ERTERPHEE

SEE LR CIMTEN WETHAR - TOUR CLEDE OPERATIGH — VETHAR MEAIINII ek IEN ="z IHAE. REREEWY,




2. Amendments to the Charter and Company Regulations

+ Amendment and publication of the Company Charter: Completed and disclosed
on Mav 13, 2024

+ Revised Inlemnal Corporate Governance Regulation: Completed and disclosed on
DMay 13, 2024

| Revised Regulations on Board of Directors’ Operation: Completed and disclosed
on May 13, 2024

3. Remuneration and Salaries for the Board of Dircetors
F 2024 Plan: VNI 4,850,000,000

+ Actual disbursement: VN[ 5,138,062,885 (exceeding the plan by VND
288,062,885)

4. Implementation of the Share Issuance Plan

Accordkg to the 2024 AGM Resolution, the Company was approved (0 issue
40,121,545 sharcs under three methods:
- Offenng to exasting sharcholders
- Employee Slock Chwnership Plan (ESO)
- DBonus share ussuance from owners” quity (per Proposal 168-TTe/BOD — VP
dated May 11, 2024)
Fallowing approval:

- 'The Bol) prepared and submitled the upplication to the State Securities Commission
(S5C) for the issuance of 28,658,247 shares 1o existing sharcholders.

= Due to objective delays in dossier review and compliance requirements, the 88C an
April 14, 2025 requested the inclusion of updated (31/2025 linancial data in the prospectus,
Six updated prospectuses and (172025 financial reports have since been submitted.

- The Company will proceed with the share issuance immediately upon receiving the
S5 certilicate and reporl the results to the next AGM. Regarding the remaining {wo
issuance methods {(ESOP and bonus shares), the BoD requests shareholder approval to
procesd after the first offerng is complete and to report the results at the next AGR.

- Additionally, although the 2024 AGM approved a private convertible bond offering,
this has not yet been implemented pending completion of the share 1ssuance procedures.

5. Cancellation of 55743 Repurchased Shares and Corresponding Charter
Capital
Reduction

- In 2024, the Company cancelled 55,743 repurchased shares and reduced its charter
capital accordingly.

- These shares were repurchased from cmployees after the Securities Law 2019 took
elTect and were subject [0 mandalory cancellation under current regulations.



6. Appointment of Auditor for the 2024 Financial Statements

« The BoD appointed AFC Vietnam Auditing Company Limited - a member of PKF
International 1o andit the 2024 financial statements,
» This [irm was included in the list of approved anditors endorsed by the 2024 AGM,

I PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024

In 2024, the Board of Directors convened all regular meehings on g moenthly, guarterly, and
annual basis. as well as extracrdinary sessions, in accordance with the Company’s Charrer.
These meetings focused on planning, strategizing, and mmplementing measures W fullill the
tasks asstgned by the General Mesting of Sharsholders and o exercise the Board's rights and
responsibilities.

1. Organization of Meetings and Issuance of Documents
In 2024, the Board of Dircctors issued g tolal of 4635 documents, including:

= 35 Meeting Minutes

» 35 Resolutions

« 11 Extracts of Resolutions
= 04 Repolations

« 03 Reports

« 32 Public DMsclosures
90 Decisions

« 34 Official Lotters

w26 Announcements

o 175 (hher TDocurmeants

2. Organizational Structure and Human Resources

o In 2024, the Beard implemented organizalional restrucluring and established new
units/departments, including:
= Restructuring the Board (ffice and the Product & Service Division
¢ Establishing a joint venture in India (Viet Tndia Travel Private Limitad) with
Vietravel holding 51% of charter capital
Renaming branches to reflect provineial identification:
= Vietravel Nha Trang — Vietravel — Khanh Hoa Branch
= Vietravel Rach Gia — Vietravel — Kien Giang Branch
«  WVictravel Quy Mhon = Vielravel — Binh Dinh Branch
New branches and business locations:
o Victravel Caravan Center
=  Retail offices in Phan Rang (under WNha Trang), Tuy Hoa {under Quy
Nhon), Bac Ninh and Nam [Mnh {under Hanoi)
Dhssolution of Yietravel Iovestment and Development Co., Lid, (elTective
January 8, 2025), as a joini-slock company was established in its place.
o Heparding human resources:
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The Board issued several decizions on appointments, including:

o 43 new/doal-rolesreassigniment decisions
o 10 reappoiniments of mid-level management (Directors and Deputy Dhreclors)

3, Information Disclosure

The Company [ully complied with public dizclosure obligations in accordance with the law.
Major disclosures included:

Semi-annual and anrual Corporate Governance Reporls
Quarter]ly, semi-annual, and annual Financial Statements
Transactions involving the Company and internal parties
Establishment/dissolution of Company-alTiliated units

4. Internal Transactions
In 2024, the Board approved internal iransactions with related parties, including:

« Agreement to extend payvment terms with Vietravel Holdings for debt from the transler
ol sharas in:
o Vietravel Airlines
o CIMMEX
o The Gig Transport
{as part of the restructuring plan appraved at the 2021 AGM)
«  Trademark licensing agreement allowing Vietravel Airlines to use "Vietravel” in itg
brand name for a period of 5 vears from Janvary 24, 2025

5. Oversight of the CEO and Executive Managerment

The Board of Directors, directly or via the Audit Commitles, monitered the performance of the
CEC and executive team throughout 2024,

« Repular engagement ensured (hat the Board remained updated and provided timely
salulions aligned with domestic and global sociveconomic changes.

+ The Excoutive Board attended all Board meetings, submilizd reports, and proposed
policies to improve business elficiency,

»  Bourd representatives participated in imporian! executive meetings to stay mformed and
assist with decision-maxing,

«  While the Executive Bosrd managed implementation, the Board of Directors played a
vital role in strategic planning, consullation, and supervision to cnsurc that business
activilies steyed on track and achicved desired ouleames,

6. Investment in Yietravel Airlines
«  Delore the 2021 AGM, Vietruvel Airlines was 2 wholly owned subsidiary of Vietravel.

Following sharehaolder approval at the 2021 AGM, Vietravel’s capital contribution was
transferred (o Vietravel Heldings (83.79% ownership).
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» Duc to the aviation scctor’s vulnerability post-COVID-19 and its high capital needs,
3% ol Vietravel Adrlines” shares were fransferrad 1o T&ET Group allihales 1o attract
sirategic investment. After the transaction, Victravel Holdings and Victravel retained
23% ownership.

« A parl ol 15 group restructurning, the Boand has prioriteed [ocusing resources on core
businesses such as tourtsm and travel services. Divestment frem Vietravel Airlines
reduces financial strain and enables capital reallocation toward more profitable
winlures,

« Moving forward, the Board will continue reviewing and oprimizing the Company’s
investment portfolio and strengthening partnerships with capable strategic investors
rmaximize shareholder value and ensure sustamable prowth.

IV. ORIENTATION FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS® ACTIVITIES IN 2025

1. Business Plan and Strategy
1.1 Business Plan

Amidst market shifts and technological advancements, Vietravel has sct its 20235 business plan
undar the spiric of "Acceleration — Breakthrough — Efficiency™:

» General Objective: Scale mrowth and opcrational cificicncy.
Specific poals include expanding domestic market share, significantly increasing
inbound revenue, and strengthening online sales channels, The Company also aims 1o
continue controlling costs, reinforcing financial stability, and achicving sustainablc
profit growth.

Key targets for 2025!

o  Total number of fravelers served; LISATO0 (up 31% we, 2024), meluding ~Q50,000
domestic & outhound and 233,000 inbound.

=« Revenpe: VND 9.54% billion (15T 400 million, nearly 40% growth vs, 200245

«  Gross profit: VNI 813 billion, wath improved margin through product oplimization
and cost control.

+  Profit before tax: YINID S0 billion.

=  Revenue structure; Cnline channe] o account for 12-15% of FIT & inbound revenue;
intcrnations] markets (inbound + overseas branches) to reach at least 10% of total
revenue (up from -5% in 2024,

1.2 Strategy
To realize these goals, the Exceutive Board has proposcd the following strategic dircetions
[o 2025:

» Expand business scale & market share: Vielravel will cenler operations on bwa
pillars: Business and Finance, priortizing revenue seale and diversified income through
new business lines, while optimizing operational and financial efficiency.

»  Strengthen financial resources;

With reduced finaneial pressure from Vietravel Adrlines (as it stabilizes and attracts
investors), capital will be redirected toward tour services, A bulk-purchase slrategy
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will secure competitive pricing (e.g. bulk hotel & fransport booking). Efforts will
focus on reducing debt and interest costs.
Enhance sales & distribution networks:

-
-

Domestic: Restructure by region, open new olfices in high-polential provinees,
especially in the North and Ceniral Victnam, to cnsurc presence wherever
CUsloImers arc.

International: [nvest in inhound and overseas ollices (e,2. China, Japan, Korea,
Burepe, USA, Middle East), These offices will serve dual functions: bring
teurists o Vietnam and sell outbound tours te local residents.

Partnerships & M&A: Explore strategic alliances or acguisilions in major
tourism marlets (e.g. EL, Dubai, Tapan, Korea), Expand agent and affiliate sales
networks, including collaborations with online fravel agencies (O'TA).

Reorganize business units for performance:

]
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Replace underperlormimg leaders; promole voung, capable talents.

REestructure business processes, focus on high-potential segments, cul (ixed
Costs.

Apply clear KPIs by unitdepartment, implemsent performance-based rankings
and correclive acbions for underachievers,

Restructure by market sepment:

|
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FIT: Eswzblish FIT Center focused on wolume {domestic) and revenue
{outbound), Principle: "One market — One system — Multi-channel access”.
GIT: Beorganize by mdustry/geography: create dedicated super sales teams hy
enterprise group and region. Apply (exible bonus struclures.

Inbound: Develop mlo Victravel's third key business pillar with a 2025 target
of at least 5% of total revenue. Focus on B2B and B2(T inbound via multilingual
websites/apps and local market reps.

Owverseas  offices; Reposition to function az outhound sellers, inbound
promoters, and local tour operators. Integrate into a global Vietravel sales
BLOS VSIS,

Online Sales (OTA) Breakthrough;
2025 marks the prvotal vear for digital transformation.

La]
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Croad: 3P of FIT revenue from onling sales by end-2025,

Lhpgrads websibe and app with full features: flight, hotel, tour, combo booking,
onling payvment.

Support multilingual & multicurrency platforms.

(fter diverse pavment methods {credit, e-wallets, QR, installment).

Launch major digital marketing campaipns targeting young uscrs and office
workers.

Integrate OTA with service pariners (via APIs) 1o expand product supply and
pricing cfficicney.

Human Resource Development & Performance Culture:

1
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Evaluate & retrain: Assess stall capabilities, traim and promote high-potential
talents; reassign or replace unsuitable personnel.

Ensure 10094 frontline staff arc trained in professional and soft skills; all
employees to receive systems training.

Talent retention: Apply clear KPI-based pav and bonus; intreduce special
rewards for high-tech, marketing, product innovation statf.

Expand partnerships: Build affiliate networks with fircelancers, KOLs, travel
blogpers, cven bank or insurance staff.
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Performance culture: Encourage innovalion, reward excellence, enforce
accountability, and foster 2 competitive, unified environment.

Startup spirit — Breaking out of the comfort zone:

2025 marks the start of a new phase. Every unit and individual must break out of their comlaor
zone, renew their mindset, and embrace innovation to seize market opportanities and elevate
WVietravel.

2. Investment and Partnership Strategy

Vietravel 15 commitied o lostering parteerships across and beyond the tounsm mdustry,
aiming to huild a sustainable circular coonomy ceosysiem, Parinerships are based on balance,
sharing, and long-term growth, creating "win win” alliances that generale walue lor
Vietnain's economy and society.

3. Capital Increase Plan and Strategic Cooperation

« Continue implementing capital raising plans via share issuance as approved by the 2024
AN

«  Seck sirategic investors (domestic & international) and submil a new capital issuance
plan to the AGM for appraval. Funds raised will support 2025 and mid-1erm plans and
attract investors to suppor Vielravel s sustainable growth.

4. Organizational Restructuring and Governance Reform

o In ling with AI advancements, the Board has issued s resolution requiring a
restructuring plan in 2023 toward a streamlined, professional, and cfficient structure
for 2025-2035, This includes:

o FIT Division
a  GIT Division
o Imternational Markets Division
= Functional departments and HQ
< Operations Thvisien
Xuyen A Ifanspurt Services Units ([ICMC and Hanoi)

. Lr:adc:rbh]p qualily is a priority — criteria will inelude work attitude and performance,

« Institational Reform; Review and revise all internal policies and regulations {e.g.
povernance, HR, finance, salary policies. ).

5. Compliance with Laws, Charter, and AGM Resolutions

The Baard of Dircetors will implement all contents of AGM 2023 Resolutions in strict
complianes with regulations and deadlines, The Company and the Board will operate in
gecardance with the Charter, Corporate Governance Regulations, and the law.

Tasks will be ¢learly delegated among BoDd members to maximize their rele in sirategic
planning and vversight of the Exceutive Beand's performance.



V. STRATEGIC ORIENTATION FOR THE 2025-2035 PERIOD

Locking bevond 2023, the Company has developed a long-term strategy for the 2025-203%
period, with clear vision and goals. This strategy guides all of Vietravel's achivities over the
next decade, atming to position the Company as a leading travel enterprise in the region and a
LIFE YALUE o sociely, with a locus on;

- Becoming a Green Enterprise, Digital Enterprise, and Connected Enterprise:
Vietravel aspires to be a green enterprise, fully digitalized and deeply integrated into
& ecosysiem,

Green Enterprise: This cntails sustainable and envirommentally friendly srowth,
pioneering green tourism initiatives (reducing emissions, conserving culture and
nalure.., ).

Key targets include: Cutting 600,000 plastic bottles (~97.2 wns C0O2), planting 1.2
rmillion trees (1 tree per guest), equivelent to sbserbing 2,400 tons CO., Total carbon
offset: 2. 4972 tong of COq, rounded to 2,500 carbon eredits

Digital Enterprise: Digital Iransformation will underpin every aspeet of operations —
from governance to customer experience {OTA). Vietravel aims to become a data-
driven, high-tech travel company leveraging big daly, artificial intellizence (AT, and
analytics to guide its strategy and operations.

- Connected FEnterprise: Vietraval will build a mult-sector scrvice ecosystem where it
acts as a hub, closcly collaborating with strategic partners (aviation, hotels, transporl,
banking, insurance, tech.. ) to provide a comprehensive, value-added service chain. This
Green — Digital — Connected model 15 Vietravel's long-term competitive advantage.

¢ Focosing on Digital Transformation as the Strategic Breakthrough : Digital
transformation is not just a project but the backbone of the 2025-2035 decade,
Technology is seen as the key growth driver and serviee innovation enabler.
¥ietravel's strategy includes:

Investing in a rebust Victravel Super App o become a leading OTA in Southeast Asia
Applving Al and big data analvlics via a cenlralized data center to personalize
products and opimize marketing

- Automating oporations via ERP and intelligent manapement svstems
Groal by 2030 Creer 7084 of revenue to come from digital channels, allowing
Vielravel lo scale withoul proportionally inereasing manpower.
Digitalization also cinables global service availability 24/7 amd seamless inlegration
with international partners.

*  Mindsel — Structure — Breakthrough: This will be the guiding principle of
Vietravel's management:

Mindset Shift: Encourape open-mindedness, continaons learming, avoeplancs ol
change, customer-cantric thinking, centralized govemancs, and digital thinking across
all s1all levels,

Structural Change: Continuous restructuring to adapt o the marker, A flexible
platform-based model will replace silos, allowing agile, cross-functional project teams
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andd emabling connection among business units and partners under Yietravel's
orchestration.

Breakthrough Results: With new thinking and structure, the geal 1s exponential
business groseth: revenue and profil, rapid market expansion, and regional brand
clevation. Vietravel sims for significanl growth every 3-5 vears.

«  Vision 2035 — Top Travel Enterprise in Asia: By 20335, Vietravel aims to become
one of Asia's leading travel enterprises in both scale and impact:

- Target revenue by 2030; Over USD 1 billion [~YND 24,000 billion at current rates)
Business model: 5trong OTA + multi-sector integrated scosystam

Strong OTA:

Vietravel aims to be a wop online travel agency in Southeast Asia and beyond, The Vietravel
app will rank among the moest downloaded and used tavel apps, becoming & super app
ulTering evervthing from bookings 2nd Al-based consulting w social travel sharing.

hMulti-sector Ecosystcms:

Beyond a traditional tour operator, Yictravel will grow inlo an integrated travel services
group, By 2035, the ccosystem will include:

= Airlines [Vietravel Airlines and others)

»  Ground transport providers

« Linked hotelresort chains

» MICE evenl organizer { Beevent)

o Travel tech company (Tripll)

»  Alrport support services

» [hher stralegic panners
These will be tightly connected and strategically coordinated 1o offer seamless travel
splutions for all customer needs {leisure, flights, hotels, conferences, study ours..).

latal Brand:

By 2030, Vietravel aima to become an internabionally recognized Vietnamese tourism brand
— a symbol of quality and innavation in Asian ravel, The Company aspires to win prestigious
plobal (ourism awards and be listed in major international tourism rankings.

In summary, from 2025 to 2035, Vieravel will undergo a stong transformation [rem &
traditional travel company to 8 modern, sustainable, and regionally sealed travel group. With a
clear strategic direction — Green — Digital — Connected — and an ambition 1o lead Asia,
Vietravel is committed to delivering sustainable value to sharcholders, employvees, customers,
and the communily, becoming a LIFE YVALUE 1o society.

This strategy, when synchroneusly implemented, will help Vielravel realize its 2033 vision and
contribute significantly to the inlernational advancement of Vietnam’s tourism indusiry.
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VL CONCLIUSION

The ahowve s the report of the Board of Directors on the implemenration of assigned functions and
responsibilities in 2024, as well as the orientation for operations in 2025 and the 2023-2033 period.

Bazad on the remarkable business results achisved in 2024, Vietravel 15 delerrmned fo implement
a breakthrough development strategy in 2023, focusing on three pillars: Geeen Economy - Green
Enterprise, Thgital Feonomy — Digital Enterprise, and Circular Economy — Deeply Connected
Enterprise. Al the same time, the Company 15 sccelerating its restructuring efforts and streamlining
its oreanizational apparatus to ensure swift and effective governance and execulion,

With the strong lesdership of the Besrd of Directors and Exceutrve Board, together with the
aolidarity and high determmination of all emploveess, Vietravel 15 committed o excecding its
business targets in 2025, These achievements will serve as a salid launchpad, propelling Vielravel
to new heiaghts, atfivming s leading pesition duing the 20252035 strategic perod, and realizing
its vision of sustamnable and radiane development by 203 5.

P
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF”
DIRECTORS
Annual Creneral Meeting of CHAIRMAN

Sharcholders 2024

- Board of Directors Memhbers

- Tobe filed at the Company’s Board
of Dircctors Office
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The Audit Committee {AC) hereby reports to the General Meeling of Sharcholders on the
results of oversight of the Board of Dircetors (Bol?), the Lxeculive Board, and the Tnternal Audit

function under the Audil Committee in 2024,

. Strmetnre,

Activities of the Independent Board Member in the Andit Commirtee.

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders - Vietnam Travel and
Marketing Transport Joinl Steck Company - Vietravel

Pursuant io the Law an Enterprives No, JW 202000114 dated June 7. 2020, of the Notiongl .,;%
Azzembly of the Sociulis! Reoublic of Vietnam; .II,N* I'.G”'"
Pursweand to the Charter af Organization and Cperation of Vietmam Travel and Mariketin %
Transport Joint Stock Caompany — Vigiravel;

Frirsuant to the functions, duties, and authority of the Independest Member of the Board of
Lreciors and the Audit Commitice 's plan;

Pursuant to the Operationg! Regulation No. 374-08/HDOT-VE dated February 17, 2022,
of the Audit Commitiee;

Pursuant to the muclited financial statements jor the year ended December 31, 2024, by AFC
Anditing Co.. Lid

PART I

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE IN 2024,

The Audit Commillee comprises two members, and the Internal Audit Department under

the Audil Committee includes two members,

OWESSEAE CFHOES 1A - FHAMES - RUSTHE I8 - SNGERHZE - THALLGYD - CRMEDONY

YIETHRST RIAHLHLES IR, FAD = M M = T NGIEN — Bl #RIFEG - VWRE - HOE - G HAAG - DUSNE AGAL . GUY KHIR — HLER RN THHEIT = A0 TRAME — [ LAT - SLRE T
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] e |
No, MNamge Position No.of | Attendance

Meetings Rate
1 Mr. L& Qubc Independent Bold  Member | 04 [ (00024
Khdinh Chairman of AC
. Mr, L& Kién | lndependent Bol) Member — Vice | (14 [O0.00%
Thimh | Chairman of AC |
3 Internal Audit 2 Members | 14 1OH0AH0
Team under AC ,
2. Activities of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee operates independently under 1ls regulalion approved by the Bold, E
. L)
consistent with the Company Charter and applicable laws. ed
LiCk
Repular meetings were held o diseuss and implement assigned work plans., -."-Ialj
1

Supervised the Bol) and Exceutive Board regarding their compliance with the law, the -If!'!_E"

Compuny Charter, and internal regulations. ==
Evaluated the review results of semi-unnwal and annual financial reports,

Owversaw and directed the Internal Audit Team™s activities, assessed the inlernal control
svslem and risk management practices under the Executive Hoard, based on internal audit
findings.

RESULTS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE'S ACTIVITIES

. Ewaluation of BoD Activities

The BaD convened the Annual General Mesting (AGM) on May 11, 2024, in accordance
with legal and charter procedures.

Reported to the AGM on 2023 activitics, presented the 2024 plan, and held elections for the
new Bold lerm (2024=-2029%, Meeting minutes and resolutions were ratified and disclosed
as required.

The Boel) held regular meetings, issucd Resolutions and Decisions in line with the 2024
Al s divectives,

13013 members provided input and made sound, ransparent decisions; the Independent Rol2
Member in charge of the Audit Committee maintained independent opinions before

decisions were finalized.

Trang 2



Issued appropriale decisions on business strategies, human resources, restruclunng, finance,
investments, digital transformation—aligned with the company's development status,
aiming Lor elliciency,

All deelsions complied with governance requirements and were 1ssoed within the authorized
sEope,

The BeD fullilled nearly all dircetives ol the 2024 AGM, however, lwo llems—capital
increase via share issuance and private placement of convertible bonds—were initiated but
not caompleted in 2024,

Information disclosure followed regulations applicable to public companies.

The BoDd acted responsibly, lullilling assigned roles under the Bold Begulation, Company
Charter, and Enterprise Law.

Evaluation of Executive Board Activifies

Under BeD direction. the Executive Board proacuvely unplemented plans and guided
business units effectively,

Dhae to market and economic challenges, the 2024 business results did not meet targets.
The Executive Board managed operations (business, HR. [nunce-accounting, nternal
management) under delegated authority. Business unit directors acted under delegation and
reporled as required,

Howewer, monitoring of delegated tasks was inadeguale as lhe Executive Board did notl
establish a proper Internal Control and Compliance Departiment.

Evaluoation of 2024 Financial Statements

31. Preparation and Presentation:

Consolidated financial statements were prepared with appropriate and consistent accounting
policies, complying with Vietnamese Accounting Standards (Circular No, 200/ TT-BTC
dated 22/1272014).

PBookkeeping was conducted accurately and in compliance with accounting standards,

rellecling economic activities truthlully,

3.2 224 Aundited Heswlis:

=

Revenue: VNI 6,734 hillion {97% of plan: VND 6921 hillion)
Pre-tax Profit: ¥IND 56,3 billion (83% of plan: NI 62 billion)

3.3, Independent Auditor’s Opinion:

Trang 3
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The consolidated financial statements presented lairly and accorately the Company’s
financial position as of December 31, 2024, operating results, and cash Hows [or the year,

in accordance with Vietnamese accounting regulations,

3.4, Moted Issues:

lhe Company should address market risks (interest rate, forex. pricc), credit risks

(receivables, bank deposits), and liquidity risks arising from asset-liability maturity

mismatch.

Evaluation of Internal Control and Risk Management

The Compuany has issued internal management policies and procedures in line with legal

requircments, leveraging digilal platlorms [or governance and 15 continuing digital

transformation.

However, the Executive Board has no dedicated Internal Control and Risk Management

Department.

Uherefore, Internal Audit under the Audit Commaittee cannol coordinate direelly with any

confrol unit to assess compliance and prevent operational risks across departments.

Coordination Between Audift Committee, BoD, Executive Board, and Sharcholders

The Audit Commiitce worked closely with the BoDd and Executive Board.

Maintained independence during its oversight responsibilities,

The Internal Audit Team aceessed necessary company inlormation 1o perlorm duties,

Al issues were independently and transparently discussed with the BolD.
RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSIONS

Recommendations by Independent BoD Member in the Audif Committee:

The Bol should implement risk mitigation measures as noted by the independent auditors.

The DIxecutive Board should establish an Internal Control, Compliance, and Risk

Managemenl Department le overses company-wide compliance and coordinate with the

Internal Audit Team to prevent rizsks.

Urge the Execuiive Board to review and update internal policies and procedures o align

with the company’s digital ransformation and drive productivity and elficiency.

Recommend that the General Meeting of Shareholders approve the audited financial

statements and this Audil Commiftes report evaluating the povernance and management

activities of 2024,

2. Conclusion:

Trang 4



The Audit Committee 15 conmitted to continuing strict supervision and collaboration with
all stakcholders 1o ensure efficient, transparent operations and saleguard sharcholder

interasts.

PART I
AUDIT COMMITTEE'S ACTIVITY PLAN FOR 2025

Monitor the activities of the Bol) and Executive Board, check the implementation of AGM
Resolutions and BoD imstructions. i cempliance with the Company Charler and laws.
Supervise legal and internal policy compliance in all operations.

"y

Owversee the Bol) and Executive Board’s authority in key areas such as project investment, -
[

finance, system development. HR structure, and business operations. ]
Werify the legality. accuracy, and prudence in management and financial reporting.
Assist the Bold in corporate governance and risk managcment.
Direct the Internal Audit Team to assess internal controls and risk management based on
established policics and procedures.
Enhance advisory and consulting roles to the Bol) and Executive Board to improve business
and corporate govermanes cfliciency.
Perform other duties as stipulated in the Audit Committee Regulation,
The above constilutes the Audit Comimittee's report on its performance in 2024 and the
activity plan 2025,
Wishing the General Meeling greal success!
Sincerely.

Ho Chi Minh Clity, day 22 month 04 year 2025

Independent Board of Directors Member
' the Audit Committee

lrang 4
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On the Approval af the Company Name Change of Vietnam Travel and Marketing
Fransport Joint Stock Company — Viefravel

To: THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETRAVEL

Lvder the provizions of the Law on Emerprives No. J82020/0H14 and the Law on
Securifiex No, 3472009011 4;

- Baosed on the Minutes and Resolurion of the Board af Divectors meeting regarding the
agreement on the change of the Company s name;

To align with modern branding trends, enbance international communicalion, and
mmprove usabilily across digital platforms while maintaining the recognizable identity of the
Vietravel brand, the Board of Directors respectiully submits o (he General Mesting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval the adjustment and change of the Company™
name, a3 follows;

Adjustment of the Company Name
" n : any Name:

v Full Vietmamese name: CONG TY CO PHAN DU LICH VA TIEP THI GIAOQ
THONG VAN TAI VIET NAM - VIETRAVEL

¥ English name: VIETNAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORTS
JOINT STOCK COMPANY — VIETRAVEL

¥ Abbreviated nume: VIETRAVEL

=  Proposed New Company MName:

¥ Vietnamese name: CONG TY CO PHAN DU LICH VIETRAVEL
v English name: VIETRAVEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
¥ Abbreviated name: VIETRAVEL

2. Authorization

- The Board of Dircctors is authorized to carry ool the necessary amendments 1o the
Company’s Charter and all business licenses to reflect the new company name, and to complete
the reguired notifications and‘or registrations with the competent state authorities by law.

WESSESE OFFICEE ik - HHANCE - ALETHEL N - SRGAITIE - THAN AU « CRASTIDIR
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Within the scope of this authorization, the Board of Directors is [ully empowered (o
determine and Oexibly adjust the English name of the Company as appropriate, ensuring
compliznce with legal regulations and preserving the legal nature of the enterprise,

This proposal is respectfully submitted 1o the 2025 Annual General Mecting of

Sharcholders for approval, !y
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Regarding Amendment and Supplementation of the Charter of Oreanization and
Ciperation af Vietnam Trevel and Marketing Transport Joint Stock Comparny —
Vietravel
TO: GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETRAVEL

- Under the provisions of the Law on Enterprives No, 38/2020/0H 14 and the Law
an Securities No. 5472001 9/0H14;

- Under the implementation of the current Charier of Vietnam Travel and
Marketing Transport Joint Stock Company - Vietrave!,

- Under the Minutes and Reselutions of the Board of Directors’ meeting
regarding the ageeement on amendmenis to be submitted to the 2025 Annual
Creneral Meeting of Shareholders;

- To meel the practical reguiremenls for the Company's operations and
menagement i the nproming period,

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval of the following:

1. Approval of the amendments and supplements to the Company’s Charter

Hased on the attached Explanatory Table of Amendments, the proposed changes
ie e

a. Company Name Adjustment

To simplify, enhance brand recognition, and align with the development direction,
the proposed amendment to Article 2 of the Charter is as follows:

- Full name in Vietnamese: CONG TY CO PHAN DU LICH VIETRAVEL
- English nume: VIETRAVEL JOINT STOCK COMPANY
- Abbrevialed name:; VIETRAYEL

b. Supplementation of Business Lines
« Code 6619 — Other financial service activities not elsewhere classified

Details: Consulting  on personal finance for investment, immigration, and
international infegration purposes; overview consulting on capital transfer plans,
exchange raies, and opening internalional invesimeni gocounts in complignes with
Vietnamese and foreign lows (excluding financial, accounting, and legal advice),

IVERSEAS DFFICLS Ui = THANEE - AUETRALI - BIN30F0RT - THalLAND - CHMBCTIA
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* Code 7020 - Management consullancy activities

Lietalis: nvestment consulting, personal sirategy consulting, and asset manageameant
conswiting for fnvestment and immigralion purpoyes by applicable law (excluding
Sinancinl, accounting, and legal advice).

* Code 7490 — Other prolessional, scientific and technical activities not elsewhere
classifiecd

Derails: Consulting on preparing imdividual investment and immisration dossiers
aghroad and related odminiiraiive support services [excluding activities of
independent journalists, bili paymeni informaiion, and securities consulting).

c. Other Amendments

Additional changes to the Company Charter are detailed in the attached Explanatory
Table of Amendments.

1. Authorization to the Board of Directors for Implementation

- Amend the Charler followang the resolutions of the General Meeting of
shareholders:

- Implement the name change in the Charter and all licenses/legal documents;

- Repister and notify competent authorities aboul the changes in name and
business lines.

Within the granted authority, the Board of Directors can [exibly adjust the English
name to align with the Vietnamese name. provided it complies with legal
regulations. It does not change the legal nature of the enterprise.

X Full Approval of the Amendments to the Charter

This proposal and the attached Explanatory Tahble are respectfully subrnitted for full
approval by the 2025 Annuval General Meeting of Shareholders.

Respect fully 5:.11'::J'n1Ll.L-::n:i.:_‘~;c“uIf

RL_—ITJ—Eix;E:E.;I}MNR; ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Awchive: BOD Office. CHA

NGLUYEN QUOC KY



EXPLANATORY TABLE OF AMENDMENTS ANIDSUPPLEMENTS TO THE COMPANY CHARTER

H-E:u;nn_

No. Clause Previous Content Amended Content
1 | Article 2: Name, | Full name in YVietnamese: | Full name in Victnamese:
form, CONG TY CO PHAN | CONG TY CO PHAN DU
headquariers, | DU LICH ¥A-FHETHE | LJCH
branches, GIAD—TFHOMNG VAN | English name:
representative | TAT — VIET—NAM- | VIETRAVEL JOINT
offices and term  VIETRAVEL STOCK COMPANY
of operation of  English  name: AHEF | Abbrevialed THTTLES
the Company NAM—THRAVEL - AND | VIETRAVEL
FMARKITING
1. Company  FRANSPORTS - JOINT
Mame STOCK COMPANY -
VHEFRANIL
Abbreviated NAME:
YIETRAVEL N
2 | Article 4z | Mew addition Code o619 —  Onher
Ohbjectives and linancial  support  service

| Business Lines

| activities ot

elsewhere

classilied
Detmls: Consulling on
personal  linance for |
mvestmenl,  mmigrabion,
and international
intcgration PUTPOsEs;
overview  consulting  on
| | capital  transfer  plans,

To simpiifv and enfunce
brard  recogrifion ol

VIETRAVYEL | enswre alignment wiil the

Cevempary's
STroeny

development

To expand the scope of
business activities beyond

thase currently siated in
the Charter




exchange  rales,  opening

international investment
accounts  per  Vietnamese
and international laws
(excluding legal,

accounting, and financial
advice],

Code 7020 — Managemenl
consullancy aclivities
Details: Investmendt,
strategie personal, and assel
management consulling lor
invesiment and immigration
purpases  under  current

regulations {excluding
legal, accounting, and
financial advice),
Code 749 - (Oiher

professional, scientilic. and
technical  activities not

elsewhere classilied
Detaals: Consulling  on
preparing personal

mvestmenl and immigration
dossiers abroad and related
| admmsirative suppurl




SETVICLS {excluding
activities of  independent
journalists, remillance
clearing,  and  securilics
advice).

Article 3
Meetings of the

Board ol
rectors and
Commillees —
Clause 3,1

Article 31

Mectings of the

Board ol
Bireciors and
Commitiees  of
the Board of
Drireclors

Clause 14.
Approval of
resolutions by

wiy of a wrillen
OPIIIO

- more members sign each | Or

3.1 When the Chairman of
the DLoard of Direclors
deerns 1l necessary lor Lthe
benefil ol the Company

Additonal clarification

To clarify the authority of
the Chairmon as siipulated
in Clawse 2, Article 30 of
the Charter

A resolution in the form of
a wrillen opinion 15 passed
based on the approval of the
majorily ol the members of
the Board of Direclors with
voling rights. This
resolulion has  the same
the same elfect and | eflect and value as il passed
validity as 1l passed al a | al a meeting. A resolution
meeling. A resolulion may | may  be passed by using
be passed by using | multiple copies of the same
multiple copies of the | document if one or more
same document if one or | members sign each copy.
affer _receiving,  the

written oninion form of the

Bocard of  Direciors
| members will be compiled |

A resolution in the form of |
2 Written opinion is passed |
hased on the approval ol
the majority of the

members of the Board of |
Directors  with  voling |
rights, This resolution has |

COPYY-

Supplement this content o
specify the arder,
pracedures and time limii

fop passing the Board of

Lirectars’ Resolution by
collccting wriften
QTONE.




and made into the Minuies
af the Board of Directors

nreeting with fulf
signainres of the Board of
Direclors membears,

To pass g wrilten opinion
resolufion, the Board of
Lhirectors  must vate and
respnd  io  the  opinion
comtent within 03 days of
receiving the opinion form.
For important and ureent
iszies ax decided by the
Chairman_of the Board of
Diivectors, the Board of
Directors  members  must
vole and respond within 24
flours  af  receiving  the
opinion form.




- ' & G
W= Vietravel Ly 5

RIFTLEE AU E WFLE TR ML AR RATH TTL TR L AWFLS

Head Q150es 100 Fasrenr 24, That, A, Tle Chi Minh Cicy, ¥Wietram
Tel: (84 33 3B G685 §00 - Fraw (5L 1 AE 259 142

Sales online: www.lrgval com v

Eme=ilt inlaSvistravel com

Weksito: worwevieiravel oo

No:06 - TTe
Apnid 22 JGE5 PROPOSAL

Regarding Amendment and Supplementation of the nternal Corporate
Croverionce Regudation

TO: GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETRAVEL

- Linder the provisions of the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/0H 14 and the Law
an Securities No, 54200 9/0H 14

= Lhnder the implemertation of the Charter on organizalion and operation of
Fietmam Trave! and Marketing Transpor! Joint Stock Company — Fietravel;

- Linder the Minutes and Resolution of the Board of Divectors meeting vegparding
the agreed amendmeniy lo the Internal Corporate Governance Regularions to
be prevented ot the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharehalders;

The Board of Directors respectlully submiis to the General Meeting of
Sharcholders for consideration and approval of the following matters:

[. Approval ol the amendments to the Internal Corporale Governance
Regulations of Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transport Joint Stock Company
— Vietravel,

Attached is the Explanatory Table detatiing the proposed amendmends.

2. Submission for voting and approval at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders,
Respectfully submitted! o
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
fesy ol enin
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EXPLANATORY TABLE OF AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE INTERNAL
CORPORATE GOYERNANCE REGULATIONS

No. Clause Previous Content

1 Amendment Old  Company  name:
throughout the  “Céng ty Cd phin Du lich
Eepulation Vi 'l'ilf'p thy Giae thime

Van 11 Vgt Nam-
Yietravel”

2 | Anicle 9:  Approval of Resolution in
Procedures for  written Fortm; The
Creanising the resolution of the Board of
[oard of Directors™ | Directors in writlen form
Meetings. is passed based on the

Clanse 4.2

Amended Content

Ngw 'L}mnpan v name: “Cong v
L phiin Du lich Vielravel”

Reasan

To simplify the company name,
enhanee 1ls meaning, and ensure
brand recognilion  during
company development.

affirmative wvotes of the
majority of  wvoling
members, This resolution
is valid and has the same
elfect as 1l passed ul a
meeling.

Approval  of Resolution n
written [orm: The resolution of |
the Board ol Directors in
wrillen form is passed based on
the affirmative wvoles o the
majority of voling membsrs.
This reseluticn 1s valid and has
the same ellecl as one passed al
a meelmg, It may be approved
using multiple copies of the
same document if one or more
members sign cach  copy.
Alternatively, after receipt, the
written voting ballots of the
Board members  shall  be |
consolidated and recorded in
the minues of the Board

To detail the provedure, process,
and deadling lor passing Board
resolulions by wrillen
consultation.




meeting, with full signatures of
the members. In case of written
consultation, members of the
Board must vote and respond
within 03 days from receiving
the ballot. For urgent and vital
issues, a5 determined by the
Chairman, members must vole
and respond within 24 hours
Irom recerpl ol the ballol.
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Regarding the amendmen! and supplementation of the Regulations on the operaiion of

1. Approves the amendments to the Regulations on the operation of the Board of
Directors of Vietmam Tourism and Transport Marketing Joint Stock Company -
Wielravel, Attached is the detailed explanation table of the amendments.

2, Respectiully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders for
Elp]}l‘ﬂ'n-'l-ll.}{-"

Regards!

OVEREERS DFFICES:

WIETHAM BERBENEHES

TEAVEL HODKHE DFFGES W B COME HDN - B0 VAF - FeURY BUWE.

MEMIEFRS UF MEITHAVEL

the Bogrd of Divectars

TO: CENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETRAVEL
COMPANY

'lf:ruul:uvi Tl
GIAD TH!IHE'I
i 'I'I THL
% 'IIF'F:l.'i'

Under the provisions of the law on Enterprive Law No. 39/2020/0H14 a
Securities Law No, 3420190014,

Under the implementation process of the Charter of organization and aperation o
Vietmam Transport Tourism aned Marketing Joint Stock Company - Vietravel,
Uinder the Minutes and Resalution of the Board of Directors meeting on approving
the documents of the 2023 Annucd General Meeting of Shareholders;

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Mceting of
Sharcholders for consideration and approval the following contents:
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EXPLANATORY TABLE OF AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO CERTAIN
PROVISIONS OF THE REGULATIONS ON THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS
N CLAUSE PREVIOUS CONTENT AMENDED CONTENT REASON
1 | Entire Regulation Previous company name: Hma.-'l-:f_rm[.‘mru.r name: “Cdrg f Cd phdn | The company name has
N Cé phin Du lich Du fich Vietravel h:-:n_upclmed i bn.f; mofe
gty Lo p ¥ TRy e, ;
 Tide thiGiao-thineta concise and meamnglul,
|t Pt Al e Vistravel™ and 1o ensure brﬁ%
: recognition du;rm\}
development. L 0T
_ :F_T_H.'l
2 | Article 15, Meetings of = Additional ¢larification 3.1 When the Chairman of the Board of | This clause 4 fc..
the Board of Directors | Directors deems il necessary [or the benelit | supplemented w0 clakifi
Clanse 3.1 ol the Company the authority of :ﬁe/
Chairman as previously
: mentioned in Clanse 2,
Article 15 of  the |
Regulation.
3 | Arficle 15. Meetings of | 14. Approval of resolutions 14, Approval of resolutions by way of | This addibion specihics

the Board of Ihrectors
Clanse 14

written consultation: Resolutions adopted

adopted by way of written
consultation shall be passed
based on majority approval
by the voting members ol the
Board of Directors. Such
reanlutions  shall have the

by  way of wrillen
consultation:  Resolutions | by way of wriften consultation shall he |

passed based on majority approval by the
voling members of the Board of Directors.
Such resolutions shall have the same
validity and elTect as these adopled al a
meeting, A resolution may be adopled
using  multiple  copies  of  the same

the procedure, process,

and time frame for
adopting Board
resolutions through

wrilten conaultation,




same validily and ellect as
those adopted at a meeting.
A resolution may be adopted
using multiple copies of the
same document, each signed
by one or more members.

document, cach signed by one or more |
members. Allernatively, after receipt, the
wrillen consultation forms from Board
members shall be compiled and recorded
the Minutes of the Board mecting, duly
signed by all members of the Bourd, Jr the
cave of o resodution passed by wrifien

| consultaiion, Boord membeors must vole

and_respond tn the consultation corient
within (03 days  from  receipt of the
coRsuitaiion form,

For matters of wrgency or  significant
impartarce, oy determined by the
Chrgirmren of the Board of Divectors, board
members ms! vole ond respond within 24

hours of receivine the considiation form.
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Reparding the Dismissal of o Board Member and Nomination of @ New Member
For the 2024-2029 Term

TO: THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHARENOLDERS OF VIETRAVEL

Pursuant fo;

- The Law on Enterprises No. S92020/0H 14 and the Law on Securities No, 34200 80H 14,

- The Charter or the organizarion and operation of Fielravel — Vietnam Trave! and
Marketing Transports Joim Stock Comgpran:

- The resivnaiion letter submitted by My, Lé Kién Thank, Independent Member of the Board
of Directors fior the 20124 2029 term, received by the Company on April 25, 20235;

The Board of Dircetors respectfully submits the following for consideration and ,{r-::-,/.E
approval by the General Meeting of Sharcholders: i< L|l:
1. Dismissal of M. Lé Kién Thinh from the Board of Directoes for the 2024-2029 term il

Ihe Board recommends accepling the resipnation of Mr, Lé Kién Thanh and respactfully %ﬂ
regquests the General Meeting of Sharcholders w eflicially approve the termination of his :
Fights and responsimhities as a Membet of the Board of Directors, effective immediately
updHL approval

2, Nomination ol 2 new Board Member for the 202420249 1erm
The Board proposes the sppoimment of the following candidate:

Yr. Tran Du Lich

- Date of Birth: August 19, 1952

- Place of Birthe Cér Tai Commune, Phit Cat IDistrict, Binh Binh Province

- Fdueaton:

e  Ph.) in Feonomics, Leningrad Institute of Economics and linance {1987)
e Licensed Atlomney, To Chi Mink City Bar Asseciation (1 989-21004)

- Professional Backpround: Mlease refer 1o the atlached curriculum vitae for full details.

We respectiully submil this praposal for review and approval al the 2025 Annual General
Mesating of Shareholders..
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CURRICULUM VITAE

Full name: TRAN DU LI1CH
Date of Birth: August 19, 1952, at Binh Dinh Province, Vietnam.

Current Residenee: Apartment T.2.15.02, Estella Heights, No. 88/2 Song Hanh
Strect, An Phu Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vicmam.

Current Positions:

Member of the National Financial and Monetary Policy Advisory Council to
the Government

Member of the Scientific Council of Ho Chi Minh City

Chairman of the Advisory Council for the Tmplementation of Resolution No,
98 by the National Assembly.

Career History:

o1

1998-2008; Dircetor, Ho Chi Minh City Institute of Economics

1995-2005: Concurrent Member of the Board of Directors, Vietnam Posts and
Telecommunications Group (VNPT)

19921997 Member ol the National Assembly, 9th Legislature
2007-2011; Member of the National Assembly, 12th Legislature
2011-2016: Member of the National Assembly, 13th Legislature
1989-2004: Lawyer, Ho Chi Minh City Bar Association

2006 2016: Member, Central Theoretical Council

1994 2012: Leeturer in postgraduate programs at Ho Chi Minh City Open
University and Ho Chi Minh City University of Technology

Member of the Economic Committee of the Mational Azscmbly; Yice [lead of
the Delegation of Nauonal Assembly Deputies for the 12th and 13th
Legislatures

2016-2021: Member of the Prime Minister's Economic Advisory Group.




Academic Qualifications:

Bachelor of Laws, University of Saigon, [974 (majoring in Law and
Economics)

I'h.ID. in Economics, University of Economics and Finance, Leningrad, USSE,
1987

Orraduate of the Market Economy Traimng Program, Georgetown University,
Washington D.C., 1994

Has been engaged n scientific research in the fields of economics and law
smee 19760, Over 100 academic woarks have been published, including books,
Joumals, conference proceedings, and articles i both domestie and
mtcmational publications,

Area of specialization:

Publications and Research Projects:

Economic policy and mstitutional cconomics,

Development of the Non-State Economy {Book, 1991)

Wietham's Leonomy: A Transitional Economy (Boaok, 1996)

Ecenomic Restructurmg in Ho Chi Minh City (2001)

30 Years of Socio-Econemic Development in Ho Chi Minh City (Beok, 2005)

Lead Author of the Proposal “Pilot Model of Urban Government for Ho Chi
Minh City” (2007)

Improving Vietnam’s Economic [nstitutions (National Program K3X.01.06,
20107

Public ITnvestment Restructuring

New Insights on the Relationship Between Feonomic Growth and Social
Equity (Contributed to the Central Theorencal Couneil)

Lead Fesearcher of the Project: “"Key Mechamisms and Policies to Stimulate
soclo-Economic Development i Da Nang City™

He Chi Minh City: Toward Becoming an International Financial Center,
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PROPOSAL
Regarding Approval of ihe Audited Financial Slotements for the Year 2024

TO: GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETNAM
TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY -
VIETRAVEL

Followmg Clause 2, Arnticle 15 of the Charter of Vietnam Travel and
Markeling Transport Joint Stock Company — Vietravel stipulates the authority and
responsibililics of the General Meeting ol Sharcholders regarding the annual
approval of the Company’s audited financial statements.

The Board of Dircetors of Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transport Joint
stock Company — Vietravel respectfullv submits to the General Meeting of
Sharchelders for voting and approval of the 2024 financial slatements audited by
AFC Vietnam Audit Company Limited (as attached).

Respectfilly submitted for consideration by lhe General Meeting ol
Shareholders,
Sincerely.,

Recipients:
- &hareholders;
= Archiver Office.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING

TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY -
VIETRAVEL

Auditad consolidated financial statemeants
for the Tinancial year ended 31 December 2024

e ey

A g
TR,
£ cons TN
|-' :.l.-' TNHK
| KIER ferd iy
'rl i
CTLAE
o SFCVIEY Nam
oo A
:1’.-'. o W

T




VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRARSPORTS JOINT ATOCK COMPARY
|90 Pasteur Street, Vo Thi SauWard, Districe 3, Ho Chi Minh City

VIETRAVEL

CONTENTS

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

AUDTED COMSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated balance sheet

Canzalidated .inI:nme statument

Consnlidated cash flow statemeant

Males bo the consolidated tinancial statements

Pagea

i

11 - 65

f
3
7
|
b,
g
%




VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSFORTS JOIMNT STOCK COMPARY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Roard of tanagerent of Vistnam Travel and Marketing Transports Joint Stock Company - Vietravel
has the pleasure In presenting this report and the asdited consolidated financlal statements of Vietnam
Iravel and Marketing Transports Joint Stock Company - Vietravel ("the Parent company™) and its

subsidiaries {briefly called as "the Group") for the financial year ended 31 December 2024,

1. General information

vietnam Travel and Marleeting Transparts Joint Steck Company - Yietravel is equitized Trom stake-
awned Enterprise Yietnam Travel ard Marketing Transports One Member Compary Limited -
Wietravel according tu Declslon Ho. 3566/Q0-BGTVT dated 06 Hovember 2013 issued by the

Hinister of Tramsport,

The Parent company s cperating under the Enterprise Registration Certificate Me, 0300463937 Lhe
Arst Certificate dated 27 September 2010, the 370 Amendment Certificate dated 30 December

2024 issued by the Ho Chi Minkh City Planning and Investment Deparbment,
Charler capital: WHD 253, 390, 900,000

(Twe hundred minety-two Billlon three hundred ninely milllon nine

hundred Chousand dong)
Par value nf sharas: WHD 10,000
Total number of shares: 29,239,090 shares

Skock codet VIR

Stock exchange: LFPCobt

Head office:

Address: 190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Saw Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City
Telephone:  {B4.28) 3886 5999

Fax: {B4.18) 3319 9141

Wehsite: wowned, travel, com.vn

Subsidiaries

Company's name  Address Main business Contribukion The Therake
activity ratle  Interest  of voting
ratlo rights
Indochina Heritage  350Beo, Preak Monivong Operate travel 100.00%  100,00% 100,00
Trave, Company Street, Bung Kenh Kan | activities
Liinited Ward, Cham FEa Mon
District, Phnom Penh
City, Cambodla
Sapphire [skand Ho. 53, 30004 Street, Intermational and 51.00%  51.00% R1.00%
Travel znd Tiading  Quarter 1, Duong Dong  domestic taurism
Irrsestment. Joink Town, Phu Cuoc
Stock Company Bskrice, Kien Giang
Province, Vietnam
Vigtravel fusbralia Mo, 294, Hampshine International ard T0,00%  T0.00% 0T
Py, Ltd, Skreet, sunshine, dornestic tourlsm
Yictoria 3020, Australia
An Incenthees SARL Moo 19 Damesme Street, [ntemational and 100.00%  100.00%  100.00%
Th 3 Pars - 19 e domestic tourisn,
Carnesine #5013 Paris,  tour operalor
France actlvities, =elling
airline Lickeal,
tourist transpork
Yiet Ham Travel Mo, 191, Sulte 33, International and 100.00%  100.00% 100,005
and Marketing Bolza dyvsnue, domestic tourism,
Transposts Jodnk WestrninsLer Clty, airline tichut agent
Stock Company California, .58

Vielravel

s I T o N
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AHD MARKETING TRAMSPORTS JOIMT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Mink City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MAMAGEMENT

Company's name  Address Haln business Conbribetion The The rate

activity ratla Interest of voting
ratio riphts

Viet Kam Travel Suile 0§-08, Crchard International and 100.00% 100,00 100,00%

and Marketing Maza, Mo, 130 Qrchard  damestic tourism,

Transports Private  Avenue, 238841 airline Lickel apsnt

Limited Singapore

YWietravel 90 Mrneen Thi Minh Trading tourlsm, real 100,00 100,005 100.00%

Development and khai Street, Yo Thi Sau &stabe, food services,

[reestment Cre Ward, Dstrics 3, Ho Chi  restaurant,

member Comparyy Minh Ciky, Yietnam intermediate-lovel

Lirnlead (*) bradring

Trip U Travel a0A Hauyen Thi Minh Trading Lourism 100.00% 100,008  100.00%

Sevice Limited Whai Stieel, Yo Thi Sau  servioes, cComimerce

Liability Company  Ward, District 3, Ho Chi - scrvices

dinh City, Viebazm

Viel Bees Events & 27-29 Huynh Wan Gam  Qrganization of H1.00%  51.008 S1.00%

Media Joint Slock  Street, Tay Thanh Ward, conventlons and

Company Tan Phu District, Ho Chi  trade shows

Mink City, Yietnarn
Vietravel Hue One 01 Hung Yuong Street,  Internationzl and 100,005 100003 100,00%

Mamber Limited
Coumpanty

Fhu Bal Ward, Hue Cily, domestlc tourism
Thua Thicn Hue
Prowince, Yistnam

(*) Wietravel Developmenl and Investment One Member Company Limited was dissolved on OB
January 2025,

Joint ventures, gssociates

Address The rate

of vating

Company's name fain business actlvity Contribution The

ratic interest

F AT,

Viet Ham Travel

ratla rights

15252 Petch Kazem, Interrational and 49,00%  4%.00% 45,0054
and Marketing 55/2 Alley, Lak Song  domestic tousism,
Transparts Co., subdistrlct, Bang Khae  aiiling Licket agent
Ltd. [dstrict, Bangkok
Melrapoldis, Thailand
Victrave 904 Mguyen ThisMinh  Dning business in real- A5.45% 45.45%  A0.45%
Development and hal Street, Vo Thi Sau estate, land use rights
Imeestment Jalat Ward, District 3, Ho Chl of owner, users or
Skack Company Sinh Clty, Vietram leased Land
Viet Marn Sai Gan A5 Mguyen Huu Cau Tnur operator 21,008 21.00% 21.00%
Travel Jolnt Stock  Streel, Tan Finh Ward, activities
Company [strict 1, Ho Chi Minh
City, Vielnam
Wiet India Travel A-B02, Urban Sguare,  Tour nperation; L1.00%  51.00% 31, 0%

Private Limited

Golf, Course Extension
Road, Sector 62,
Gurdacin City, Hanmna
State, Imdia

Rescrvalion servlces
and support services
relabed Lo tour
promotion and
oiganization

Ki
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VIETHAK TRAYEL AMD MARKETIMG TRANSFORTS JOIMNT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasbeur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Cily

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Management

The members of the Board of Management, the Board of Hrectors during the year and al the date

of this repart 2re;

The Board of ¥anagement

Full narme PosiLicin Dabe of Date of
appointment, resiinaticn
reappoinkiment

M, Mauen Qo Ky Chairman 100 2024

Mr, Tran Doan The Dy Mambars General Director 11/05/ 2024

Kr. vo Quang Lien Kha Member! Deputy General Director 1170552024

K&, Heuyen Thi Le Huong Member! Deputy General Dlrector 1170572024

Ms. Npuyen Hauyet Van Khanh Member 11105/ 2024 .

far. W Duc Bien fhamher 2700642020 1100 2024

fr. La Quoe khanh Independent member 11,/059/ 2024

Mr. Le Klen Thanh Indeperdent member 110002024

The Board of DMrectors

Full pame Position Dale of appaintment £

reappointment

. Tran Doan The Doy General Director o150 20

fr. Vo Quang Lien Kha Deputy Gencral Director 017012019

Ms. Muwyen Thi Le Huone Depuly General Director 0170152019

Ms. Huynh Phan Phuong Hoang  Deputy General Direclor 051052018

Mr. Hguyen Ha Trung Deputy General Director 01 401 F202E

Legal representative

The Parent company's legal representatives during the year and at the date of this report are:

Full name Fosition Date of appointment/
reappalntment
Mr, Mguyen Quoc Ky Chairmary of Lhe Board nf 11/05/2014
Management
Mr. Tran oan The Duy General Direclor 01442021

The Group's financial position and operating results

The Group's financial position as at 31 December 2024 and [ts operating result for Lhe financial

year then ended are reflectad in the accompanying conselidated financial statements,

IEEE w22l
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VIETHMAR TRAYEL AD MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - YVIETRAVEL
194 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, He Chi Minh Ciky

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

4,

Important events incurred in the year and events subsequent to the balance sheet date

According Lo Lhe Resolutlon of the Annual General Shareholders Meoting of the year 2024 Ho, 197-
HO-DHDCD dated 11 May 2024, the General meeting of shareholders approved the plan to increase
the Parent company's charter capital, the number of shares expecled Lo be lssued: 48,719, 01%
shares, detalls as follows:

lssuer: Vietram Travel and Marketing Transports Joint Stock
Company - Vietravel

Slock code: VTR

Tyne af share to boissucd: ordinary shares

Par value of shares: WHD 10,000 per share

The first shre issrance: of fering shares to existing sharehalders
Humber of shares reglstered for

offering: 28,608,247 chares

Ratio of exercise rights Ratio 1:1

Offering price: YHD 12,008 VHD per share

Flan for wusing capllal ralsed from the

alfering: Fayment barks' loans

Total expected mobilized capital WHD 343, 78,904, 000

Expected offering time; Quarter 1 - quarter 2 of year L0253

The second share issudnce.

s |ssyance of shares to increase charler capital from equity: 17,194,948 shares, ratic of 15%
¢ lssulng shares under the Employment Stock Qwnership Plan (ESOP): 2,865,824 sharcs, offering
price: VMD 10,000 per share, restricted pariod of 12 munlhs

As at this report's date, the Parent company has not completed the issuance of shares to increase
its charter capilal as menticned above,

Except Tor Lthe foregeing, there have been no significant events accurring after the Lalance sheet
date which would require adjustments or disclosures to be made in the consolidated financial
statomenls.

Auditors

AFC Vietpam Auditing Company Limited has heen appointed to perform Lhe awdit for the financial
viear ended 31 Pecember 2024 of the Group.

Statement of the Board of Directors’ responsibility in respect of the consolidated financial
stataments

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these conselidated financial
statements which gives a Lrue and fair view of the state of alfairs of the Group and of its
operations and cash flows for the year then ended, In preparing those censolidated financial
statemsants, the Board of Drectars i required ta:

s Salect suitable accounting policies and then apaly themn consisLentiy]
s Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= Ltate whether applicable accounting standards have baen followeed, subject to any material
dopartures disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements;

= Prepare the financial statements on the goind concesn baslc unless U is inappropriate Lo
presurme thak the Group will continue in business; and

+ Design, implement ard maintain the Group's internal control for prevention and detection of
fraud and errar.
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AHD MARKETIHG TRAHSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
100 Pasteur Streel, Vi Thi 5au Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MAMAGEMENT

statement of the Board of Directors’ responsibility in respect of the consolidated financial
statements [continuod}

The Board of Rirectors s responsible for ensuring thal Lhe proper accounting recurds are Kept
which discluse, Wwith reasonahle accuracy al any time, the fina ncial pesition of the Group and to
ensure that the accounting records comply with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting
regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reperting. The Board of Directors
is also responsible for controtling the assets of the Group and therefore has taken the appropriate
measures for the preventlon and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Baard of [Hrectars confirms What It has compiied with the above requirements in preparing the
consolldated financial statements.

Approwal of the consolidated financlal statements

The Board af Management appraved the accompanying consolidated financial stalements which

ghve a true fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and of the

results of its onerations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamesa

Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and Lhe statutogy requirements
] ion and presentation of the consolidated Mnanclal statements.

|

Chalrman

Hiy Chi Wink City, 28 Karch 2025

o
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INDEFEMDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: The shareholders, the Board of Management and the Board of Directors
Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transparts Joint $tock Company - Vietravel

) Cang ty THHH KiEm Toan AFC Viét Nam ‘_-r
. !! AFC Wietnam Audiling Co. Ltd. ‘1 P KF
! l_ -

We have audited the accompany!ng consclidated financial statements of Vietnam Travel and
Marketing Transports Joint Stock Company - Vietravel and its subsidiaries (“the Group"), prepared
an TR March 2025 as set aut from page 07 to page 35, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 11 December 2024, and the consolidated income stalement, consolidated cash flow
ctatement for the financial year then ended, and nites to the consolidated financlal statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidatec financial statements In
acrordance with the Yietnamese Accountimg Standards, accounting regime for erbemprises ard

1 logal repulations relating to financial reparting and for tiuch 1ntemal contral as managerment
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidatec finarclal statemenls that are
free from materal misstatement, whether dug Lo fraud or error.,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is bo express an opinion on thess consolidated financial statements based an
aur audit. We conducted our awdit In accordance wilth Vigtnamese standards on Audiling. Those
standarde require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
ablaln reasonable assurance asout whether the consolidated financial statements are froe from
material mizstatement.,

an audit involves performing procedures to chtain audit evidence about Lhe ameunts arwd
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material missLatement of the
consolldated financial statements, whether diee to Traud or error, Inomaking those rise
assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the
cnnsolidated financial statements in order to deslgn audit procedures that are appropriate in tha
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
enting’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the apprapriatenass of accounting
nolicies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
ovaluating the overall presentation of the consolidatad financial staternents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
baszis For our audit opinion.

Auditers' opinion

I our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of,
in all materlal respects, the flnancial posilion of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and its
firanclal performance and 1is cash flaws for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese

Augting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory reguirements
sparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

: . —

NGUYEN THI THUY TRANG
.0 Auditor
[pfEEPractising Reglstration Certiflcate Audit Practising Reglstraton Certificate

Mo, 007 1-2007 3-009-1 No. 41z28-2022-009-1

AFC VIETHAM AUDITING COMPARY LIMITED

Ho Chi Minh iy, 28 March 025
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VIETHAM TRAYEL AMD MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 PasLeur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, Dstrice 3, Ho Chi Mink Cily

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2024

e e 311102024 Q10172024
e VHD VND ot

ASSETS L)

CURRENT ASSETS 100 1,522,808,555,903  2,223,975,210,429 :

Cash and cash equivalents 110 5.1 116,856,560,614 00,545,359 554 Ef
Cash 111 100,052, 879,913 75,115,65%,554 ol
Cash equivalents 112 16,803, 680,701 15,430, 000,000 Ei

Short-term investments 120 15,703,119,%66 12,078,693,750 %
HeAdd ko malurity Investments 123 5.2 15,703,119, 946 12,078,493, 750 =2

Accounts recelvable 130 2,048,313,627 545 1,848, 413,248,351
Short-Lerm Wacle receivables 13 5.3 251,502,242, 966 108,697,885, 250
Chorl-Lerim advances to suppliers 132 5.4 45,053,509 864 4065,220,601,656
OLher short-term receivablos 136 5.5.1 1,068,407, 705,556 1,045,876,579,651
Provision for doubtful debts 137 5.6 {16,649, 8330,%61) (11,361,818,208)

Inventorios 140 5.7 220,973,340 64,408,989
Irvenlarles 141 A0 9T3, 340 68, 408,989

Other current assets 150 341, 714,274,438 Z7L. 868,999,785
Shorl-Lerm prepaid expenses 151 B.E.1 349,6072,060,733 271,526,520, 997
value added tax deductibles 152 5.16 15,859, 466 1,234,240,342
Taxes and other receivable from State 1531 5.6 16,364,240 108,233,446

ARSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 _ 129,654,712,243 123,726,446,471

Lang-term receivables 210 8,720,606,565 8,061,380,665
Other lone-Lerm recelvables 416 552 8,234,606, 665 d, 062,380, AESE &

Fixed assats 220 1B,973,208,678 25,450,476,610 e
Tanwitle fixed assets 721 5.9 5 916,255,058 14,056,092,615 5

Cost 222 202,136,778,752 202,903,424,845
Accumulated depreciatian 723 {190,410,523, 694) (108,647,332,226) %\
Finance leaschold assets 224 - - '|I
Intangible Mxed asseis 227 5.0 13,046,953, 620 1, 3%4,383, 91 |
Cast 278 41,735,314, 364 32,385,111,113 i
Accumulated amartisation 129 {2B,588,360,704) (30,990 727,121}
Inwestment Property FElH . .
Long-term assets in progress 240 82,309,855 537 73,033,327,030
CansLsction n progress 242 511 82,309,855,537 73,033,327,030

Long-term financlal investments 250 4,50%,540,413 4,509, 540,413
livestment In associates and JY 252 5,121 733,430,982 733,420,941
Investments in equity of olher entities 253 5.12.2 181,913, 21559411 181,913,259 411
Pravision for decline in leng-term investments 2594 5,127 (176,137, 140,000} [178,137,140,000)

QOther long-term assets 260 15,641,310,950 12,670,721,753
Long-term propaid expenses et 5.8.2 15,160, 226,550 11,%94%9,095,753
Gondwill 769 513 481,084,000 F21,626,000

TOTAL ASSETS 270 2,652,463, 278,146  2,347,701,656,900




WIETHAM TRAVEL ARD MARKETIHG TRAMEPORTS JOINT STOCH COMPANY VIETRAVEL
190 Fastecr Street, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Mink Clty

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December Z024

TOTAL RESOURCES

e 1 ——-—F._'_—
PHAN THINGOC GIAD  HO QUOC BINH
Preparer Acting Chief Accountarnt

2,347,701,656,500 W

Chairman
Ho Chi Minh Ciky, 20 March 2025

S 12024 0450102024
WHD WD
RESOURCES
LIABILITIES 300 2,162,149,529,739  1,911,584,725,389 N
Current lahilities 310 2,14B,120,611,941 1,509,331,325,369 N
Short-term trade payables 311 514 651,579 306,331 599,35%,420,014 u
Lhort-term advance from customers 32 515 328,900,639,363 291, 893,031,892 i
Tax and payable to the State ; S T &7, 759,000,691 48,168, 143,979
Payable to employess 314 77.745,851,854 36, 206,421, G64 A
Accrusd expenses payahle 315 58,450,678 1E8, 752,945 ;}
Other shorl-tem payahles 3% 5171 147,270,343, 509 726,762,262, 564
Short-torm Leans and lahilitios 37 5.1B.1 A82,415,637,9:9 704, 606,496,753
Ranus and welfare furds 322 1,041,291, 586 1,970,791,5086
Lang-term fiabilities 330 34, F2E, 917,731 2,153,400,00]
Other longd-Lerm pavables T o 1,061, 200,000 1,056,400, 004
Long-term foans and lahilities 338 5.18.2 33,147, 717,798 1,157, 000,000
RESOURCES o
CPWHERS EGUITY 400 470,113,748 407 436,116,931,511
Capital 410 5.19 A70,113, 748,407 436,116,931,511
Crernurs’ iivestad aquity 411 102,390, 500,000 292,948, 330,008
Ordinary shares with voting rfghts 411a 192.,390,900,000 297,943,330,000
Praferernce shares Hib - =
Surplus of stock capital 41 123,108,450,825 123,227 805,325 &
Treasury sLocks 415 (6,180,494, 80) (6, B60,283, 300 2
Fareign exchange differences 417 1,712,019, 604 1,421,016,865
Devalopment Investment fund 411 73,076,854, 191 33,076,688, 391 :
Retained earnings 421 34, B43, 045,000 323,399,883 “
EE".m”E.d sl b e Bk 4Ma (1,254,693,208) (80,426, T4TAST) <L
priar yoal
Relained earniras of current vear 4210 36,097,738, 108 B0,7340,147, 340
Man-conlralling interests 474 1,165,943,3%0 1,979 774,347
Other capital, funds 430 - -



VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRAMSPORTS JOINT %1 QCK COMPANY « VIETRAVEL
180 Pasteur Street, Vo Thi Saw ‘Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Ciky

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

PHAM THI HGOC GlAO
Preparer

HO QUoC BINH
Acting Chief Accounktant

HGUYEN QUOC KY
Chairman
Hi Chi Minh City, 26 March 2023

T

o P

& )

2,902 #Eg
'.

2024 2023
Lode Hote VHD VD
Gross sales of imerchandise and services 01 6.1 6,734, 798,131,924 5,948,969,341,379
Less deduction 0z . -
Het sales 10 6,734, 798,131,924 5,948,969 341,379
Cost of sales 11 &2  6,295,349,311,127 5,470,159,462,578
Gross profit/{ioss) 20 439,448,820,797 478,809,578,601
Financlal income 1 6.3 71,746,907, %4 12,731,227 ,759
Financial cxpoenses I A4 an,101,593,770 o1, 042,486,405
i which | Interest expenses 7 63,534,358, 114 39,018,407, 247
Share of profit of asseciates and joint ventures 24 51271 - .
selling expenses 25 6.5 G0, 257,260,621 19,B607,537,651
Ganeral and administration expenses b 66 297, 840,771,768 271,530,909, 952
Operating profit/(loss) i0 T6,936,102,579 19,160,172 5562
Cther income 31 6.7 33,651,024,906 13,316,709, 316
Dkher expenses iz A 4,241 382,676 1,650,125, 866
Other profit/{loss) 40 19,40%, 641,230 10,666,583 450
Profit/{loss) before Lax 50 56,345, 744,809 99 826,756,002
Current corporate income Lax expense 51 21,041,579, 9%6 19,876,707, 952
Deferred corporate ncome tax expense 52 - .
Met profit/{loss) after tax 60 35,304,164 ,613 79,949,998,050
Mel profit attributable Lo parent 61 36,057,733, 104 BO, 750,147,340
Met profit allributahle to minor ity interest 62 {793,673,395] (300,149, 2970)
Baslc earnings par share il 1,260
. Cl pHAN, N
- (00 LICH vk TER T
; i | A0 THEMG VAN TAR w
/ \ - W VIET KAM-
- __._._--—-"'""‘___
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VIETHAM THAVEL AND MARKETIHNG TRAHSPORTS JOHHT STOCK COMPANY
190 Pasteur Slrest, ¥o Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Mink City

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

- VIETRAVFI

(Direct method)
Far the financial year ended 31 December 2024

PR 2024 2023
WHND YMD
CASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash inflows from sales of gools, servlce provisions
atl elher income 01 7,141,662, 389,618 §,372,225,126,122
Cash oullMows for suppliers 02 (7,007,545, 499, 181) (6,136,544, 507,200}

Cash outflows for employess 03 (155,183,398,801) 139 610,337,720)

Interests paid 04 (63,534,358,1148) [38,5939,115,2094)
Carporate income tax paid 05 (1,041,712, 572) WER e

her cash inflows 0 1,63%,634,322 693 1,253,470,641, 704

(ther cash nutflows ov 1,679,009,804,431)  [1,448,238,570,392)

Het cash flows [rom operating activities 20 (234, SIE 060,992} {l’ﬁ? 819,782,785}

CASH FLOW FROM IMVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases and construction of flxed assets and ather LT

assets 21 (5,01 5,575,080) (1,536,084,015)

Proceed from disposal of FA and other LT assels 12 1,045,454, 045 A50, 454, 544

Payment tor loan, purchase of debt instrument 13 15,508,000, 000) (45,595, 200,000)
Proceods from oans, sale of debt instrurmnont 74 2,155,000,000 200,000

Proceeds from lvestment in other entitics il T7.06,575,343 2,000,000, 000

Interest and dividends recefvad &7 1,413,877 152 613,519,319

Net cush f{uw from investing activities 0 51,207,331,060  {44,046,700,132) =]
CASH FLOW FROM FIMANCING ACTIVITIES e
Procesds from issue of share capilal 1 + 71,712,000,000 Ay
Proceeds From borrowngs 33 508 E 38043403 148 1,32, 758,623,229 L
Repayments of borrowings 30 G.0E  (27E,674,174,195)  (1,110,443,416,410) iy
Net cash flow from financing activities 40 209,759,856,994 224,227,206,61% &1
Met cash Mow during the period 50 26,149,127,562 12,360,723,902 =
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGIMMING OF PERIOD 60 5.1 o0,545,859,6554 77,654 444,165 =
lmpact of exchange rate fluclualion 01 161,573,098 530,631,487

‘CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD

PHAN THI NGOC GIAC
Preparer

HO QUOC BINH

Acting Chief Accountant

___90,545,859,554 Y| -

Chairman
Heo Chi Winh City, 2B March 2025




VIETHMAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETIMNG TRANEMORTS JOIMT STCCK COMPANY - WVIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Strest, Vo Thi Sau Ward, Fisbrict 3, Ho Chi Mink Ciy

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the lnancial vear ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of and should be read alcog with the accompanying consalidated
lirancial stalements,

1.
1.1

1.2

1.3

GEMERAL INFORMATION

Cwenership

Vietnam Travel ard Markeling Transporls Jolnl Stock Compary - Vietravel (briefly called “the
Parent company”) is operating under the Enterprise Registration Certificate Ho. 0300465937 the
first Certificate dated 27 September 2010, the 37" Amendment Certiflcate dated 30 December
2024 Yssued by the Ho Chl sink City Flanning and Investment Department.

Charter capital: VHD 292, 390,900,000 -

iTwen hundred ninsty-twe hillinn three hondred ninety million ning
hundred thousand dong)

Par value of shares WD 10,000

Total numbar of shares:  29,23%,090 sharcs
Stock codes VTR

Ltack exchangs: LIPCiokd

Trading

The companies in e Group cperate in the trading and services fields.

Business lines

The Parent company’s business aclivities are:

- Domestic and international tourism;

- Fareign exchange agent. Foreign currency recelpt and payment senvices;

- Commercial advertising

- Trading cell phane and sim card;

= Wholesale of other household products;

- Trarslation services;

- Loading and unloading agent; delivery and receipt of gonds under the consignment of the
paners; Shipplsg agent and brokerage. Airline tickel agent. Ship agent. Activities of sea-
frelght foryarders and air-cardo agents, Crating and packing services for transport;

- Motor vehicle lease;

- Study abroad consultancy;

- Passenper transport by cars, passenger transport under conlracts by cars;

- Diving tour feater sports activitios);

- Tourist transport;

- FHotel (hotel has to meet star rating systerm and does not operate at headquartars);

- Restaurants and mobile food services,

- Qrpanlzaton of conventions and trade shows (do not execute explosion effect; do not use
exnlosive, chemistry as props for shows, events, movies);

- Activities of insurance agents;

Retail of computers, periphoral devices, software and telecommunication eguipment In
specialized stores;
Teaching foreign languages; Teaching computer science;

- Construction of residential buildings;

- Construction of non-residential buildings;

- Coilege education [not aperate at headguarters);

»  University educalion {nol operate at headnuarters);

11



VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRANSFORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - WIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the finarcial year ended 31 December 2024

W

Business lines {continuad)

Direct supporting services far watenvay ranspost;

supplylng commercial services, travel, hotel, selling duty-free goods at airport; selling
advertising on flight and on land; supplying ground-based commercial services; supplylng
passenger and cargo terminal services and othor services al airpert; Senvilces of spare part
alrplane support; other specific aviation serdoes;

Direct supporting seryices for road transport (except for rading car park, lquefaction of gas
te transpart);

Postal activitios;

Courier activities,;

Trading of owned o renked property and land use rights;

Real eslale consultancy and brokerage and avctioning, land use right auctloning {except for
legal consultancy),

Creative, arks and entertalament activities {(do not ecxecute explosion effect; do not usa
explosive, chemistry as props [or shows, events, meyviss at headquarters];

Reservalion servlce and assistant services related to Lour praometion and organization;

Data processing servicas and social network services;

E-commerce services,

Provislan of faod services based or cantractoal arrangements with the customers;

The preparation and seqving of bheverages for immediole consumption of bars, karanke,
taverns; discotheques (with heverage serving predominant); beer parlors and pubs] colfoo
shops, frult juice bars; mobile beverage vendors: SUgar cane, smoothie, swoot soup, mabile
heverage carls, clo. (except for bar activities and discolbogues);

Other food services;

Whalesale of bevarages;

Wholesale of food products (not operate at headyuarters);

Retail of foodstuff in speclallzed stores (except for executing according to Decision Mo
G4/ 2009/ QD-UBND dated 34/077200% and Decision Mo, 7972009/ QD-UBND dated 17 /1072008
of Ha Chi Minh City Poople's Committee approving agricultural and food business planning in
Ha Chi Minh Cily);

Retail of beverages in specializod slares;

{ther amusement and recreation activities [except for amusement parks and theme parks);
Activities of recreation parks, beaches, including repting of facilities such as bathhouses,
lockers, chairs, umbrella poles, etc.; Operation of recreation Cransport facilities, o.g.
marinas; Leasing of lelsure equipment as an integral part of recreational facilities; Fairs and
shows of a recreational nalure; Operation of dance floors (enterprise can only do business
since it fully meets the conditions presciibed by law and ensures maintenance of all that
conditions during the process of business operation); Operaticn of Karaoke boxes (enterprise
can only do bisiness since it fully meets Lthe conditons prescribed by law and ensures
malntenance of all that corditions durlng the process of business operation);

Provision of temporany Labor;

Pruwision and management of migrant Labor resources; Frovision and management of domestic
lahor resources;

Vocatlonal training;

Railway ticket agenl;

Commisslan agent, hrokers and suclion agent (except for real estale brolerage and asset
auctioning);

Postal services agent;

Steam bath, massage, tanning, non-invasive cosimetic procedures {stomach fattening, body
contouring, etc,] (enterprise can only do hosiness since it fully meels the conditions
prescribed by lew arl ensures maintenance of all that conditions during the process of
busiiess cperatinn);

Genetal wholesale;

Retail of bocks, newspapers, madazines and statfonery in specialized stores;

Retall of audio, video tapes and discs {including hlank tapes and discs) In specialized stores;

Pt )



VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETIMNG TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteyr Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, Mstrict 3, Ho Chi Mink City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2024

Business lines {continuad)

—

- Retail of gymnaslic ard sports equipment in specialized slores;

= Retail of games and toys in specializod sLores;

- Retail of clothing, foolbwear, leather articles and imitation leather In specialized stores;

- Retail of other new commadities in specialized stores;

- Retzil of food, foodstuffs, milk, dalry and egg products, weanlhg powder, cereal powder,
Functional foods, multivitaming [except for pharmaceuticals); swestencd sofl drinks, with ar
without carhonate; natural mineral water or other bottled purified water; low alooholic ur
non-aleeholic wine and hear. Retail of medical goods [Coteon, gauze, ambulance kits,
syrlnges, etc.), cosmetics and tollst articles; household machines and equipment: blocd
prassure manitar, hearing aids, ete. Relall of souvenirs; electrical househoid appliances;
fumilure and the like, lighting equipment; Retail of phone cards; Retall of compuoters,
peripheral devices, software and telecommunicalion equipment; audiovisual; stalicrery;
games andd Loys (o not trade games and Loys which are harmiul to the personal development
and health of children or to the security, oeder and safety of society); Retail of clocks,
watches and eyeglasses, cameras and photographic materials, pet food; Refail of
kitcherware; garden eguipment; bathroom and washromn equipment, hahy carriages, ull-
road durnping Lrucks, baby chair, feeding buitle, baby care equipment; pet equipment. Retail
of campets, rugs, wall and [loor coverings, clothing, foolwear, lupgage, handbags, leather
articles and imitation leather. Retail of sporting equipment (except for sport guns, rudimental
weapons). Retall of cosmetics and Lollet articles, porcelain, plass, clothing, foobwear,
househaold  equipment  (except for hooks, nowspapers, Magazines, tapes and  dliscs,
pharmaceuticals, gold, sitver, precious stones), Retail of cloth, wool, fiber, sewing thread anc
other textile goods, statlonery, ciothing, foobwear, leather articles and imitation leather,
garment accessorles (according te Declslon Mo, 64/2009/Q0-UBHD dated 31707 /2009 and
Declsion Mo, 79/2009/00-UBMD dated 1771072009 of Ho Chi Minh City People's Commities 5
approving agricuitural and food business planning in He Chi Minh Clty); g

- Retall of frod in speclallzed stores {according to Decision Moo &4/2009/00-UBND dated
072000 and Declsion Mo, 79/2009/00-LBMD dated STA0S2008 of Ho Chi fink City
People's Committes approving agricultural and food business planning in Ho Chi Minh City);
arvd
Dther uncategorized husiness assislant services (excepl for repossession services, parking fee
collectlon services, aclivitles of independent auctionesrs, management, and public order
activities at miarluets),

s

During the year, the main business acthdties of the companies tn the Group are doemestic and
intemational tourism, airline Licket agent.

1.4 Hormal business and production cycle

hormal business and production cycle of the companies In the Group s nol eiceeding 12 months.
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AMND MAREETING TRAHSPORTS JOIHT STOCK COMPANY - WICTRAVEL
190 Paslewr Strest, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh City

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fal the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1.5 SEructure of the Group

The following subsidiaries are consclidated in the conselidated financial statemants:

e R

Hos =4

Fare Sl

Company’s name  Address Main business Contribution The The rate
activity ratlo interest of voting
e ratle  rights
Indachina Heritape  350Be0, Preak Monivong  Operate travel 100.00%  00,00%  100.0C%
Travel Company Street, Bung Kenh Bon | acthdtics
Limited ‘Ward, Cham Ka fon
istrict, Phnotn Penh
City, Camhedia
Sapphire lsland Mo. 53, 30404 Street,  Inbernalicnal and 31.00%  31.00%  51.00%
Trayel and Trading  Cuarter 1, Duong Dong  domestic tourism
Investrent Jaint Towen, Phu Quoc
Stock Company District, Bien Giang
Prowince, Yietnam
Vietravel Australia Mo, 294, Hampshire Irtemational and 70008 T0000% 7O.0C%
Pty. Ltd. Sireet, Sunshine, domestic Tourism
Vickaria 3000, Austraiia
A Incentlves SaRL 17 Damesme Strest, Internaticoal and 100.00% 100.00%  100.00%
75012 Parls - 19 rue danrestlc tourism,
Damesme 73013 Parls,  tour operator
France actwities, selling
alrline ticket,
tourist Lransport
Wiel Ham Travel Mo, 9991, Suite 220, Inbermational and 100,00%  (00,00% 100,008
and tarketing Aolsa dvenue, domestic Lourism,
Transports Joint westminster City, airline ticket agent
Stock Company - California, U.5.A,
Vietravel
Vist Mam Travel it DE-08, Orchard Intemnational and 100005 100.00% 100,005
and Marketing Plaza, ko, 150 Orchard  demestic tourtsm,
Transports Privale  Avenue, 213BB41 airline ticket agent
Limited Singapore
viet Bees Events L 27-29 Hinmh Van Gam  Organization of 51.00%  51.00% o1.00%
Wedia Joint Stock  Street, Tay Thanh Ward, convenllons and
Campany Tan Phu District, Ho Chi Lrade shows
Minh City, Yletnam
Yletravel Hue One 01 Hung Yucng Street,  International and {00.00% 100005 100,00%

Member Limited
Company

Phu Hol 'Ward, Hue City,  domestic tourism
ua Thien Hue
Province, Vielnam

14



VIETHAM TRAVEL AHD MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPARY - WVIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, Mstrict 3, Ho Chi Mink City

MOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 3 December 2024

Seructure of the Group [continued)

The tullewing subsidiaries are not conselidated in the conselidated financial statements because the
Parent company has jusl Lransferred its investment capital or it 15 newly established, so it has not
been contribuled capital and is tempararily Inactive:

Company's namw  Address maln business Contribution The The rate

activity ratle interest of voling
ratio  rights

Yietravol Q04 Mauyen Thi Mith Trading Lourlsm, real 100.00% 100005  100.00%

Development anc Khai Sbreet, Yo Thi 5au estate, food services,

Investrment One Ward, District 3, Ho Chi restaurant,

Member Company  Minh City, Vietnam Intermediate-lavel

Limited {*) Lraining

Trip U Travel 204 Mguyven Thi Minh Trading tourism 100.00%  100,00% 100,005

Service Limited
Liability Cormpany

Khai Street, Yo Thi Sau
Ward, District 3, Ho Chi
Mink Ciky, Yietnam

SErYICos, BCOmiierce
services

i*} Vietravel Development and Investment One Member Company Limited was dissolved o OR
January 2025.

Important associates are reflected in the corsolidated financial statermenls under the equity
method include:

Company's name  Address Main business actlvity Contribution The The rate
ratio Interest  af woting
ratlo rights
Viet Nam Traved 76272 Potch Kasem, Intermational and 49 00%  40.00% 40.00%
and Marketing 5502 Alley, Lak Song  domestic tourism,
Transmorss Tk, suhdistrict, Gang Khas  airline tickek agenl
Lrd. Dislrict, Banghos
Metropolis, Thailand
Wiet Bam 5al Gon E5 Hauyen Huu Cau Tour aperabor 21.00%  2.00% 21.00%
Travel Joint Skock  Street, Tan Dinh Ward, activities
Cosnpany {**) District 1, Ho Chi Mink
City, Vietnam
Wil avel 904 Huven Tal finh Doing business fn real- 45.45%  40.40% 45.45%
Development and ®hal Street, Vo Thi Sau  estate, land use rights
Investment Joink Ward, Gistricl 3, Ho Chi of owner, users of
Stack Cormpany minh Clty, Vietnam feased Land
Viek India Travel A-R02, Urban Square,  Tour operatlon; B1.00%  51.00% 51.00%

Private Limited

Gell, Course Extensian
Read, Sector &d,
Gurgaon City, Haryana
State, India

Resesvation servines
and support serices
related to Cour
promotion and

oo ganization

{**] The Group holds 21,008 of voting rights in Wiet Ham 5af Gon Travel Jeint Stack Company througlh

Sapphire Island Traved and Trading Investment Joint Stock Compariy,
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VIETHAR TRAVEL AMD MARKETIMNG TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY YIETRAYEL
190 Pasteur Strest, Vo Thi Sau Ward, Districe 3, Ho Chi Minh Clty

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Dependent units
Unit

Address

Yielnam Travel and Marketing Transports Jalnt
Stock Company - Victravel - Blnh Duang Branch

vietnam Travel and Marketing Transports Joint
Stock Comparyy  Wietravel - La Xanh Travel
Services Center

Yietnam Travel and Marketing Transporls Joint
stock Cornpany - Vietravel - Dung Mal Branch

Vietmam Travel and Marketing Transports Joint
Stuck Company - Vietravel - Hai Phong Branch

Wietnam Travel and Markeling Transports foint
Stock Comparyy - Wietravel - Ha Moi Dranch

YWletnam Travel and Marketing Transports Joint
Stock Company - Wetravel - Da Mand Branch

Branch of Yietnam Travel and Marketing
Transporks Jaint Stock Company - Vietravel
Auyen A Transport Services EnlLerprise

Rranch of Wietnam Travel and Marketing
Transports Joint Stock Company - Vietravel -
Yiet Study Abroad Consuitancy Center

yielnam Travel and Marketing Transports Jaint
Stock Company - Yietrave!l - An Giang Branch

Wistnam Travel and Marketing Transports Joint
SLock Company - Vietravel - Hha Trang Branch

Wiatnam Travel and Marketing Transports Jolnt
Stock Company - Vietravel - Quang Mgai Branch

Wietnam Travel and tarketing Transports Joint
Stock Company - Vietravel - Can The Sranch

Vietnam Travel and Marketing Trarsports Joint
LLock Compary - Vielravel - Vung Tau Branch

Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transports Joink
stock Company - Vietravel - Guy Mhon Branch

Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transports Jaint
Stock Company - Victravel - Branch of labor
expork in Ha Mol

Branch of Yietnam Travel and Marketing
Transports Joint Stock Company - Yietravel -
Star Construction Colerprise

Wictnam Travel and Marketing Transparts Joint
Stock Company - Vietravel - Nghe An Branch

317 Binh Duang Avenue, Chanh Hghia Ward, Thu
Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province, Yietnam

230 Truong Son Street, Ward 4, Tan Ginh
Mstrick, Ho Chi Minh City, VicLnam

59 3004 Street, Thanh Bink Ward, Bien Hoa City,
Dong Mai Frovince, Yietnam

4 Tran Burng Dao Street, Hoang Yan Tho Ward,
Hong Bang District, Hal Phang Ciky, Yictnam

3 Hal Ba Trung Street, Trang Tien Ward, Hean
Wiem District, Ha M City, ¥ietnam

%8 Pasteur Street, Hai Chau | Ward, Hal Chau
Mistrict, Da Wara Cily, Vietnaim

236 Truong Son Street, Ward 4, Tan Binh
[issrlct, Ha Chi Minh City, Wietnam

S04 Heuwen Thi Minh Bhai Strest, Yo Thi Gau
ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

01 Ly Tu Trong Street, My Long Ward, Lang
¥uyen City, &n Giang Province, Vistnam

100 Quar, Trung Street, Loc Tho Ward, Kha
Trang Clty, Khanh Hoa Province, Vigtnam

B1A Quanyg Trung Street, Mguyan Mahiem Ward,
Quang Heai City, Quang Mgai Province, Vietnam

103 Tran Van Kheo Street, Cal Kne Ward, MNinh
Kieu Matrict, Can Tha Ciky, Wielham

150 Truong Ceng Dinh Street, Ward 3, Vung Tau
City, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province, Yietnam

28 Trueesg Chinh Strest, Ly Thuong Kiet Ward,
iy Mhan City, Binh Dindi Province, Vietnam

Umit 502, 2 Tran Thanh Tong Strecl, Pham Dinh
Hao Ward, Hai Ba Trung Distrlct, Ha Hoi City,
Wietnam

238 Truong Son Strecl, Ward 4, Tan Binh
District, Ho Chi Mink City, Vietnam

201 Dany Thal Than Streat, Quang Trung Ward,
¥inh City, Mghe An Province, Vietham
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETIMG 1TRANSFORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
100 Pasteur Strecl, Vo T Sau Ward, Disbricl 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the tinancial year ended 31 December 2024

Unit

Yirtnam Travel and Marketing Transporls Joint
Sbock Company - Vietravel - Ca Mau Branch

Vietriarm Travel and tarketing Transporls Jolnt
Stock Company - Yictravel - Bach Gia Branch

YVieLtnam Travel and Marketing Transporis Joint
Stack Comparry - Wietravel - Phu Gunc Branch

Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transports Jodnt
Stuck Company - Vistravel  Dal Lak Branch

Yietnam Travel ancd Marketing Transports Jaint
Stock Company - Yietravel - Quang Minh Branch

Wietnam Travel ard Marketlng Transports Joinl
Stoch Comparry - Vistravel - Lam Dong Branch

Yietnam Travel and Marketing Transporks Joinl
Stuchk Company - Vietravel - Thanh Hoa Rranch

Yietnam Travel and Marketing Transports Jaint
Stock Company - Yietravel - Vietnam Human
Resources Centor

Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transports Joint
sLock Comparny - Vietravel - Vistnam Tour
Cuide Dperations Center

Yielnam Travel and Markeling Transports Joint
Stock Company - Vietravel -Trip U Sorvices
Center

Vlemnam Travel and Marketing Transports Joint
Seock Company - Vistravel - Xuyen A Ha Mol
Transport Services Cnterprise

wietnam Travel and Marketing Transports Ioint
Stock Company - Vielravel - Thai Mguyen Branch

Yernam Travel and Marketing Transporls Joint
Stock Company - Vietravel - Tay Ninh Branch

Vietravel Yocaticnal Tralning Center

Branch of Vieknamy Travel and Sarkoling
Transporis Joint Stock Compeany - Vietravel
Caravan Conter

Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transports Joint Stocle Company - Vietravel

dissolved on 29 May 2024,

Address

324 Phan Mgoc Fien Street, Ward 9, Ca Mau City,
Ca Mal Province, Vietnam

&0 Lac Hong Street, Yinh Lac Ward, Rach Gla
City, Kien Giang Province, Yicliam

53 3074 Slreet, Guarter 1, Duang Dong Taown,
Phu Gues Mstrice, Kien Giang Province, Yietnam

BR Dien Men Phu Street, Thong Mhat Ward, Buon
Wi Thuot Cloy, Dak Lak Province, Vietnam

18 25/4 Street, Gach Dang Ward, Ha Long City,
Quang Hinh Province, Yietnam

2B Pasteur Street, Ward 4, Da Lat City, Lam
Cong Province, Yietnam

109 Duong Dinh Xghe Slreet, Tan Son Ward,
Thanh Hoa City, Thanh Hoa Province, Vietnam

35 Tran Quoc Toan SLreet, Ward 3, District 3, Ho
Chi Minh City, Yietnam

190 Pasteur Street, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3,
Ho Chl Minh City, Wictham

904 Heuyen Thi Minh Knai Slreet, Yo Thi Sau
Ward, Districl 3, Ho Chi Minh City, Viclilam

1 Hai Ba Trung Street, Trang Tien Ward, Hoan
Hicm Distrlck, Ha Hei City, Vietnam

203, Sub-quarter 26 Luong Mgoo Ouyen Street,
Hnang Van Thu Ward, Thai Mauyen Cily, Thal
Heuven Province, Vietnam

170 3044 Streel, Quarter 1, Ward 1, Tay Minh
City, Tay Minh Provinoe, Vietham

190 Pastoue Street, Vo Thi San Ward, District 3,
Hao Chi Minh Ciky, Vietnam

3% Tran Quoc Toan Street, Ward 8, District 3, Ho
Chi Minh City, Vietnam

904 Mguyun Thi ¥inh Khai Street, Yo Thi Sau
Ward, District 3, Ho Chi tdinh City, Yietnam
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRAHSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEI
190 Pasteur Strest, Yo Thi Saw Ward, Dislrict 3, Ho Chi Minh City

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Faor the finandial vear ended 11 December 2024

1.6

1.7

|

1.2

3.1

Cormparative information in the consolidated financial statements

The figures in the consolidated financlal statements for the financial year ended 31 Decemhber
2024 are comparable to the prior year's coresponding figures,

Employees

45 at 31 Decembur 2024, the Group has ©,190 employees (31122023 1,088 employees).

ACCOUNTING YEAR AHD ACCOUNTING CURREHCY
Financial year

The finzncial year of the companies in the Group is from O January and ended 31 December
annually.

Accounting currency

The Group maintains its accounting recards fn Vietnam Dong (VD) due o the revenues and
expenditures are made primarlly by currency VRO,

APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND REGIME
Applicable accounting standards and regime

The Group applied Yietnamese Accounting Standards, the Circular Ho. 200/2014/7T-BTC dated 11
December 2044 providing guidarce on enterprise accounking system, Clraular No. 5372016/TT-BTC
dated 21 March 2016 {ssued by the Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing Circular Mo.
200 2H AFTT-BTC, Circular Mo, 20272014/ TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 providing guidance on
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements and olher circulars providing
guidance o Implementation of sccounting standards of the Minlstry of Finance relavanl Lo
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financlal staterments.

Skatement of compliance with Accounting Standards and Accounting Systerm

The Board of Directors confirmed that it has complied with Wietnamess Accounting Slandards,
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System in Circular Mo, 200/20M4/TT-DTC dated 21 December
2014, Circular Mo, 53/2016/TT-0TC dated 21 March 2016 issued by the Ministry of Finance
amending and supplementing Clroular Mo, 20072014/ TT-RTC, Ciroular Mo, 2027204/ TT-RTC dated
21 December 2014 and other circulars prosdding guidance on Implementation of accounting
standards of the Ministry of Finance relevant to preparaticn and presentation of Lhe censolidated
fimancial stabements,
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MAAREETING TRAHSFORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasbeur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh City

MOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Faor the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4.2

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial stalemenls are prepared, except for cash flow infurmalion, under the
accrual basis ol accounting.

The consolidated fnancial statements are propared on the basis of consolidation of Lhe
consalidatad financial staterments of the Parent company and its subsidlaries for the Anancial year
eided 31 December 2004,

Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which Lhe
Group chtains cantrol and continues to be consolidated until the date that such conlral ceases,

The financlal statements of the Parent company and its subsidiaries are adjusted Lo ensure that
the accounting policies applied fn the Parent company and its subsidiaries are the same.

Intra-group balances in the balance sheet and intra-group Lransactions, exclided unrealised
profits have been eliminated in full. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions have
Leein eliminated unless cosl cannct be recovered,

How-corliolling interests

Mon-controlling Interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assels of & subsidiary, mnt
field by the Group's shareholders and are presented separately In the consolidated income
statements and i the consolidated balance sheet, separately from Lhe Parent company's
sharehoiders' equity.

Bursiness combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for wsing Lhe purchase method, The cost of a business
comhbiration s measured as the fair value of assets given, equity insbruments 1ssued and Habilitios
Iheurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus any costs directly attributable to the business
romhination. Identiflable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a busingss
combinaticn are measured initially at falr values at the date of business combination.

Goodwlll acquired in 2 business combination is inilially measured at cost being Lhe excess of the
cost the business combination over the Group's Interest in the net fair value of the acquiroe’s
idenlifiable assets, liahilitics and contingent liabilities, I the cost of & husiness combination is
less than the fair value of the net assels of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized
dircetly in the consolidated ircome statement. After initial recognition, gondwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated amestization. Guodwill 15 amortized on a sbraight-lne Basis over o
period of ten {10] years.

Foreign curréncy transactions

Transactions in foreign currencles during the year have been transtated at exchange rates ruling
at the date ef the ransaction. At year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign
currescles are transiated at the exchange rates as announced at the balance sheot date.

Fxchange rate ditferences incurred from transactions in foreign currencies durng the year arc
recorded in flnancial income or Minancial expenses. Exchange rate differences incurred due o
revaluation of accounls derived from foreign currencles at year-end are recordsd net amount
after offseltng gain and loss on exchange rate differcnces i financial income or financial
EIEN5EE.
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YIETHAM TRAVEL &MD MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPARNY - VIETRAYEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Mink City

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For Lhe Mnanclal year ended 371 December 2024

4.3

4.4

Foreipn currency transactions (continued)

The principles for deterneining real exchange rate upon re-determining acoounts derived frorm

forelgn currencles at the balance sheet date:

o For forelgn currencles depnsited in bank; buying exchange rates of Lhe banks where the
campanies in the Group open (erelgn curmency accounts,

s For fareign currencies classified as other assets: buying exchange rates of the bank where the
cornparties in the Graup regularly canduct trarsactions.

= For foreign currencies classified as Uabilities: selling exchange rates of the bank where the
com paries fn the Group regularly conduct transactions,

The principles for deotermicing the exchange rate when converting a subsidiary's tinancial

statements prepared In a foreipn currency into the Parent cormpany's accounting currency are

determined as follows:

v Agsets, Habllides and goodwill arising on the acguisilion of an overseas subsidiary are
converted at the buving exchange rate of the bark at the balance sheet date.

»  The subsidlary's net asset value at Lhe acquisition date held by the Parent compary is
converted al exchange rate in the accounting rata.

»  Undistributed earmings afler the acquisidon date are converted with reference (o respective
items of the Income statement.

e Dividends paid are convertad at the actual exchange rates available al the dates of payment.

= [tems of income statement and cash flow statement are converted at the average exchange
rate of the reporting vear,

Foreien exchange rate difterences arsing from the conversion of the subsidiany's firancial

statements are reflected 1n the consalidatad balarde sheel as Tolloes:

»  Forsign exchange rate differences allocated to the Parcnl company are presented under
“Exchange rate differences" in the owner's equity ttem of the consolidated balance sheet,

« Foreign cxchange rate differences allocated to mon-contralling shareholders are prosenbed
nder "Hon-controlling inkterests™ In the consolidated balance sheet.

Frreign exchange rate differences arising from the conversion of unallocated goodwill ab the end
ot the year are fully allocated bo the Parent compary and presented uider “Exchange rate
differences"” in the vwmer's equity item of the consolidated balance sheet,

Cash and cash equivalents

fash comprises cash on hand, cash at banks (demand deposits) and cash In transit. Cash
eguivalents are short-term highly Lguld investments with an original maturity of less than Lhree
months frum the date of the investments thal are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value at the balance sheet date.

Inwestiments

Medd to maturity investments

Inveslmenls are classified as held te maturlty when the Group has the intent and to he ability to
hald o maturily, Held to maturity investments include term depasits fincluding Lreasury bills,
prafisserny nates), honds, preference shares which the ssuer is reguired to re-buy them n a
certain time in the future and Reld to matority loars Lo earn profits perindically and other held 1o
raturity Investmeants,

Held to maturity Investments are initially recognized at cost including purchase price and the
expenses related to the purchase of the fnvestments. Atter inilial recegnltion, these invastments
are recorded at thelr recoverable value. Interest Income from held tn maturity inveslments after
Lhe acquisition date is recognized i Income statement oo an estimale basls. Income before the
Group owns is deducted into the cost ab acguisition.
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VIETHAM TRAVEL ARND MARKETIMG TRAMSPORTS JOIMT STOCK COMPAMY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pastewr Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh ity

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far Lhe financial year ended 31 December 2084

Held o maturity Investments (continved)

When there is evidence surely about a part or all the investment may be nol recoverable and
having damage can be measured reliably, the loss is recognized in financial expenses in the year
and reduced direct investment values,

Ievwgstiments in @ssociotes

The Group's investment in s associate is accounted fur uslig the eqguity method of accounting,
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence that @5 neither subsidiaries
nor joint venlures, The Group generally deemns they have significant influence i they have over
0% of the voting rights.

Uneler the equity method, the imeestment §s carrled in the conzolidated balance sheet at cost plus
post acquisition changes in the Group's share of nel assets of the assnciates. Goodwill arising on
acquisitian of the associsle is included in the carrying amount of the nvestment and 5 not
amortized. The consolldated income statement reflects the share of the post-acquisition resulls
of operation of the associata.

The share of post-acquisicion profitf(loss) of the assoclates is presented on lace of the
consolidated income staternent and lts share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognisad in reserves. The cumulative post-acguisilion movements are adjusted againsl the
carryirg amount of the investment. Dividend/profit sharing receivable from asscclales reduces

the carmving amount of the investment. A

2
The financial staternents of the associates are preparcd (or the same reporting year ord use Lhe o
samie accolsiting policies as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are matde to bring the #
accounting palicies in Line with those of the Growp. :

At
fvestments in equity of other companies 9
Investments n equity of ather companies include irvestments which the Group have no control, ‘{f

co-control or significant influence on the investee.

Ivestiients in equity of other companies are initially recorded at cost, including purchase price
or capital conLributions plis the costs direclly related to irvestment. Dividends and profits from
orevious perinds of the investments before being purchased are accounted for the decrease In
value of the investments, Dvidends and profils of the following year are afler being purchased is
recogiized {n revenus. Dividends which received by shares are only followed up by the number of
chares increases without recognizing the value of shares at face value.

Erovision for diminution in valwe of investments

Pravislan for diminution in valug of long-term investments in equity of other companies is

appropriated as fellows:

«  FEaor fnvestments in listed shares or the fair value of the investments is determined rellably,
the provision 15 based on the market value of shares,

«  Far investments have ol determined the fair value at the time of reporting, the provision s
made basad on the loss of the investment at the rate equal Lo Lhe difference between aclual
capital companies i other company and the equity ratlo multiplied with the Group's capital
conlribution to the total actual capltal contributions ot all parties in ather invesloc
enterprise.

Increase or decrease in provision for diminution in value of Long-term investments have recorded
at the closing day and 15 rerngnized in the financlal expenses.
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SIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRARSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
{90 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, DHstrict 3, Ha Chi Minh City

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the finarcial year ended 31 December 2024

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less provision for doubtiul debls,

The classification of recelvables is trade receivables and other receivables, which s compiled with

Live Tellowing principies:

# Trade recelvables reflect the nature of the receivalbles agising from commercial transactions
with purchase-sale botween Lhe Group and buyer {an independent unit against the Group),
including recetvables from sale of exported goods given by the Lrostoer through the trustee,

= Other receivables reflecl Lhe nature of the receivablas arising from  non-commerncial
transactions, and not to be related to tho purchase - sale bransactions,

Thie provision for doubtful debts represents the estimated loss due to non-payment arising on
receivahles that were outstanding al ke balance sheet date, Increases and decreases Lo the
provision balance are recognised as ganeral and administration edpenses in the income statement
at the balance sheet date.

Inventories

lsventories are presented at the lower of cost and net realizable value, The cost of goods includes
all costs of purchase ang refated expenses directly incurred in bringing Lhe inventories to their
presenl locatico and condition,

Meb realizable value represents the estimated selling price of inventory during the normal
production and business less the estimated costs tn completion and the estimated costs necessary

to consume Lhem.

Cost of inventories is delennined on welghted average method and Lhe perpetual method s used
to record Inventaries.

Prowision for Impalrrent of inventories is made for each frventory with the cost greater Lhan the
net walee realizable. Increase o decrease in the balance of provision for impainment. of
inventories should be sel aside at the financial year eod and 15 recognized in cost of goods sold.

Prapald expenses

Prupald expenses are used for record expenses actually incurred bub Lhey are related to the
aperating output ot many accounting periods. Prepaid edpenses Include;

Tour expenses
Tour expenses include prepiald expenses related to pending Lours,
Tools and supplies expenses

Teals and supplies have been put nto use are amortized to cxpenses under the straight-line
methad Lo time allocation not exceeding 36 months,

Operating [ease assels
Leases are classified as aperating leases if the risks and benefits associated with ownership of

assets belonzing to the lessor. Lease nperating expensos arg reflected as expenses under the
straight-Une method over the lease time, regardless of the method of rental payment,

22
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Gty

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

4.9

4.10

4.11

Tangible fixed assats
Tangilde Med assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,

The initial cost of a tangible fized asset comprises [t purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset Lo its worklng condition and lecation for Its Intended use. The cosls
incurred after the inftlal recognition are only recorded as capitalised on fixed assels If Lhese costs
will undoubzedly lead to economic benefits in the future due to Lhe use of these assets, The costs
incurred which aren't satisfled with these conditions are recognized as cost of production and
busirsass in yoar.

When assets are sold or retired, Lheir cost and accumulated deprecialion are removed from the
balance sheet and any gain or loss resulting fram their disposal s included in the consclidated
income stalement,

Depreciation of tangible fxed assets is calculated on stralght-line method over Lhe estimated
useful Life of these assets, which are as follows:

Assete Tirne of deprecation [Wears)
Buildings and structure i0-15
Hachinery and equipment 03 7
Vahicles 04 - 07
Office equipment 03 or
Other fixed assets O - OF

Intangible fired assels

Land wse rights

Land use rights reflect all the actual expenses related to the used land such as expenses to nbtain
the land use right, expenses for house removal and land clearance, expenses on ground levelling,
registralion fees, etc. Land use rights are not determined deadline not be amerlized.

Patent

Inftial costs of patent acquired from Lhe third parties include purchasing cost, nan-refurdable ta
ur purchase and registration fee, Patent is amorlised on straight-line melhod within 04 yoars,

Software

Purchase price of the new sollware, which is not an Intepral part ot the related hardware, is
capitalized and recognized as an intangible fixed asset. Cost of sultware js amortised on stralght-
line method within 04 years,

Other intungible fixed assets

Other intangible fixed assets are tenancy rights and domain. The cost of tepancy rights and
domaln Includes atl costs Incurred in bringing the tenancy righl and domain to their present
condition. Cost of tenancy right and domain is amortised on straight-line melhod from 03 to 25
WERIS.

Construction in progress

Cutistrucklon in progress presents the cost of unfinlshed constroction, machinery which is being
installed for productlon, lease, and management purposes, as well as the cost of repalrment of
tired assets, Construction in progress is stated at cost and ne depreciaticn is made on it
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRAMSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Seu Ward, Dlstrct 3, Ha Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2014

4.11

Accounts payables and accrued expenses

Accounls pavable and accried expenses are recognized (or amounts to be paid in the future,
which related to receive the gocds and services. Accrued expenses are recorded based on
reasonable estimates payment,

The classification of labilities is payable Lo suppllers, accrusd axpensas and olher payables,

which complied with Lhe following principies:

» Trade payables reflect the nature of the payabies arizing from commercial ransactions with
purchase of goods, services, property between Lhe Group and an independent seller, including
payable when imported through a trustes,

s Accried expenses reflect the payvables for goods and senvices received [om the seller or
provided with Lhe purchaser but have not been paid until having inwvolces or having insufficient
Bllling records, accounting records, and pavables to employees including salary, praductian
cosls, sales must accruals,

& Cther payables reflect the nature of the payables of non-commercial, not related to the
purchase, salg, rendering service transactions.

Capital

Owner's equity

Capital is recorded according to the amount actually irvested by the shareholders,

Surplus of stock capital

Surplus of stock capital is recorded at the difference between Lhe lssuance price and the face
value upun the nitial issuance, additional issuance or the difference bebween re-issuance price
and the net hook value of treasury shares, Direct expenses related to additional issuance and re-
issuance of treasury shares are recorded as a decrease In surplus of stock capital.

Treasury stocks

Whan acquiring shares 1ssusd by the Parent company, payables including expenses relaled to the
transaction are recorded as Lreasury shares and are reflected as a deduction in equity. When
reissued, the difference between the price of re-release and the book value of treasury shares are
recorded it Lhe Ttem “sumplus of stock capital®.

Distribution of net profits

Profit after tax is distributed to sharehaolders after an appropriation of funds under the Charter of
the Group as same as the law and 1s approved by Sharcholders' Meeting.

The distrifution of orofits to shareholders is considerad tu non-cash 1tems in undistribubed profit
may affect cash Now and akility to pay dividends as profit from revaluation of assels contributed

.5 capital, interest due to the revaluation of monetary items, the financlal instruments and othe

non-cash ibems.

Dividends are recognized as Habflities when approved by Shareholders' Meeting,

1

A



WVIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETIMG TRAMSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Streat, Vo Thi Sau Ward, Bstrict 3, Ho Chi Minh Cily

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4.14

4,16

Revenus

Reveniw from the sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods shall be recognized if it simultaneously meets the following

conditicns:

s The Group has transforred Lo the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

« The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degres usually associated
willt ownership nor effective control over the gonds sold;

» The amount of revenue can be measured rellably, Wnen cormtracts define that buyers are
entitled to return products, gonds purchased undur speciflc conditions, the Group shall only
recard Lurnovers 1f such specitic conditions no longer exist and buyers are not entitled to
return products, goods (uniess the customer is entitied Lo returm the geoads under the fomm of
pxchange for olher goods or services);

» It I probahle that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow Lo the
Group; and

»  The oosts incurred or to be ncurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably,

Revenue from sales of service rendered

Revenue of a transaction involving the rerdering of services is recognized when the outcome al
cuch Bransactions can be measured reliably, In case that a trapsaction involves the rendering of
services is attributable tn several periods, revenue s recognized in each perlod by reference L
the percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date of thal perind. The
autcome of a Lransactan can be measdred reliably when all following conditions are satisticd:

« The amount of revenue can be measured rellably, When contracts deflne that huyers are
antitled to return services purchased under specitic cenditlons, the Group shall only record
Lurncvers if such specific conditions no fonger exist and huyers are not entltled to return
prosvicded sorvices;

¢ L ts prabable that Lthe economic benefits assaclated with the transacticn will flow to the
Croup;

« The percentage of completion of the Lransaction at the balance sheet date can be measured
reliablyy and

e The costs fncurred for the transaction and the eosls to complete the Lransaction can be
measured reliably,

Intarest

Interosl is recoanized on an accrual basis, are detormined on the halance of cash in bank and the
actual interest rate for ach perind.

Dividends and profits received

Dividends and profit shared are recognized when the Group recefve the rotice of dividends o
profit from the capital contrbution,

Borrowlng costs

Barruwing costs include inlerest and other costs Incurred directly related Lo the haorrowings.
Borrowing costs are recognized as cupenses when incurmed.

Carporate incame 1ax

Current income box

Current fncome tax is the tax amount is caledlaled on assessable income, Assessable income is
different from accounting profit due to the adjustments of temporary differences between
groounting and tax, non-deductible expuenses as well as adjusted income are not tazed and losses
bez branslerrad,

25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2024

4,17

4.1B

Fimancial inskrument

Financial assets

The classification of financial assets depends on the nalure and purpase of the financial assets
and is determingd at the time of initial recognition. Financial assets ot the Group include cash
and cash equivalents, investments, trade recejvables, other recefvables, Usted and urtlisLed
financial instruments,

At the time of initial recognition, financial assets are determined at cost plus any cosls directly
acguisition, fssuance of such financial assets,

Financial Labilities

The classiflcatdon of financial liabilities depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
lahilities and is determined at the time of initial recognitlon, Flnancal lakilities of the Group
include loans and borrowings, trade payalbdes and other payahles.

At the time of Inltal recognition, sxcepl labilities related to finance lease purchase and
cutivertible bonds are recodnized ab amortized cost, financial liabiiities are determined at cost
less costs directly {ssuance of such financial Habllities,

Amartization is measured at the initial recognition of the financial labilities less any principal
repayments, plus or minus any accumulated amortizations calculated using the effective interesl
methnd of the difference between initial recoonition and maturity, less any deductlons [directly
ar through the use of an allowance acceunt) for impairment or irevocal:de,

The effective interest method is a mathod that calculates the amortized value of one or a group
of financial Uabilites and allocales nterest income or interest expenses in the relevant year, The
affective interost rale Is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash flows to be paid o
received over the expected life of the finandial instrument or, 1f necessary, back to ILs present
carrying amount of net financial lHabilities.

Equity instruments

Eqully Instrument is a contract that demorstrales a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all oDligations.

Offsetting of firancial instruments

The Arancial assets and fnancial labilities are offset and the nel amount 1s presented on Lhe
batance sheet, and if oaly the Groug:

= Has Lhe lepal right tn offset Lhe values were recognized, and

»  Tn offset oo o basls or to realize Lhe asset and pay the liability simultaneousty.

Segment reporting

A business segiment Is a distinguishable cormponent of an enterprise that is engaged in providing an
irlividual product or service or a group of related products or services and Lhal is sulxject to risks
and returns thal are different frorn thaose of other business segmenls,

4 geographical sepment 5 a distinguishable companent of an enLerprise that is engaged 1n
providing products or services within a particular economic environment and Lhat |s subject to
rlsks and returns that are different from Whose of components operating in other econoimic
crdirunments,
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Faor the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

4.1%

4.20

5.1

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amount {5 computed by dividing net profic for the year atbributable to
ardinary sharcholders after deducting appropriation of honus and wellare funds, by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,

Related parties

Parlies are considered to be rolated If one party has the ability to control the other parly or
exarcise significant Influence over the other parly In making financial and vperating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject Lo commaon control or comimon

significant influence,

In considering each possible related party relationshlp, attention 5 directed Lo the substance nf
the relaticnship, and not marely the legal Torm.

The foliowing partios are known as the Group's redated parties:

Related party Locatian Relationship

yietravel Corporation Juint Slock Company Yietnam tajor shareholder

Vietravel Development and Investment One Member Yietnam - Subsidiary

Company Limited

Trip U Travel Service Limited Liability Company Yietnam Subsidiany

Viet Mam Travel and Marketing Transports Co,, Ltd,  Thailanhd Associate

Vietravel Development and Investment Joint Stuck  Vetnam Associale

Cormpany

Viet Mam Sai Gan Travel Jolnt Stock Company Yietnam Azsociate

Yiet India Trawved Private Limited Inclia Joint venture

Viet Nam Travel &rlines Joint Stock Compary Yietham Having the same sharehalder
World Transportation Services loint Stock Company  Vietnam Hawing the same sharcholder
Cultwal bevelopmeant B Import - Export Joint Stock Vietnam Having the same sharehnider
Compary

Viecoms Services Trading Jaint Stack Company Wictnam Having the same shareholder
The Board of Managament, Lhe Board of Directors Koy management members

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents

122024 01/01/2024

VRO WHD

Cash on hand 10,505,253, 460 A,2d6,763,137
Cash in hanks RO, 457, 06,453 66 BG9, 596,417
Cash equivalents 16803680701 15,430,000,000
116,656, 560,614 o0, 545,859 554

&f
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKLETIRG TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

3.2

5.3

5.4

Hald ta maturity investmeants

3122024 Q17012024
Amaount Book value Amount Book value
WD YHO YHD YHD
Term deposits not exceeding 12 months
Vietiam J5C Bank for
Industry and Trade F.0d0 000,000 Foed0, 000,000 5,995,000,000 5,995,000, 004

JSC Bank for Ivwestment
and Development of

Vietham 7,379,741 460 70379, 040 4060 5,500,000, 000 5,500, 000,000
silizary Commercial Joint

Stock Bank 650,000,000 430,000,000

Wietnam Export Impord

Commercial Jolnt Stock

Rank : - 550,000,000 550,000,000
Dbt entities 33,377,500 33,377,500 33,693,750 33,693,730

15,703,119,966 15,703,119,%5 12,078,692, 750 12,078,693,750

Short-term trade receivables

Recedvahles from related parties

Ylet Mam Travel Airlines Joint Stock Company
Yiecoms Sorvices Trading Joink Stock Cormparyy
Cultural Development B Imporl - Export Joint
Stock Company

Wictravel Development and Investment Joint Stock
Company

Receivables from olher customers
Dther customers

322024
YHD

B15,820,06%
93,943,500

150,592,474, 357

010172024
WHLD

51,456,731,650
04,626,530

146,200,555

4,125,000

7%56,986,201,315

Short-term advances bo suppliers

751,502,242,966 108,637 885,350
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
YND VHD

Advances to reflated parties

Wiet Ham Travel Aldines foint Stock Company
world Transportation Services Joint Stock Company
Cultural Development & Import - Export Joint Stock
Company

Viecoms Services Trading Joint Gtock Commparty

Advaonces to other suppliers
Jther suppliers

745,053,559,884

468,288,824,833
151,053, 898,062

1,195,005,923

124,515,831,011

204,184,835, 739
138,108,069, 340

A1 5,997, B6
776,532, 460

113,285, 145,749

465,220,601,656

£
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A, 068, 407, '-"I:I'E E-EEI {5,247, T'"?D a0

5.5 Other short-term, long-term receivables
5.5.1 Other short-term receivables
1M L2024 010452024
Aroun Pravlslon Arnowrnt Prowlsion
YD WHD YHD WD

fecaivables from refated parties
Wiek Mam Travel and tarketing
Trarsports Co,, Lid. - pay-an-behalf 3,746,949 448 7,341 544,549 -
Trip U Travel Service Limited Liability
Company - other receivalbies 1,402,743, 3165 = 1,165 605,445
Yiet Ham Travel Arlines Joint Stock
Campany - interast income of loans - 143,013, 65%
World Transportatbon Services Joint Stock
Company - pay-an-behalf ard obers G61,121 855 038,443,160
Cultural Developrent & Import, - Export
Joint Stock Company - pay-on-hehalf 100,000,000 100,020,000
Viecnars Services Trading Joinl Stock
Compary - pay-on-behalf 43,450,000 2,200,000
Wietravel Development and Imaestinent
Joint Stock Company - pay-on-kehalf 4,188,%11,517 1,624,886,133
Wletravel Corporasian Jnint Stack Campany

¥ Roceivables lrom share transfar (°) a459,086, 268,607 S 1942 00

s Interest ircome of laans 5 - 393 424 657

s Pay-on-behalf 1,105 B45,.140 11,038,232 457
Remureratian of the Board of
KWanagsment TH0.000,000 540,000,000 -
Receivables from other orgenizations and individueis
Panding YAT declaration 4 393,004,232 0,25, 457 17
AMdvances to employees Eﬁ,dﬂd,-:rﬁ'{.,ﬁ'tﬁ - 74,561,238, %34
Shart-term deposits 2,19 421,05 2,304,980 7T

Other receivables 58,479,501, 97F ':"."5 §3, 247 190, E.-:]I?:l 61,619,652, 6% 13,247,750 HEIT"_]_

1,085 876,579,651 (5,247,790,807)

{*} Recoivables from Yietravel Corporation Joint Stock Company abuat share transfer of Viet Nam

Travel Afrlines Joint Stock Company acoording to the Cobtracts Mo, 380 - HDOT

WP dated

15/12/2021, Mo. 398 - HDGT - VP dated 29/12/2021, Ho. 403 - HDOT - VP dated 31272001, No.

14/HDYTR.CORP dated 271273022 and Appandices.

5.5.2 Other long-term receivables

024
Amizimt Provision Amourit,
WHD YhN Whl

Recefvables from other oregnizations and individuals
Global Petro Commercial One Member Limiled Dank
- Asset Managemeant Compary Limlted - offics
rertal deposil 117 651,445 - 2, M7.651 445
Department of Planning and Development of Thua
Thien Hue Proviace - depnst for implementation of
imvestment project 1, B0, GO0, 000 1, 800,000,000
Other deposits _4,203,155,120 st -1_&1_.?_19 220

~ B,220, E{Iﬁ BT

8,062 380,665

0101 2024
Provision
WHD

[

I
T

VIE]
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For U financial year ended 31 December 2024

b.6

Owerdur
Branch of Ham 5ao Fertilizer  Gver 3
Factory - trage rocoivablos  years
Chenpdy Mews ntemational
Travel Agency Co, Lid. - Char 1
Lrade receivables VERTS
Hung Think Phat Joint Stock Over 3
Company - trade receivables  yoors
China Travel Service
[Shardong) Co., Lkd - trade - 1 year
receiviables 3 years

Wy Phuzng Trading Service and
Transgorl Company Limited - Ower 3

trazie receivablos Wears
Viet Ham Marketlsa - Sport -

Trawel - Entertainment

Carparation - oEher oner d
recelvables YEATS
Vietnam Tennis Lifestyle e 3

Magazine - olher recebvables  vears
M. Dang Hhat Dug - advances Owar 3
to supplier WEars
Others

Provision for doubtful short-tarm debts

Cosl
WD

933447, 150

731,983,710

LTI

MA1RE024

Provision Dwerdus

VYHD

Qver 3
(939,457,250 vears

Oyer 3
(731,983, 710) wears
Ower 3
(637,760, T2T) vears

RA3, 147 287 1A431,073, 644)
Lrver 3
400, 000,000 (400, 000,000] vears
Over 2
2.737158,69% (L, TI7 158,619 years
Oyver 3
1,194,2349,362 (1,194,345, 342 vears
&, 1 10,000,000 {3,085,000,.000)
[;535,970,404 [6,523,002.649]

17,148,832,359 (16,649,B80,941)

Lost
VHD

539,457,230

711,983,710

BT, 765, TIT

400,000,000

&, 737,158,619
154,349, 362

01012024
Provision
YD

(935, 457, 50}

[731,503,710)

(637,765,727

(400, 000, 020)

(2,737,158,61%)

4,194,349, 362)

4,790,394,230

(4,741,103,534)
11,431,108,B98 {11,381,818,206)

Movements of orovision Ter doubtful short-term debts are as followes:

Dpening balance
Provision in oo
Wrltten-off
Closing balance

024
WHD

11,381,818,206

1023
WrO

10,407, 850,410

a7 Irventories

Tools and supplies
Merchandise

5,527, 111,105 OF 3,967, 796
(259,248,350 :
16,649 3680, 961 11,381,818,206
M2 4 Q470152024
sk Prawizian a5t Provision
W YHO YD YD
- 12,000,000
220,973,340 . &M40BbE% -
i 210,973,340 G 406,989

a0

e
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190 Pasieur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial yvear ended 31 December 2024

5.8
5.8.1

0.68.2

Short-term, long-term prepaid expenses

Short-term prepaid expenses

Tour expanses
Toals and supplies exnenses
Qther exprnzes

Leng-term prepald expenses

Tools and supplies axpenses
Qther expansaes

311272024
VD

574,158,410,019
2,250,625,122
15,203,015,591

0170172024
WD

757,877,270,911
5o, 297 175
11,057,757, 911

341,65%,050,732 271526525, 997
31M12/2024 0440472024
YHD YD

4,547, 068,497
 10,633,158,453

2,415,244,714
9,513, 851,03%

15, 160,226,950

11,949,095,753

i

E
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VIET Hauh TI{."-.:n"EL AND MARKETIMG TRAMAPORTS JOIMT STOCK COMPAMY - WIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh Tty

NOTES TO THE CONMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

= g
¥
5.12 Long-term financial investments *Ei
5.12.1 Investment in associates E
311252024 010172024 _ul'
Cost  Fair Cost  Fair 1
vl valie -
VRD WHD WD WHD “":n::_
Viet Mam Travel and Marketing Transports Co., LLd. 209,005,736 *) 209,005,736 "l
Viet Mam Sal Gon Travel Jolnt Stock Campary adA,413, 245 ) 314,417,240 "
Vietravel Developmeant and Irvestrnont J5C Campany = =
Viet india Travel Private Limited . =
733,420,981 733,420,9E2
(*y As at the date af this report, the Group bas nol determined fair value vet because these are
unlisbed ivestments, so do not have infarmation ahout fair value.
The situation of copitol contributions Lo Joinl ventures, associoles!
Company's name Enterprise Ragistration Charter capitalf As at 3102024
Certificate f Cartificate of Capital according te Mumber of shares!  Ratio
Investment Registration Abroad Certificate of  Charter capital hold
Inyestment by the Group
Registration Abroad
1
“Wiet Nam Traveland  Ho, 201900655 dated 13 thay 2019 THE 9&0,000.00
Marketing Transports  issued by Ministry of Planning and equivalent to WHD
Co., Led. Inveskiment TR1,903, B0 A2.00 o
Yiel Mam Sal Gon bz, 03€4161156 the 1% Lk
Travel Joint Stock Armendiment daled 14 Jupe 2099 o
Comnpiimy WO 2,500,000, 000 VD 515,000,000 2100 A
Vietravel Mo, 9317348439 the lirst -f-FI
Development and Cortificats dated 21 June 2022
Invesbment Jaint issued by the Ho Chi Minh Cily ey
Stock Campany Flaneing and Irvestment QEH,_-
Department WD 190, 000,000,000 -
Wiet India Travel Ho. 202401324 dated 30
Frivate Limlted September 2024 issued Ly Ministry
of Flanning and Imestment LA 59, 000.00
Oetalls of dnvestment in joint ventures, ossocidles:
Viek Mam Travel  Wiel Ham 5ai Gon Total
and Marwsting  Travel Joint Stock
Trarsporls Co., LLd, Lompany
_ Yl YHO WHO
Ciosd
A al DICEIET4 T&1,902.000 525,000, C 1,006,902, 300
Ircragse R S s 4T Lo e
A7 at 11/920 2124 781,902,800 525,000,000 1,306,502, 500
sccumuladed share in post-eequisition profitd (oss} of the assaciates
A ab 0170 2004 (578,057, 06d) (364,754 (573,451, 513]
Arufit s floss) of assuciales = : _ -
& ab 3L {572,807.064) (5B4,754) 1573 451,010}
The imvestment value by the equity method
hs al 01701 f2024 T R L P/ SO 7.1 4
Aeal 31 209 006 736 524,415,146 733,420,952
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VIETHAR TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRAMSPORTS JOIMT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasbeur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi Minh City

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Investment in assoclates (Ccontinued)

Capital commitments has not been implemented at year-end:

Yictravel Development and
Investment Joint Stock Campany

Wit India Travel Private Limited

5.12.2 Investments in equity of other entities

Viet Mamn Travel and
ttarketing Trarsports
Private Limited {i}
Wiet Ham Travel
Airlines Jaint Skoock
Coanpity

Capital conbribulion

Charter capltal Capital  Ratlo  Contributed Unzontributed
of the entity commitments k] capila as at capilal as al
recenving capltal MM M0
VHL WD VYHD
110,000,000,000  50,000,000,000 45,45 50,000,000, 000
L5010, 200,02 U0 81,000,000 3100 LIG0 57, 06000
3204 01012024
Cast Fravision  Fail Cosl Provislon  Falr
value value
NG VuD WD LN YHD  YHD
i} 1,776,119,431 .

1,776,119,431

178,137, 140,000
181,913,259,431 (178,137,140,000)

(178,137, 140,000)

1 178,137,140,000

(178,137,140,000)  [*)

181,973,259,431 (178,137,140,000}

(i} Irvestrment expenscs for Vet Ham Travel and Marketing Transports Private Limdtod.

{*} As at the dale of this report, the Group has not determined fair value yel because thess are

unlisted investments, so do nok have information about fair values,

Movements in provision for leng-term Investments are as follows:

Openirg balance
Provision irs wear
Closing balance

5.13 Goodwill

Cost
Asoat of Ao a0

Increasa
A5 at 311202024

Accvmulated amoriization

As at 0 S0 2024
Amarlization bn year
Asoal 1R 2004

Met boog value
LA [ D B e
A5 ab 31512010324

178,137,140,000

~178,137,140,000

2024

4023
WHD

136,663, 391,940
41,445,748, 050

- o Lt

{78,137, 140,000

2 BB erd Dot Lo

WHD

Am Incentives SARL
VD

2,405, 420,000

2,405,420,000

1,683, 794,000
240,542,000
_ 1,924,336,000

7,626,000
481,084,000

A%



VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETING THARSPORTS JOIKT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Sreet, WMo Thi Sau Warnd, Ddstrice 3, Ho Chi dink Cily

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS
For the finandcial vear ended 31 December 2024

5.14

Payahies to reloted porties

Vit Hain Travel Adrlines Joint Stock
Campany

Worls TranspoiLalion Services Jolnk
Stock Company

Yiecoms Services Trading Jeint
sock Company

Payatles to other suppliers
Golden & Prermiwn Holidays Ple,
LLd.

Sfarn Rrathers Enterprise Co., Lid
Beijing Cosmos Travel inkernational

Short-term trade pavables

44,727, 4, TB4
T, 734, BO0, 64

312024

Amount  Pavable amourt
YHD WHO

20, i U0 PN R

Z,059,516,525 2,009, 516,505

16, 290, %72 166,250,571

44,717 644, T84
0,734 800,897

01/01, 2024

Amount Payable amount

YD YR

A7, B0, 400 37,010,400
3,877, M9.002 3877 09,002

37,396,154, 706
45,728, 51%,430

37,356,204, 756
45,778, 519,430

o, Lid 100,514, 678,657 100,914,678,657
Other suppliers 473,895, 706,094 A73,500,706,0%4 444,313,585, 654
692,529,306 331 692,529,306,331
.15  Short-tarm advances from customers
J1MERFI024

Advances from other customers

Other customers

WD

328,500,639, 363

48,536,480, 580

41, 536,450, 540
46, 318,565,854

599,355,420,026 59%,355,420,026

Q101,202 4
VHD

241,853,034 ,B92.

o Balbchel! G = . =t b
378,900,639,363 291,693,031,892
5.16 Tanes
Value added tax deductibles
311202024 012024
YHD WHD
Value added tax deductibles : 35,859,466 1,234,240,3432
The Group paid value added tax payable under the deduction methed, Value added tax rates are
as Tollows:
Bramestc tourism sarvice and other domestic sendces: 0%
Airtine Licket abroad: [
Tux and recetvables from the State and puyables to the Stote
M2 01.,/01/2024
Recelvahles Pavables Receivables Payables
WHI WHD W0 VR
Value added b - 1,237 567 040 30,120,014 0BT 5 418
Cargorate income Lax . 19,511,459, 246 - 15,921,591, 8322
Parsanal fncame tax 16,762,129 §,200,771 548 08,571,221 L R
Laad & housing Fax, land rental charges 2 - -
Fers, charges and ather payahlas 9602111 U9 a0EET 902,111 155,478 518
Total 26,364,240 67,750,000601 108,333,446 48,260,143 579

1]

- e T
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WIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKETIMNG TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVE

190 Pasteur Streel, Yo Thi Saw Ward, Distrct 3, Ho Chi finh Sity
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

For the

3,171

2.17.2

financlel year eaded 31 December 2024

Corporate fncoime tax (“CIT")

The Group is obliged Lo pay comorate Income tax for taxable income at the rate of 205,

Other taxes

The Group declared and paid according to regulations,

Tax settlement of the companies in the Group are subject to examination by the tax authorities,
Az the application of tax laws and reguiations is susceptible to varying interprelalions, amounls
reported in the financial statements could be changed upon final determination by the tax

authoritles.
Other short-term, long=term payables

Other short-term payables

Payahles ta related parties

Viot Mam Travel Aldines Joint Stock Company

Warld Transportation Services Juinl Stock Company
other payvables

Payables to other organizations and individuals
Trade union fee, social insurance, heallh
insurance, unemployment Insurance

Dividend pavables

{ther short-term payables

Other long-term payables

Payables to ather orgonizations and individuals
Long-term deposits recefved

IMALZ0Z4
VHO

0,192, 200

2,551, 705,147

01012024
YN

11, 500, 000, God

HlG, 192,200

3,391,941, 727

617,817,984 617,817,984
143,194,628, 178 210, 046,310,053
147,270,343,509 226, 762,762,564
31/12/2024 04/01/2024

WND VD

1,081, 200,000 1,056, 400,000
1,081,200,000 1,056, 400,000
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WIETHAR TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRAHSPORTS JOIWT 5TOCK, COMPAMY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, Distrct 3, Ho Chi Minh Clty

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial yvear ended 31 December 2024

5.16
5.1B.1 Short=term loans

short-term, long-term loans

Arrank
VHD

Loans from other arganizations and individuals = YND

= ‘\etnam J5C Rank for Indistny
and Trade

a J5C Hank for Investment and
Development, of Yielnam

# Military Commercial Joint
Stock RBank

v Vietnam Technologleal and
Commencial Jaint Stcch Bank

» Tien Phom Commencial Jaint
Stock Bank

e Yietnam |ntemational
Commerclal Jolnt Stocl Bank

# DEher arganizaticns and
Indiwlduals

Current portion of long-term
foens = YD
« Yietnam J5C Bank for Industry
and Trade
¢ Othar organizations and

[ peidugis

i)
(i)
[idi}
i)
v

iwly

246, 846,958,416
188,711 642,017
59,993,510,305
199,391,830, 790
26 760, 241 60
49,840,406,897

_35,501,000,000
880,465, 641,929

1,749,996, 000

IMM2F1024
Pawahls amount
WD

240, 846,958,416
198,711, 642,917
99,593,510, 305
199, E51, 360, 790
49, Fell, 242 B0
49,960,406, 352

35 501,000,000

Amounk
WHO

227,161,645, 196
148,998, 949,512

45,869, 156,347
164, 784, 305,021

of 084,162 B3

30,51 ,000,000

01001 F2024
Payahls amount
WD

727,161, 045,196
148, 598,945,512

49,869,756, 347
184,784,385, 021

37,064, 262, 857

30, 301,200,000

BBO, 665,641,979

1,749, 95,500

= ok i e

1,749, 996,000

582,415,637,929

Details of short-term loans are as Tollowes;

(i1 Shoert-term loans from Yietnam J5C Bank for Industry ard Trade

Credit, Agreement:
Credit Hnes
Purpaose;

Term af laans:
Interest rate:
Securlly condition:

Support working capital.

05 - 06 maonths,

A5 per promissory nle,

Hone,
As at 31 December 2024, the balance of short-term loans from Vietnam J5C Bank for Industry and
Trade Branch ¥ Ho Chi sinb City 35 YHD 246 848 958, 416,

1,749,996,000

49B,57%,498,733

6,027,000,000

6,027, 000,000

 882,415,637,029 704 606,496,733

698,579,490,733

B, 127, 000, GO0

6,027,000,000

_704,606,458,733

Branch ¥ Ho Chi Minh Clty
R, 1100/ 2024-HPEVHM HHE T924-VIETRAVEL datad 11 /0BS2024.
WHD 300,000,000,000.

(11} Shart-term lnans from JSC Bank for Investrnent and Development of Yletnam - Transactinn Centar

1

Credit Agresment:
Credit Line:
Purpose:

Tarm of luans;
Interest rate:
Security condition:

Levelapmant of Viektnam

Hio. 0372024/ 6271 5/ HOTD dated 31/1052024,
VRO 300,000, 000, Q0a0,

Support working capital.

04 - 06 ronkhs.

AR par provmizsory note,

Mane.
Jeoat 31 December 2024, the balance of short-term loans from J5C Bank Tor Investment and
Tramsaction Center 2 15 WHD 198,711,642 917,

15
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VIETHAM TRAYEL AMD MAREETING TRANSPORTS JQINT STOCK COMPAMY - WIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Strest, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Cley

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial wear ended 31 December 2024

Shart-term loans (continued)

i111] Shart-term loans from Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank

Credit Agrecment:
Credit line:
Furpoze:

Term of loans:
Interoest rake:
Security condition:

Mo, 236978, 34,103, 19201936.TD dated Z4/1052024,
WHD 100,000,000, 000,
Support worklng capital,

{6 months.

As per promissory note,

Meme,

lransactlon Cenker 2

Ac at 31 December 2024, the balance of short-term Lears from Milicary Commercial Joint Stock
Bank - Transaction Certer 2 45 WD 90,933,510, 305.

[fv] Short-termn loans From Vielnam Techrological and Commercial Joint Stack Bank
Mo, CIBIC23TM29100/HDCTD dated 26507 2023:

Appendix Mo, CIEZOZIT2PICOMHDITRAPLOR dated 1651072024,
WD 200, 000,000,000
Supiporl wiorkdng capital,

Credit Agreement;

Coredit Lnes
Purpnse:

Term of luans:
[nterest rate;
Security condition:

04 months,

As per promissory note,

Mone.,

Asoab 31 December I024, the bhalance of short-torm loans from Yietnam Technological and
Commercial Joint Stock Bank is WHD 199,891, 8580, 790,

fw) Short-tenn loans from Tien Phong Commercial Joint SLock Bank

Moy, 142024 HPTITTOT KHDHLE dated 120062024,
WHD 70,000,000, 500,
Support working capital,

Credit Agreermaenl:
Credit line;
Furpose:

Term of loans:
Interest rate:;

Credit Agresment:
Credit Line:
Purpose,

Teerrn af loars:
Interest rate:
Securily conditian

% mionths.

A5 por proniissony note,
Securily conditlon:  Hone.
A5 ab 3 December 2024, the balance of short-term loans from Tlen Fhong Commercial Joint Stock

Rank is VMO 49,760,242 609,

{wi) Short=term logns from Vietnam International Comimerclal Joint ftock Rank - 5ai Gon Branch
Moy 10390635.24 dated 1411 /2004,
W¥MO 50,000, 000,000,

Supporl working capital,

(% minniths,

As per promissony noke,

1 mone.

As at 31 December 1024, the balance of short-term loans from Vietnam Intemational Commercial
Joint Stocl Banl - Sal Gon Branch is YHD 49,960, 406, 892,

Movemeants in short-term loans during the year are as follows:

Loans Tram baaks

Loans fram pther arganizaticns
andd indivichuals

Currant portion of loag-Lerm
s Troen barks

Current partion of long-Lenn
[ Tromy ather organiations
and individials

A5 at
01/04/2024

YHD
fi:d, 075,493,713

30,501 ,500,000

5,027 000,000

704, 606,493,731

Loar amount! Pald in year
Transferred from long-
term loans

WHD WHD

2,580, 244,601,391 12,161,138,500,195)

15, 000, 0,000 (10,060,000, 200)

1, 197,000,000 17,224,000, 000)

B P /5 2 :

2,356,171, 647,3%1 __LE,FTE.EE?,EEIHJ';IE}_

A al
ML 04

YHI
ddh, 164,641,929

35,501,000, 00

1,749, 536,000

SRS WL LA e

BRZ, 415,637,929

19
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YIETHAMN TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRAHSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VICTRAVEL
1590 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, Hstrict 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial yvear ended 31 December 1024

5.18.2 Long-term [oans

KW A i E 0447012024
Amount Fayahle amount Amount  Payable amount
WD WHO YHD YHD

Loans from ofher orgamizations and individuals - YND
= ‘fetnam J50C Bank for

Iredustry and Trade (1 21,189,379 798 21180,379,798 1 197,000,000 1 ,197,000,000
# (Other organizations and
Irdividuals iy 11,958,338 000  11,%58,334,000

'33,147,717,798 33,147,717,798 1,197,000,000 1,197,000,000
Netails of lang-term loans are as follows:
(i1 Long-term loans from Yietnam J5SC Bank for Industry and Trade - Branch 7 He Chi Bink City

Crodit Agreement: Mo, 0310/2024-HICVRAT FHHCTI24-VIETRAVEL dated 28 /03, 2024,

Credit line; VRO 740, 000,000,000,

Purpose: Irvvastmient in the project "Consbiaction of a chaln of intemational-scale
travel services and supporting services in Hue City" ("the Project™).

Term of leans: 120 meanths.

InLeresl rate: T.0E paa

Security condition: - The mortzgage value of the Lland wse rights and all constructlans

attached to the land that exist ar will ke farmed in the future of the
Project at land plot Ho, 252, map sheet Hoo 30, Ho, 1 Hpuven Hue,
Yinh Hinh ward, Hue <ity, Thua Thien Hue Province s WHD
162,424,000, 000;

- The mortdgape value of all property tights, benefits, compensations and i
other payments that the Group may receive afler Che mortgage i
contract comes inke effect related to the Project (including but not Il

limited to property rights arising trom Ehe conbracl, rights Lo receive : '.:::
nsUrance money... ] 15 YO 180,000, 000,000, \:‘| '
As oat 3 December 2024, the balance of long-term loans from Vielnam J5C Banl for Industry and I

Trade - Branch 7 Ho Chi Mink City is VHD 21,189, 378, 798,

(i1} Long-term loans from other organizations and individuals include Che Tollowing contracts:

Lorat=term Leans fram Ms, Doan finh Khoa
Credlt Contract: Mo, 37HOTTHT-NT dated FFA095 2004,

Cradit line; . WD 9000, 000, 00K,
Term of loans: 24 months.,
Interest rate: 0. 3% pua.

Security condition:  Hone,

&5 at 31 December 2024, the total balance of long-term leans from Ms, Doan Minh Khue is YHD
8,E12,500,000. In which:

Long-term loans: WHD 7,667, 500,000,

Current portlon of long-term loans: WM 1,125, 000,000,

and
Long-term loans from Ms. Hgoyen Thi Hang Hanh
Credil Contracts Mo, I6FHDTTHT-YT dated 27092024,

Credit lina: VHD 5,000,000, 000,
Toerm ol loans: £4 manthes,
Interest rate; f.5% p.a.

Security condilion:  Mone,

A5 at 31 December 2024, the total balance of long-temm loans from Ms. Mguyen Thi Hong Hanh is
WHD 4,095, 834,000, In which:

Lone-term lnans: VD 4, 270, 8385 000,

Current portice of long-term loars: YHD 624,994, 000,

A



VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MAREETING TERAHSPORTS JOIMT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi 5au Yard, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Ciky

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Long-term loans (cantinued)

The maturty of long-term boens are as follows:

Total amount  Within 1 vear Over 1 year Owver 5 years
to 5 years
WYHD WHD WO VMO
&5 at 311272024
Long-term loans from banks  21,18%,379,798 - . I L

Lang-temmn loans from ather

arganizations and individuals 13,708, 334,000 1,744 996,000 11,958,335, 000 e TR
14,897,713,798 1,749,996,000 11,956,336,000 21,16%,379,798 :|

Az at 010172024 :'-""I

Long-terrn loans Trom banks 7, 224,000,000 & 037,000,000 1,197,000,000 -

712

2 w0
4,000,000 &,027,000,000 1,197,000, 00

Movements in long-term Leans during the year are as follows:

Asat  Lpan amount Paid in year Transfer to As at

0140172024 shork-berm loans IMM1i024

VD YD WHD WHO WHD

Loans fram Banks  1,197,000,000  21,18%,379.7%94 - [%,197,00C,000) 11,189,37%,793
Loars frem other G,
organizations A

and irdividuals fri - 14,000,003,000 (291 666,0000 (1,749,996, 000) 11,958,338 000 t

1,197,000,000 35,189,379,798  (2591,666,000) (946,996,000} 33,147,717,798 e ¥
AN
b
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - YIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Streat, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi finh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Minancial wear ended 31 December 2024

5.19.2

5.19.3

5.20
3.20.1

Detail of owmer's equity

According Lo the Enterprise Reglstration Certillcale Ho, 0300465937 the I7W Amendiment
Cortificate dated 30 Decembor 2024 issued by the Ho Chi #inh City Planning ard Investment

Departrent,

Charler capital: YD 292, 190,900,000

[Twi hundred ninety-bwo billion three hundred ninety million nine

hiurnsdred thousand dang)
Far value of shares; WD 10,000
Total reumber of shares: 29,239 090 shares
Sknck code; WTR
Sluck exchange: UPCoM,

Detail of sharebnlders’ roguity:
Shareholder

Vietravel Corporation Joint Stock

3112/2024
Humber of shares  Ratlo (%)

D1A01/2024

Humber of shares Ratlo (32}

Comipainy A, 179,181 14.2% 179,181 14.27
Hung Thinh Group Corporation 0,000,000 2052 00, DO 20,45
YinaCapital Fund Management J5C 2,657,143 ST A7, 143 3.75
Sai Gon International Travel and
Tourist Services Company Limited 12,555 1.75 512,350 1.78
M. Mguryen Junc Ky 3,203,330 10.%6 3,203,310 10.93
Other sharcholders 11,906,038 40,72 11,906,038 4,65
Treasuny stocks 530,343 1.599. 636,586  1.17
29,239,090 100.00 19,254,833 100,00

Shares

311202024 O1/01/2024
Registered number of issued shares 29,23%,090 29,194,833
Mumber of shares sold 1o the public
- Credimary shares 29235, 00 29,294 533
- Prefecrred shares -y g
Humber of repurchased shares
- crdlnary shares (550,842} (636, 585)
- Preferred shares - 3
Humber of shares in circulation
- Orainang shares 28,658,247 20,658,247
- Froforred shares = -
Par value of outstanding shares is VRO 10,000,
Off consolidated balance sheet ftems
Foreign currencies

IMMLI2024 010172024
LS Dallar {USD) i R b 239,867,068
Eurc (EUR) 10%,441.50 163,205.07
Yen [JPY) 227.951.00 229,403,000
Sirgapare Dollar (SGO} 36,584,001 36,684.01
Australlan Daollar (ALDY 104,058, 91 157,03%.82
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YIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETIMG TRAMSPORTS JOIMT 5TOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL

1790 Pasteur Streel, %o Thi Sau Ward, istrict 3, Ho Chi Minh City
MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far Lhe Tinancial vear ended 31 December 2024

5.20.2 Bad debts written ofl

6,1

6.1.1

6.1.2

fi. 2

6.3

311202024
YHD
Tin Mgoc Phal Transport - Travel - Real Estate
Joint Stock Company 114,248,000
Campacy 36,30 [The Branch of The 36
Corporaticn J5C) #0070, Q00
Ervironmental Sanitation Project Management
Board of Dong Hed City, Quang Binh Province 246,135,600

5H Mineral Joink Stock Company
Dong Hoi Cly Environmental Sanitation and
Climate Change Project Management Board

21,500, 000

18,204,850

01/01/2024
YD

259 248,350

Reazai [or bad ceht written off: Irrecoverable debt.

ADDITIOMAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWH IN THE COMSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Lales

Lales of merchandise and seryices

034 P
WHD VRO
Revenus from rendering Lourism services f,632,452 298,348 5,843,336,987,107
Revenue from sale of airline ticket 24,156,956, 718 74,527,038,212
Rev=nue from rendering othor services 78,188, 876, 048 79,103,376,060
6,734, 798,131,924 5,948,969,341,379
fales of merchandise and services with related parties
See Mote 91,2,
Cost of sales
2024 2023
YHD WHDO

Cost of merchandise and services 6,295,349,311,127

6,295,349,311,127

5,470,159, 462,574

e

5. 470,159,462,578

Financial income

2024
WD

Interest incorne 1,177, 285,537
Interest, from Loans .
Foraizgn exchande galns

CLher financial income

20,569, 622,404

2013
WL

B45, 384,047
036,438,356
14,308,473,026
239,931,430

| 24,746,907,941

12,731,227,759

[ I e IR ]
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - WIETRANVEL

190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thl Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi sinh City
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

.4

6,5

.6

6.F

6.8

Financial expenses

Interest expenses
FProvision for Twestments
Foreign exchange loss
diher financial expenses

Selling expenses

Commissions expenses
Other expenses

General and administration expenses

Employees exoonses

Fixed assels depreciation expenses
Cocdwill allocation

Other cxpensss

Deher Income

Gains from disposal of fixed assets
Sale bons

Commissions received from suppliers
Other incame

(ither expenses

Tax penalty
dther expenses

2024
YHD

63,534,358,118
22,627 ,235,652

B&, 161,593,770

1023
YD

19,018,401, 241
41,448,748, 060
10,574,743, 404

£03, 700

et L

01,042, 486 405

2024 2023

YHD YHD

30,672,369, 724 28,611,465,930
19,584, 890,897 11,196,071.721
50,257,260 621 30 807,537,651
2024 FLEFK]

WHD WHD

103,049,037,370
18,397,306,215
240, 542,000
176,153, 886,183

104,181, 944, 045
17,903,604, 288
240,542, 000
149,124,814, 615

297 840,771,76E

271,530,909,552

204
WD

227,039,231
20, 000,000,000

3,187 597,449
10,236,308, 226

~ 33,651,024,506

2024
WHD

3,324,766,071
916,616,605
4,241,382 676

1023
WHI

430,454,544
5,000,000, 000
2,860,052,800
3,006, 201,972

13,316,709,316

—r

2025
WD

912,420,541
1,737,704,525
2 650,125,566

—_—
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YVIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL

190 Pasteur Strest, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial vear erded 31 December 2024

.9
6.9.1

69,2

6. 10

Earnings per share

Baesic earnings per share

MHet profit after tax

Minus: Setting up bonus and welfare fund
Frafit used to calculate earnings per share
Weighted average number of  ordinary
circulating durlng the year

Earnings por share {YHD per share)

chares

2024
YHD

36,097,738,208

2023
YHD

RO, 700, 147,340
(1,035,000, 000)

16,057,736, 208

79,715,147,340

Qrdinary shares circulaking on average durleg the year is caloulated as follows:

Ordinary shares cinculating al the beginning
af the yvear

Crlinary shares {ssued in year (from 12
January 2023 to 08 Fobruary 2023)

ordinary shares circulating o average
during the year

Cther information

78,658,247 17 A6B47T
1,260 2,502

2024 2023
18,658,247 16,658,247
e 12,000,000
28,658,247 27,468,477

Mo transactions of ardinary shares or ordingry shares transaction potentially eoour from the end of
the financial year ko the date of publication of those consolidated financial statements.

Production and business costs by element

Employees costs

Fixed assels depreciation expenses
Extemial services caponses

Chher exponses

204
YHD

33,.710.861,677
18,414,442 687

&, U2, 004, 61 F, 944
218,817,416, 008

7,416,008

6,643,447,343,516

013
VHD

302,855,929, 367
17,996,456, 792
5,208,944, 614,940
161 £50, D0F, QLT

5,781,497,910,161

/AL e 1t Y o Py




WIETHAM TRAVEL ARD MARKETIMG TRAKSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - WVIETRAVEL

190 Pasteyr Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Mink City

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the financial yvear ended 31 December 2024

T,

T

7.2

f.3

ADDITIOHAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWH IN THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HMon-cash transactions

In the vear, the Growp incurred non-cash transactions as fellows:

2034 2023
WHD WHD
Cormwerting debt Into shares 168, 000, 000,000
Proceeds from borrowings
2024 1023
WD YHD
Procecds Trom borrowlngs under normal contract 1,188,434,031,18% _ 1,361,756,613,17%
1,3BE,434,031,18%  1,362,758,623,229
Repayments of borrowings
2024 023
VHD YHD
Repayments of borrowings under normal contract 2,17E,674,174,1%5 4,210,443, 416,410
2. 178,674,174,195  1,210,443,416,410

FIHAHCIAL IHSTRUMENTS

The Group has financial assets such as cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, othor
recefvahles, unlisted financial Instruments. The Group's financial labilities comprise trade
payables, loans and borrowings, other payables, The mala purpose of these financial liabilitices is
to finance the Group's operalions,

I'he Group is exposed to markel risk, credit sk and lquidity risk.

The Group has not applicd any method to prevent these risks due Lo the lack of marke? of haying
financial instruments,

The Beard of Directors reviews and agrees policies Tor managing each of these risks which are
summarized helow:

f.  Market risk
Market risk s the risk that the faic value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk include Interest rate risk, foreign
currency rsk and other price risk, such as share price risk,

47
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VIETHAM TRAVYEL AMD MARKETIHG TRAHSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
140 Fasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Hao Chi Minh Cily

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk thakt the Tair value or Tuture cash flows of a fnanclal Instrument will
Hucluate because of changes In market interest rates, Market risk for changes in interast rates of
the Grovp primarily correlates to cash and Loans of the Group.

The Group manages interest rate risk by analyzing the competitive situation in the market to
acquire beneficial inberest for company’s purposes, but still remalin within the Umits of thedr risk
rmandpenaent,

Forglen currenoy rlsk

Forelgn currency tlsk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate hecause of changes in foreign exchange rabes. The Group's exposurs to the risk of
changes in forelgn exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating activities and loans,

The Group has ot used derivatives to hedge forgign currency risks,

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk on goods andd sendces due to the purchase of gonds and services
for the Group's business activides. The Group manages commodity price risks by closely
monltorng relevant information and market condilions in crder Lo manage the timing, and at the
same time organizes bidding for high-value purchase contracts with contractors and suppliors an
the basis of a fixed unit price or a fixed pachage price.

i, Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the sk that countarparty will not mest its obligalions under a financlal instrument
or customer contrack, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities {primarlly for trade recefvables] and from its financing activities, Including
depngits with hanks and ather financial instrumeants,

Trade rocolvablos

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored, The requirement for impairmenlt i5
analyzed at each reporling date on an individual basis for major clients, The Group seeks ta
maintain strict contral over its cutstanding reccivabies and has a credit control personnel to
minimize credit risk, In the view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade
receivables relate 1o a large number of diversified customaers, there 15 no slgniflcant concentration
of credit risk,

Honk deposlts

The Group's bank balances are malnly malntained with wall-known banks in Vietnam. Credlt risk
frum balances with banks is managed by the Group®s treasury department I accordanca with the
Group's policy, The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance
sheet at each reporting dates are the carrying amounls as illustrated n Hote 5.1, The Group
evaluakes the concentration of credit risk in respect to bank drposit as law.
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAYEL
190 Pasteur Street, Vo Thi Sau Ward, Distrct 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

ffi.  Ligquidity risk

Thee Ligul dity risk is the risk that L Group will encounter difflculty in meeting financial chlidalion
due ta shortage of funds, The Group's sxposure to lquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches
of maturitics of Mnanclal assets and liabilities.

The Group monttors its Houidity risk by mainlain a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank
lnans deemed adeguale by management to finance the Group's operations and 1o mitigate the

effocts of flucteatlons In cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profite of Uhe Group's financial labilities based un

contractual undiscounted payments:

Less than 1 year  From 1 to 5 years
WHD

Js at 311202024
Aorrirwings

Trade payables
Other payahies

As at I1M1LF2003

BEZ, 415,637,919
697,529,306, 231

__ 131,670,393,323
1,706,615,337,583

Over b years

YHD ¥HD

11,9%8,338,000  21,189,379,794

1,081, 200,000

e AFLE Ao Bkl ol e S LA

13,039,538 000 21,189,379,798

Barrawings 704, 606,498,733 1,197, 000,000 -
Trade payables o999, 305,420,020 >
Other payables _ 192,876,733,973 1,056,400,000

1,41%6,836,652, 732

The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect Lo refinancing its debt and concluded 1t

to he low, Access to sources of funding is sufficlently available,

iv.  Fafr value

=ty

e
o =

Tatal
YHD

o P

915,563,355,727

&92,529, 306,331

137,751,593,321
1,740,844, 255 3B1

705,803,496,733 __
594,155, 420,026 :ﬂ,@
191,933 133,573~

o Pt Bk e daida ]

- 1,499,092,052,732 Y& p

""'I'H
rn‘.i i
T Wa,

-
e
Sl

Sot out below is ¢ comparison by class of the carrying amaounts and foir value of the Groop

Carrying amount Fair value
2204 31122023 I Er0Ed I1A122023
WYND WHD VHD WHD
Financlal assets
Lexan and Recetwahle
Trode raceivabies 144, 516,790,21% 302,563,857, 631 244, 516,790,219 302,543,857 85

Gther recefvobies
Assets available for sale
Shortterml fvastments
Lang-tamm Investments
Cosh and cash equivalents
Total

B39, 602, 778, 216

15,703,119, %66
3,776, 119,431
116,856, 540,614

1,380,455, 368,446

Financlal liabilities
Financial limbitltkes at amortized cost

1,007, 788,136,837 Gog B0, 7R 216

12,078, 593, 750 15,703,115,906

3,776, 419,431 3006, 119,431
_90,546,B59,554 116,856, 540,614

4,416,752,669,423 1,380,455,368 446

1,007, 788,138,837

132,078,693, 750
3,776,119,431
90,545,859, 554

1,416,752,66%9,423

F05,803 498,733
E00, 3539 ,L20,026

515,563, 155,727
£92,529,305,331

705,303,498,713
599,355, 420,026

Sarrowings 915,563,355, 717
Trade payakies G9Z, 529,306,339
Other payobles 132,751 591,331
Total 1,740,844,755,381

193,933 133,973
1,499 092,052,732

] LU St S

132,751,593,323 _ 193,933,133,973
1,740,844,255 381 1,499,092,052,732
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WIETHAM TRAYEL AMD MARKLTING TREANSPORTS JOIMT STOCK COMPANY  WICTREAVEL
190 Pastour Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh Gty

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financlal yvear ended 31 December 2024

9.1

F.1.1

Fair votue {cantinmed

The fair value of financial assets amd linancial Labilities s reflected by value thal fi'l'l&i'llﬂal/{;ﬁi
nstrument can be converled in present transaction between parlies, except for being sald or fgixﬁ-:ﬁ'
liquidated compulserily. e th
g FR
The Group used below methods and assumgplions In estimating the fair value for disclmurﬂ.‘-,«'-ﬁ'ﬂ:&

purposes only:

i

- The fafr value of cazh on hand and cash at banks, trade payables, acorued expense payahbie,
other payables 15 presented by their carryiog amount because these instruments are shorl-
Lerm.

The fair value ol trade and ather receivables is estimated based on Infoermation about debt
repayment of each customer or each obfect and the Group estimates the provision for
irrecoverable debts, The Group svaluates that fair walue of these recebvables minus the
proviston s not materially different from Lhelr camrying amaunt at year-cnd.

- The fair valug of lisked securities is determined by seferring to the closing price at the
balance sheet date,

- The fair value of unlisted securities ard investments that is not rellably redeterminad due to
lack ot a market that has high liguidity Tor Lhese securities and investrmants is presented by
CaITying amaunt.

The fair value of loans from banks that is not retiably redetermined due to lack of a market
that fias high Houidity for these loans 6 presented by carrying armount.

i

Collateral

B

The Group's collateral holdings of other parties as at 51 December 2024 is YD 1, 081,200,000 and
as at 31 December 2023 s WHD 1,006,400,000,

¥

OTHER INFORMATION .e;

: "
— g B
z - '*-":\-:-_‘ -

.
Pt~ ]

Transactions and balances with related parties

Related parties of the Group include ley management members, individuals related to key
managerment mambers and olher related parties.

Tramsactions and balances with key management members and individuals related to key
management members

Key management members include members of the Board of Management, the Board of Directors,

Individuals related to key management members include close members of the tamily of key
management members.
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AMD SMARKETING TRAMNSPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

Transactlons and balances with key management members and individuals related to key
management members (continued)

Remuneration, salory omd bongs of key menaeement members

Remuneration of the Doard of Managamenl

& M,
M.
Mir.
M=,
s,
T,
M,
M,

= ¥ @ § % %

HEuven Cunc Ky

Tran Doan The Duy

Vo Quang Lien Kha
Mainran Thi Le Huond
MHawrgsn Mauyet YWan Khanh
Yu Duc Blen

La Quoc Khank

Le Hiem Thanh

Salary, bonus and other allowances of the
Board of Managemsnt and the Board of
DMirectars

s,
s,
s,
AT,
Hr,

M.
M.
Mr.

M.

Heguyen Quoc Ky

Trar Boan The Duy

Vo Quang Lien Kha
Mgurven Thi Le Hwong
Hauyen Heuyet Yan Khash
Huynh Phan Phuong Hoang
Mauyen Ha Trung

La Quoc Khanh

La Kien Thanh

2024
WHLx

240, 100, B0
240,060,000
240,000,000
240, GO0.200
FAG D000

45,000,000

1,038,062, 585
2,281, 774,004
1,534,736,165
1,734,856,703
580,358,570
1,732,675, 963
1,792, 260,960
360,000, 160
240,000, 000

15,179, 740,270

Transactions ored Gelonces with key manogement member s

2023
WM

135, 0G0, 000
139,000,000
139,000,000
135,000,000
135,000,000
135,000,000

45,000,000

45,000,000

3,233,923 565
2,372, 118,400
2,059, 560,158
1,997,944 £15
529,204,551
1,920,474,975
1,020,141, B15
360,000,000
240, 006, DG

~ 15,928,458,079

In the year, the Group has no transactions and balances with key management members and

indiviziuals related tn key management members,

M



VIETHAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRAMSPORTS JOIMT STOCK COMPANY - YIETRAVEL

190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ha Chi finb Cily

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the financial year ended 31 December 2024

9.1.2 Transactions and balances with other related parties

Signiificont bransactlons with other reluted portles

Related parties Transactions

Wit Mam Travel and

Marketing Transpoels Co.,

Lid. ST kaes Pay=ur-behall Al

Wietravel Development
and lnvestment One
Member Company Limited Pay-on-behalf

Trip U Travel Service
Limtted Liability Compary  Pay-on-Lehalf

Vietravel Development
ard Irvestiment Joint

Ainck Company

Rendering of seryloes

Pay-on-hehalf

Yiek Ham Trawvel Alrlines
Jaint Sbock Company

Assigning e right to use
the trademark

Rendering of semvices
Purchazing services

Sale bonus received

Logn receivables

Inberest expenses

Loan Interest income
Pay-on-behall

World Transpartation
Seryices Joint Stocl
Compaly

Fendering of services
Purchasing air tickets,
services
Collect-on- hehalf
i Dther payables

3, 616,950,708
172,132,211,451
10,000,000, 000

1,086,635, 500

1024 2023
VNI WD
__ 630,105,91H
P 3,000,000
433,134,900 __6,505,000
78,625,386
1,436,599,966
401,000, 00,000 45,000,000, 000

n, 499, 261,400
249, 180,332,254
o, 00k, 00,000
23,500, 000,000
14,830,372
143,013,659

9,979, 285,482

1,367,957, 868,272

S B L

Cultural Development L
Impaort = Export Jalng
SLock Company

Eendering of services
Pierchasing services
Short-term loans
Pav-or-behall

B0 4BG, 614

Wecoms Services Trading  Rendering of services
Joint SLock Company Purchasing goods
Purchasing assets
Pay-on-behall

Y0etravel Corporation
Joint Stock Company

Bendering of services
Loan receivialles
Loan Interest income
Pay-on-behalf

168,553,091
1,8B2, 367,936
80, 00,000

B 43,450,000

11,832,843

69,382,519, 840

14,250,197, 351

1,140,008, 595,782

2,964,000
B, 366,156

138,391,945
1,141,944, 515
2,000, 000,000

100,000,000

4,605,518, 982
7,200,000
10,000, 100,000

353,424,657
16, 136,926,255

s
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VIETHAM TRAVEL ARD MARKETING TRANZPORTS JOINT STOCK COMPANY - VIETRAVEL

190 Pasteur Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, Districl 3, Flo Chi dirh Cily

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 3 December 2024

0.z

Transactions and balances with other related parties (continued)

The balances of receivebles! i payables) with obher reloted parties

Relatad narties

Trip U Trayel Service
Limited Liability
Company

“iet Marmn Travel and
market!ing Transoorts
Co., Ltd.

Transactiuns

_ her receivahles

MM 22024
WD

1,602,743,3165

01012024
WHI

1,169, &05 465

OLher receivelbies

Vietravel Development

and Inwestmeant Joint
Stock Company

Trade receivables

___Gcher receivables

Wet Ham Travel Alrlines  Trade receivahles

Jdaint Stock Company

Waorld Transportation
Sprvices Joinl Slock
Company

Achdances Lo suppiler

Other receivablies
Trade payables
Other payahles

_ 3,246,969,448

4,188,933,517

815,820,069
404,208 034 BEA

20,668,600

2,341,544, 649

4,125,000

1,526,886, 115

531,456,731,050
206,184,835, 739
143,013,699
(37,810,400)
(11,800,000, 000)

Aedvarces to supplicor

{ther receivahbles
Trade pavablos
Other payablas

Cultural Desvelopment &  Trade receivables

Impert - Export faint

Viecoms Services
Trading Joint &tock
Company

Advances Lo supplic:
other receivables

Trade receivahles

Advances Lo suppller

Qther receivables
Trade payables

Vietravel Corporation
daint Stock Company

Sepgment reporking

Receivables from
imveslinenl transfer
{Mther receivables

191,053,694, 062
561,121,355
(2,059,516,525)

138,108,089, 840
538,445,200
(3,807, F09, 002

(166,290,972

 i906,197,200) (906,192, 200]
53,948,500 146,200,555

1,195, 005,923 415,997 858
100,000,000 100,000, 000
104,626,530

: 216,532,460

43 450,000 2,200,000

a5, (186, 266, 657
31,109, 545,140

312,192,842,000
12,0531,657,114

The Group only aperates in the tourism senvices field, primarily in Yielnam,

na
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WIETHAM TRAVEL AMD MARKETIMG TRAKSPORTS JOINT 5TOCK COMPANY - VIETRAYVEL
190 Pasteur Street, Vo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Heo Chi finh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

9.3 Comparative infermation

Thwe Group restated the Tigures In Lhe consolidated Ananclal statemeants for the Anancial ended 31
December 2013, The effect of these adjustments to comparative figures in the oonsolidated
Mrancial stalements are as fallows:

Coda Figures before Restated Figures after  Hote
restated restated
irn 20003 in 2023
YHD YHD WHD

Consolidated fncome 5o temrent
Basic eannings per share Filt] 1,940 [38) I, 0oz [}

i1 Adjusting basic eamings per share cue to the impact of profit adjustments wsed to calculata
parmings por share: :
Figures before Figures after

restated In 2023 restated 1n 2023
WHD WM
Accounting profit alter corparate income tax R0, TR0, 147, 340 A0, 704, 147, 340

The adjusted increase ot accounting  profit to
detemmine  profit  attrlbutable  to o sharehalders
holdine nrdinary shares;

Minus: Remuneration of the Soard of Management {1,035, 000,000

Profit used Lo caloalate earnings per share 80,750, 147, 340 79,710,147 340
Weighted average numhber of ordinary  shares

circulating during the wear 27 468 477 27 458,477
Basic earnings per share {YHD per share} - I,940 2,902

7.4 Important events incurred in the year and events subsequent to the balance sheet date

According to the Resolution of the Anpual General Sharcholders Meeling of Lhe vear 2024 Mo, 197-
HO-DHDCD dated 11 May 2024, the General meeting of shareholders approved the plan to increase
the Parent compary’s charter capital, the number of shares expected bo be issued: 48,719,019
shares, details as follows:

Issuer; Vielnarn Travel and Marketing Transparts Joint Stock
Campany - Vistravel

Stock code: VTR

Type of shara ko be issued: ardinary shares

Par value of shares: VD 10,000 per share

The first share issugnce: olfering shares Lo exlsting shareholders
Mumber of shares reglstered for

offering: 13,650,247 shares

Ratio of exercise righls Ratia 1:1

Offering price: VD 12,000 YHD per share

Plan for wsing capital ralsed from the

affering: Paymernt banks” loans

Tolal expected mabilized capital WhD 343,898, 964,000

Expacted offering time: Guarter 1 - gquarter & of vear 2025

The second share issuance!

+ [=tuance of shares to Increase charter capital from equitys 17,194,948 shares, ratio of 15%
+ |ssuing shares under e Ermployment Stocls Ownership Plan (EAOF): 2,865,824 shares, affering
price: VMD 10,000 per share, rastrictad period of 13 manths
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VIETHAM TRAVEL AHD MAREETIHG TRANSPORTS JOIHT STOCE COMPANY - WIETHAYEL
190 Pastenr Street, Yo Thi Sau Ward, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Decermber 2024

Events subsequent to the balance sheet date (cantinued)

As at this repert's date, the Parent company has not completed the issuance of shares to increase
its charter capital as menLioned above.

Excepl for the foregoing, thers have been no significant events ocourring after the balance shaet
date which require adjustreents or disclosures to be made in Lhe consolidated Tirancial
stalements.

) B __._,_.—I-'_'_'_._._.__
Pi-[i;}-l THI HGOC GIAD HO QUOC BINH
Preparer Acting Chief Accountant Chalrman

Ha Chi Minh City, 28 March 2025
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UWERSEAE OFFICEE:

VILTUAN SHAHGHED.

PROPOSAL
Resarding Business Results for 2024 and Profit Disiribution for 2024

TO: GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETNAM
TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY -
YVIETRAVEL

- Pursiiant to the oucdited consolideted financial statements of the Company for
ihe pear 2024,

The Board of Dhirectors respeetlully submits to the General Mecting of Shareholders

[or review and approval of the 2024 business results, fund appropriation plan. and /ﬁ":

dividend distribution as follows: o ;u 2
- . e F'r-E
No. Indicator | Unit | Explanation Amount [I IEII.I L|L'H:I'-']'-T||I
1| Revenue VND ] 6,634.724,745,504 | = \B00 THIRE
2 | Profit before tax WNID | o 62,088,396, {3-1'9_
3 | Proftafter c-:rrpnratr: VND | 3 41,319,337,943
|| meome tax |
4 | Profit attributable to non-  WIND 4 0
| controlling inlerests ol
5 | Profit attributable to the VI A=31-4 41,319,337.643
parent company | il
6 | Iems increasing net profit | WVIND i | [)
| 7 | Ttems decrensing net profit |[VND | 78 | 1,500,000,000
8 | Board of Dircetors’ VNI 2 1,500,000, 000
FEmuUneration |
9 | Remaining profit for VND | 9=5+6-7 30.819.337.943
distribution .
10 | Fund appropriations VND | 16=11 + 12 1
13
11 Bonus fund VND 11 0
12 Welfare fund VNI 12 0
13 Business development WL 13 (l
investment fund

Eif - DHESCE - ALUETRALA  SIRGAPORE - THALARTY - CAREIIDLA,
5 K= AME 4N = IH& RGHYENY - HALFHIRG - WIKH - SUE - O MAKE = [UARG KA1 = GIW HHOH — BUCH K& THAT - RES TRAME ~ DR LAT - VLB TR
WG He - BRHCIEMS - 8K THCD - JO6E XUVER — RELH G = PHI GG — 8 RAL

THAYEL BIOKIHR SFACES IH HENE: DORG S04 - 0 WAl SEU MY HURG
MEMSERS OF WIETTRAVEL: SETHAIEL BIALIMES - OB DTRENHS - WETRAVIL 'KUGT — TINY: - NEEVEK | 12 - CORMER - AEL ExPRERS TRAASPIRT ZERSICE ENTTRPSIN

QREZK LEAF DEKTER WIETaM — 100 GADS GRPERATIN  VIETMYH WAKRPOMER CENTER — W ITRAVEL AUALLKY




14 | Bonus [und [or excesding | VIND 14 ¥
plans (Board &

|xecutives) :

15 Prolit [or dividend VND | 15=9-14 30 819337 043
distribution L i

16 | Dividend payout {10% NI 16 28,658,247 000

| face valug)

17 | Undistributed profit of VN | 17— 15-16 11.161,000,943
CLITENE year =

18 | Undistributed profil ol WND L& 4. 383,732,304
previous vear ]

19 | Remaining undistributed | VND [ 19=17 + 18 13, 746,843,247
predit )

Respectfully submitted for consideration by the General Meeling of Sharcholders.

Recipienis: i Foe
g Y ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
* R CHAIRMAN

7% =
fof oh F'H.[H !
I/ = o LICH VA TIER THi e
| 4 | GIAD THONG VAN TAl

NGUYEN QUOU KY
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Apud L 05 PROPOSAL

Regarding Approval of the 2024 Dividend Dizwibution Plan and 2023 Dividend
Favment Plan

TO: GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF YIETNAM
TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY -
VIETRAVEL

- Under the Law on Erderprises No, 392020000 14 pessed on June T7, 2020;

- Ungler the Low or Securifies No, 5420090014 paysed by the National Assembly
of the Socialivt Republic of Vieinam on November 20, 201Y;

- Under the Charter of Fielnom Travel and Maorketing Transport Joint Slock
Ceampany — Fictravel;

- Ulnder the audited fingrcial statements of 2024,

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Travel and Marketing Transport Joint Stock
Company — Vietravel respectlully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
for approval ol the 2024 dividend payment and 2025 dividend pavment plan as
follows:

1. 2024 Dividend Payment
Approval of the cash dividend distribution from the Company’s undistributed

prelits with the following details:

o Proposed dividend rate: 10% {each ordmary share receives VIND 1L000; In
words: One thousand dong)

e Dividend payment method: Tn cash

s  Eslimated pavment time: Ouarter [1 or Quarter ITT of 2025

2. 2025 Dividend Pavment Plan
Approval ol the plan 10 pay dividends from the 2023 profit of the Company al un
expected rate ol 5% ol par value,

Respeetfully submitied for approval by the General Meeting of Sharcholders,

NVEFRSEAE SFALES [E A - FHAMEE - BLETRECIL - EWRIGAFIRE - THAILANT - CAARIIIS

WIFTHRE BLARGHEER WA, BIC - GILHE MM - TR SC0<EN  HASEINE - WP = HUE = D8 R — TR 01— QU HHOR - B0k PR THIT - Y TRANS — LA (51 - YkE Al
IETG B = BEE CUOHE ~ C&% THO - LG G K - NECH BL - Pl 00 - 2 AL

[SANEL FOMONE DRRITFS I 12005 HOW - GO wal  P-L RY UG

WEWAESS [F VETTRAVSL: dlEingEEL GHLMES - SORLOTRARS = VWETRASTS POEST = TR - SEERERT LB - CEIMER - AKEIS EXFRIGE TRAHEPGHT WIRVET FRIETIHEE
SREEY LEAF GENTER WIFTHAK — 1TAE CibGE CPERAT 0Y — VETMARN R NETNER GIRTEN = Wi THAH ALANEATY




e 'MS; e,;;ﬂmm. ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Fod K.

- Archive: Oifice. CHATRMAN
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Mot 43-Tle PROPOSAL

A I,mri L F0IS ;
Regarding Appointment of an Independent Auditing Firm for the 2025

Financial Statement Audit

TOx: GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETNAM
TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY -
VIETRAVEL

According to Clause 7, Aricle 15 of the Charter of Viemam Travel and
Marketing Transport Joint Steck Company — Vietravel, which stipulates the
muthority and responsibilities of the General Meeting of Shareholders regarding the
appeintment of an independent audiling firm to audit the Company's annual
financial stalements,

Ihe Board of Directors of Yietnam Travel and Marketing Transpore Joint
Stock Company — Vietravel respecilully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for voting and approval ol the appointment of the independent auditing
firm for the 2023 [inancial statements of the Company as AUC Vielnam Aud]tmg
Company [.imited.

Respeerfully submitted for consideration and appointment by the General
Mecting of Shareholders.

Sincerely,
S
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Shereholoers;
rehe: Offce CHAIRMAN
.-"'-El- LhRG i
":.' [E.‘ PHEN, i 'J'
| :; u|_| I|:'|-I .F. ||E|:| ﬂ"l i
| Lok TR VAR TA
gl VIETNAM:
..l-.. i - -
NGUYEN QUOC KY
OVERIERE DFRCER 24 - FRAKEGE - AU5THALIA - SINGASINE - TEAILYHD - CAMBCOIG
SIETHRYM ESARLHEE HE PG = GIMRE HIWE =TI SE0YEN — Bl FEONE - VI - HUE - DA HAGKE - (DS SRl - 0 RHON = B NS THLET - MR TR&SS — 4 LaT -
DORG K - BRE CICHS - Gan T = EG XUNTE = RECI BIX - PREU 3000 - 24 el
TREVEL RIONIHE SRALCEE IM HEML: SOl =08 - GO Eal — P Y Iess
MEBYBERE OF MIETTAAREL: UETHEYEL BUILIE:S — WIINC OTRSHE = WETRENEL RUSST - TRIPL - BEENEKT 480 — G — A% U FIPS 5 TRAGFTRT SERVIES ENTSAPSES

GREEN LEAF CENTES WIETRAM - TOUR GAUE DFERA IR = o11 T WONPOWER CENTES - WETREVEL ACADERY
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May OF SL25 PROPOSAL

(Re: Approval af the Share Issiance Plan to Inerease Charter Capital in 26021)

To: THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETRA Y EL

Buased on:

- The Law on Enterprises No. 39/2020/0H14 was passed by the Netional Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020,

- The Law on Securities No. 54/2019/0H 4 was passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietsan on November 26, 2019

Decree No.  1332020/ND-CP dated December 1, 2020, detailing  the
implementation of certain articles of the Law on Securities,

- The Charter of Organization and Operation of Vietrave! Holdin o8,

-

In order to enhance the financial capacity and meet the capital requirements for the Company's
business operations, the Board of Directors ("BOD™) respectfully subrmits to the General Meeting
of Sharchelders ("GMOS") for approval the contents related to the Plan for Share Issuance ta
Inerease Charter Capital in 2025, with the following details:

A. Report on the implementation of the charter capital increase plan for 2024,

On May 11, 2024, the 2024 Annual General Meeting ol Sharcholders (AGM)
approved the plan for the issuance of shares to inerease charter capital (which includes (1)
offering shares to existing sharcholders, (2) 1ssuing shares to increasc capital from owners'
equity, and (3) issuing shares under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan) as per Proposal
No, 168-TToHBQT-VP signed on Mav 11, 2024

Based on this, as of now, the Board of Dircctors has been and is currently
implementing the necessary provedures to offer shares to existing sharcholders accordin g
to the plan approved by the AGM, with the expected completion in Q2 - (23 2025..

For the (2) issuance of sharcs to increase capital from owners' equily and (3)
issuance of shares under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) approved by the
2024 Annual General Meeting ol Shareholders { AGM), the Board of Directors respectfully
submits 1o the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) for consideration
and approval the suspension of these lwo issuance plans and the approval of the charter
capital increase plan for 2025, which is presented hereafter,

OWESSEAS OFFCEE: UB& - FRANCE - BUETRALIA - BINGAPOGE THEEL D - Cldsinge

VETNAN BAAMD=ES: Pl W — RRAE RARH — THA WELAER — HA-PHORE -~ WINH = HLE DA Paab — DUANE HERI ~ U8 AN ~ M Wl Telor — HHe TRARG = I LA™ - ‘sl tall
DONC Al - M DUomd - San THD - LOME MM - RACH 18 - 1 BF 000G - Caouay

TRAVEL BOKHIHE [FEFGEE R NENG:  GORds HOA - GO WAR - S Wy HLS

MEVEENS OF VIETTHAREL WETHRMEL SIRLIVES - WURLOTSAHE - WiE: RELEL IRNEET - THIMj - BEEVENT 15 - CORESN - B A EXPRESE MARSRIET SF-NICE ENVTEREH I
BREEM LEARCEMITR YETHEM - 1ILA SA0E OPERATION - WIETRAA MANPTWES CEVIEN — VIETRSEL ALAEMY



B. Plan to increase charter capital in 2025:

The 3O respectfully submils lor the GMS's approval the plan lor the issuance of
shares to increase charter capital in 2025 with the [ollowing content:
1. TIssuing Entity: Vietmam Travel and Markeling Transperts loint Stock Company —
VIETRAVEL.

2. Stock Code: VTR

3. Type of shares issued: Commeon shares

4. Par value per share: VNI 10,000/share,

5.  Current charter capital: VNI 292, 390,900,000,
6. Corrent outstanding shares: 2ZB,628.247 shares.

e

Treasury Shares: 580,843 shares.
8.  Expected charter capital after completing the offering to existing shareholders :

VMDD 578.973,370,000,

9,  Expected oulstanding shares after completing the offering to existing
shareholders: 537.216.494 shares.,
10. Kxpected number of shares to be issued: 11,463,208 shares, comprising:
- Issuance to increase charter capital from owner’s equity: 8,597,474 shares,
comresponding to an cxecution ratio of 10:1.5;
- lssuance under the Emplovee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP): 2,865,824 shares,
corresponding Lo 5% of the nutstanding shares at the issuance nme.
The (iMS authorizes the BOD to determine the actual number of shares issucd based
on the execulion ratio (for issuance from owner’s equity ) and/or the list of eligible
emplovees and standards for determining the number of shares issued under the
ESCP.
11. Total issuance value at par value: ¥ND | 14,632,980 000,
2. Issuance Pricing/Funding Source:

v Capital Inercase Tssuance: This is based on share premiums and other owners'
equity reserves hased on the latest audited financial statements as prescribed by
law,

« ESOP Share Price: VNI 10,000/ 5hare,

13, Expected Charter Capital after Issuance: VNI 693,606,350,000.

14. Purpose of Fund Usage: ['o supplement the Company's working capital.

15, Expected Issuance Timeframe: During 20235, the BOD will decide the specilic
timing aller obtaining approval from competent state authoritics.

16.  Authurization to the Board of Directors:

The GMS authorizes the RO with these duties, including:

L TN

-




Implement the issuance and distribution ol shures per the approved plan;

v Determine detailed 1ssuance conlents and amend or adjust the plan if nceessary to
rellect the Company's actual conditions or meet the competent authorities’
TEQUITCTETLS

¥ Confirm the final number of shares issued based on actual subscription resulis,

v Choose the appropriate time to conduct the issuance after securing regulatory
approvals:

* Ensure the issuance complies with foreign ownership limit regulations.

¥ lecide on the plan for repurchasing ESOP shares [rom emplovees who resign,
meluding bul net limited to the Company repurchasing shares as lreasury shares
and/or the Company’s Trade U'nion repurchasing shares as a bonus source for
emplovees and/or other forms in accordance with legal regulations.

Handle fractional shares or unaold shares;

RBalance and determine the funding sources for issuing shares [Tom the owner's
equaty;

v Deeide on the specilic use of raized funds and adjust plans flexibly to fit the
Company’s aciual linancial needs;

v Carry oul necessary procedures o amend the Company Charter 1o reflect the
mereased charter eapital.

¥ Approve the charter capital increase and complete required legal provedures Lo
update the Company®s Enterprise Registration Certificate:

v Complete procedures to register additional shares at the Vielmam Seccurilies
Depositery amd the Hanoi Stock Exchange as per applicable laws.

The Board of Dircetors respecilully submits this proposal for approval by the General
Meeting of Sharcholders.

Nincerelv,

o ON BEHALF OF THE BU&RD OF DI TORS
Recipicnts: CH WAHE Hmun
- All Shareholders; - a0c

- 'The Board of Directors CHfice
Archives,

, .i- Eiu II'Jh]'-'-h
'.;._az.x ViET KA.

GUYEN QUOC KY




-
W= Vietravel’

EETHEL VLI BOELD MANTL WAL TILTTE80 AREELE

Head Offiee: 190 astowr St Diss 3 Ho Chi Blank Ol Vielzaom
Tol: (84,281 15 GAG 989 - Foax (34 28y 538 208 148

Snler anline: mwwiravel.oomon

Eicail: infudvielravel.vom

Website: worwonstraveleom

SHARE ISSUANCE PLAN FOR CHARTER CAPITAL INCREASE
IN 2025

VIETNAM TRAVEL AN MARKETING TRANSPORTS JSC - VIETRAVEL
iAttached to Propasal Noedd - TTe/BOD-Office dared T:572023)

I INTRODUCTION TO TLHE ISSUING ORGARNIZATION

1. Summary Information about the Issuer

- Company Name b VIETNAM TRAYEL AND MARKETING
TRANSPORTS JSC - VIETRAVEL

- Abbreviated Name » VIETRAVEL
- Current Charter Capital r VWND:292,3940,.900.000
- Head Office 190 Pasteur Street. Vo Thi Sau Ward, [Mstrict 3,

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

- Telephone ¢ 0289090 B6R6
- Fax - D2 3E20 5142
- Website - hirpssdwwew vietravel comy

- Enterprise Registration Certificate: No, 0300463937, initially issued by the Ho
Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment en September 27, 2011

- Primary Business Activity: Tour Operator (Code 7912)
- Main Products/Services:

3+ Airline Ticket Agency (Code 5129)

+ Tourist Passenger Transport (Code 4932)

+ Restaurant and Mohile Catering Services (Code 3610)

OVERIEAS OFFIGES: I5é - HEAHGE - GETRALLS - BINERFORE + TEAILARN - Calbiclila
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2.  Business Performance during 2022-2024

2 (L FNIY Biltion)

L 2008 2024
e | e
Tolal Assets |,835.13 234770 2793% 2.652.46 12.98%
Owner's Equity 121.02 436,12 260, 38% 470,11 1.80% |
E“E::‘].’SHT‘T” e 1R401 | 594897 555TW| 67RO 1321%
Operating Prolit | (1495 B9.16 | -15.04% 26.94 -649.79%,
E]ther_ _l’l'-::lﬂt (.05 1067 | 207534 180 29.41 _ 175, 72%

_ Profit Beflore Tax L0500 99 53 -4,93% 5635 =43, 30%:
Profic Adter T'ax 5".]5_.?“ 10495 -23.R6M 35.:‘-‘3_ S35 84%%
E_l_’.‘:i I:E“I*:D."g,]_'mrﬂj 0,223 22 -33.374% . 1,265 3627
Book Value (WVNIVshare) 1.83.13 234770 27.93% 265246 12,98, I

Kowrce: Avdiied consolidated financlal staréments for 2023 and 2024,

[I. PLAN FOR CHARTER CAPITAL INCREASE

1. Legal Basis:

- Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/0Q1114 was passcd by the Mational Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020,

Law on Securities No, 54/2019/QH14 was passed by the National Assembly ol the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019;

Decree No. 1552020/ ND-CP guiding the implementation of the Secunities Law,

- Vietravel’s Charter of Organization and Operation.

2. The Necessity of the Charter Capital Increase

To enhance finuncial strength and meel the growing capital needs for business
operations, the Hoard of Directors ("BOD") submits for the General Meeting of
Sharcholders {"GMS")'s approval a plan to increase charter capital to approximately VD
693,61 hillion in 2025, Funds raised will be allocated flexibly to strengthen the Company”'s
working capital, depending en business conditions, and maximize capital use elhciency.

-+ e ey




Overview of the Capital Increasze Plan

lssuer

Stock Code

share T'vpe

Par Valuc

Current Charter Capital
Curstanding Shares
Treasury Shuares

Estimated Charter Capital Aller
Current Ollenng

Estimated Outstanding Shares
After Offering

Mumber of Shares to be Tszued

v Capital Increase from Ownet's
Lquity

v Employee Stock  Ownership
Program (ESCF)

Total Par Value of [ssuance

Issuance Price / Source of Capital

¥ From Cramer's Equily

¥ ESOP Tssuance Price:

Expected Post-1ssuance Charter
Capital

IMurposc of Fund Usage

Expected ssuance Period

VIETNAM TRAVEL AND MARKLTING
TRANSPORTS JSC - VIETRAVEL

VIR

Common Share

WND 10,000 share
292.390.900.000 shares
2K.658,247 sharcs
S80,843 shares

VNEY 578,973,370,000

57,316,494 shares

11.463.295 shares, divided into;

8,597,474 shares (exercise ratio: 10:1.5)

2.RBA5 R824 shares

(5% of outstanding shares al issuance).

VD 11,632,980,000

Share premium and other equity reserves
based on  the latest avdited financial
stalements,

VND 10,000/share,
VINT 693,606,330.000

To supplement working capital.

In 2025, the BOD will determine the exact
timing after oblaining  the
approvals.

NECCsEArY



Detailed Tzsnance Plan:

Issuance from Owner's Equity (13% Ratio):

Shares 1o be [ssued v B507 474 shares
The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes
the Doard of Threciors Wy determine the aciaal
number of sharey to be 1s=0ed based on the stock
issuance ratio from owners' cquity (13% of
owners' cquity).

Total Issuance Value : WD 25.974,740.000

lssuance Method o Distribution 1o existing  shareholders  as
dividends in shares.

Eligible Participants :  Shareholders wwhose names are recorded on
the closing date lor entitlement Lo receive
stock dividends and 1ssuing shares to increase
charter capital from the owner's equity,

Iunding Source : Share premium and other owner's cquity
reserves, hased on the Company’s most
recenl  sudited  [nancial  stalements  as
preseribed by law. The General Meeting of
shareholders  avthorizes the Board of
Directors to allocate and  determine the
appropriate funding  sources  following
applicable regulalions.

Righls Translcrability kLS (for every 10 cxisting shares,
sharcholders receive 1.5 new shares);
I'he right 10 receive shares from the issuance
o inerease charter capilal fom the owner's
cquity s non-transferable. owever, the
issued shares are not subject 10 any lransler

resiriclions,
Handle fractional shares ansing [rom @ Shares issued to merease charter capital from
the isauance owners' cguity will be rounded down o the

nearest whole unit, Any resulting  fractional
decimal shares (f any) will be canceled.

LR
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Fxample:

v lssuance of shares to increase charter capital from owner's equity: Sharcholder A,
holding 205 shares as of the record date, will be entitled to 30.75 new shares at an
exercisc ratio of 10:1.5, Under the rounding rules, Shareholder A will receive 30
new shares, and the fractional entitlement of 0.75 shares shall be allocated to the
Company’s Labor Union. Shareholder A holds 205 shares. With a 10:1.3 ratio, they
receive 3).75 shares, rounded to 30, The 0.75 fractional share goes o the Labor

Umon.

Compliznce with Forelgn
Crwnership Limits

Expected Time of 1ssuance

The Board of Ddirectors is authorized to
approve the plan lo ensure that the share
affering complies with applicable regulations
on [oreign ownership restrictions,

Within 2025, the speeilic issuance lming
will be determined by the Board of Directors
after oblaining approval rom the competent
state authorities.

For clarification, issuing shares to increase
charter capital from owner's equity will be
carried oul concurrently with issuing shares
under the emplovee stock ownership program
[ESOP).

4.2 Issuance Under Employec Stock (hwnership Program (ESOF)

Outstanding Shares at [ssuance

Shares 1o be Issued

Total Issnance Vahie
Issuance Price

Eligible Participants

37.316,494 shares

2 865 824 shares. representing 3% of the lotal
oulstanding shares at issuance,

The General Mecting ol Shareholders authorizes
the tpard of Directors to determine the number
ol shares 1o be 1ssued, based on the 5% issuance
ratio under the employee stock  ownershup
progtaim specified above.

WD 2R, 638,240,000
YWD 10,000/5hare

Members of the Board of Directors; members of the
Internal  Audit Committes; members ol the
Expeulive Doeard; Middle-level macapement, and
emplovees of Vietravel — Vietnam Travel and

Pl i TR Sy W



Marketing Transpors Jont Stock Company who
have signed labor contracis and have worked for
three (03] years or mare, and who are still emploved
b the Company al the time of issuanece.

- For individuals who are not subject to performance
evaluation in 2024 they must not have violaled the
law and must not be subject to any lorm of labor
disciplinary selion.

- Allocation Standard :

- For individuals whe are subject o perlirmance
evaluation in 2024 they must receive a performance
rating of "meeting expeclations” or hipher. They
must not have violated the law and must not be
subject o any form of labor disciphnary action.

I'he list of employees eligible to participate in the program. as well as the principles for
determining the number of shares 10 be issued to cach individual and the implementation
timmeline, shall he decided by the Board of Directors under the autherization of the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Tasuance Method : Direcl sale 1o eligible emplovees.

Purpose + To attract and retain key talents for continuing
support for the organization.

Transfer Restriction + The shares issued under the employee stock
option program {ESOP) in 2025 will be subject
o a transier restriction for one (U1) year lrom
the closing date of the 1ssuance,

In the event that an employee resigns dunng the
transfer restriction period, the issued shares will
be repurchased according to the HBoard of
Directors' (13012) plan at a repurchase price of
VT L0000 per share.

The General Meeting of Sharcholders authorizes
the BOD o determine the plan lor repurchasing
ESOP shares from emplovecs who resign,
including but pot limited to the Company
repurchasing shares as treasury shares and/or the
Company’s Trade Union repurchasing shares us
a bonus source for emplovees, andfor other
[orms in accordance with legal regulations.



- Purpose of Fund Ulsage The 1olal proceeds expected [rom issuing shares
under the emploves stock ownership program
(ESOP) wall be allocated 1w supplement the
Company’s  working  capital  for  business

operalions,
- Compliance with Foreign : The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes
Crwnership Limits the Board of Direclors to approve lhe plan,

ensuring that the share offering complies with
regulations on foreign ownership limits,

- Expecled Time of Issuance : Ry 20235, the specific issuance timing will he
decided by the Board of Directors alier
obtaining approval [fom the compelent stale
authorities.

For ¢latification, the isswance of shares under
the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOFP)
will be carried out concurrently with the
issuance ol shares 1o incresse charter capital
from owners' equity. Accordingly. the additional
ESOP shares issued will not bhe entitled to
recetve shares under the plan lor 1ssuing shares
from owners' equity.

5. Additional Registration and Listing

Adl shares from this issuance (hoth owner's equity issuance and ESOP ) will be additionally
registered with the Vietnam Securities Depository (VS0 and listed on the Hanol Stock
Exchanpge (HNX) as dictated 1n the regulation,

f.  Aunthorvization to the Board of Directors

The GMS authorizes the BOD to:

- Implement the issuance and distribution of shares according to the plans approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders:

- Decide on the detailed contents of the share issnance plan and‘or amend, supplement.
or adjust the issuance plan as necessary, based on the Company’s actual situation or
at the request ol competent authorities, w ensure the success of the issuance and
compliance with legal regulations on capital raising activities;

- Authorize the Board ol Direclors 1o determing the actual namber of shares to be issued
hased on the exercise ratio (issuance of shares Lo increase charter capital from owners!
equity) and the issuanee ratio under the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) as
mentioned abowve;



select an appropriate me lor the share 1ssuanee alter oblamming approval Irom the
State Seccuritics Commission of Vietnam:

Approve plans to ensure that the share issuance complies with regulations on foreign
ownership limils:

Handle Iractional shures and shores nol [ully distribuled;

[Jecide an the plan for repurchasing ESOP shares from employees who resizn,
meluding but not innted 1@ the Company repurchasing shares as treasury shares
and’or the Company’s Trade Union repurchasing shares as a bonus source for
emplovees and/or other forms in accordance with legal regulations,

Balance and determine the funding sources for the issuance of shares to increase
charter capital from owners” equity;

Decide on the specilic use of the progesds and [Qexibly adjust the allocation ol capital,
the Limung of fund disbursement, and Lhe purpose ol lund usage as necessary, 1o line
with the Company’s actual business needs:

Carry ot necessary procedures to amend and supplement the Company’s Charter to )

record the increase in charter capital resulting from the share issuance;

Approve the charter capitzl increase and perform all necessary legal procedures to
update the Loterprise Registration Certificate to reflect the total par value ol the shares
issucd after the completion of the ollenng;

Complete the necessary procedures for additional registration of the newly msued
shares with the Vietnam Securities Depository (VS and register for additional
listing on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (HINX) under applicable repulations.

He Chi Minh City, Date ... .. Month ... Year 2023
Hecipicnts: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DTRE TOR,
- Bharehalders; CHAIRNMAN OF THE BOAR
- Office Archives.
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Apul L3 JOI5 PROPOSAL

On the Remuneration and Salary of the Board of Directors for 2024 & Plan for 2025
To: The General Meeting of Sharcholders

- Tursunant ta the current Law on Enterpriscs,

- Pursvant to the current Charter of Victravel;

- Pursuant i the Internal Corporate Governance Regulations of Vietravel;
Pursuant to the Resolutions of the 2024 Anmal General Meeting of Shareholders and relevant
decisions;

- Pursuant to the Audited Financial Statoments for 2024,

The Roard of Dirceters respectiully submits to the General Meeting of Sharcholders (he report on
remuneration and salarics paid in 2024 and the plan for 2025 as {ollows:

i

1. Remuneration and Salary for the Board of DNreclors in 2024 ) : tj"ﬂ
J [/ 0l LjcA v

Planned amount: VNI 4 850,000,000 \* | GIAD THEN

: : ish ; VN 5,138 5 nh,  VIETA
Actual dishursed amount 38,062 58 L%\JIE‘.’EJ

2. Remuneration and Salary Plan for 2025 =l

2.1 The Board of Directors proposas that the maximum total ameunt for remuneration, salary, and
bonuses to be paid to the Board in 2025 shall not exceed 1% of the Company’s gross profit for

the year.

2.2 The Board of Directors shall be authorized to prepare and implement a specilic alloeation plan
hasad on the following criteria:

1. The official title and actual role of each Board member (eg., Executive Chairman,
Independent Member, Members involved m management...;

The level of invelvement in povernance, supervision, and strategic planning;

[ndividual contributions and effectiveness in kev projects and initiatives;

4, Compliance with legal regulations and principles of transparent corporate governance,

>
3

2.3 The General Meeting of Sharcholiders is kindly requested to approve and authorize the Board of
Directors to determine and allocate revnuneration and salary [or each member based un the criteria

slaled abowve,

Wi respectfully submit this Proposal to the Annual Genersl Meeling of Sharcholders for
consideration and approval regarding the remuneralivn, salary, and bonus dishursed in 2024 and the
plan for 2025,
DRESSENE QFFICEE: (EiR - FHEMIE - BUETRAL A - BIRCAPTEC = THAL ANT -« DR2EILIE
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Recipients:

Anmual General Meeting of Sharcholders
2024

- Roard of Divectors Members

- Tahe liled at the Company’s Board of
Directors Oifice

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF #it—
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od HOS PROPOSAL

Regarding Awthorization jor the Board of Divectors to approve contracts amd
transaetions with {nviders, reloted pariies, and shareholders of the Company

To: GENERAL MEETING OF SHARFHOLDERS OF VIETNAM TRAVEL
AND MARKETING TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY —
YIETRAVEL

- Under the Lane on Enferprises No. S82020/0H14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnom on June 17, 2020;

- Under the Law on Securities No. 33720090014 passed by the National
Assembiy af the Socialist Repubiic of Vietnam on November 26, 2009,

- Under the Charter of Vietnam Trove!l and Marketing Transport Joint Siock
Company — Fietrovel;

- Under the actual conditions of the Campany.

T'o facilitate the implementation of the proposed business plan and leverage
existing resources and sirengths of subsidiaries, affiliated companies, companies
within the Vietravel Group. and related persons of the Company, the Board of
Directors respectfully submits the following for the General Mecting of
sharcholders” consideration and approval:

. Approval and authorization for the Board of Directors to approve contracts
and transactions with a value 0l 35% or more or transactions leading to an aggregate
value within 12 months from the date of the frst transaction reaching or exceeding
35% ofthe total asset value as recorded in the most recent financial statement of the
Company, based on risk sssessment and ensuring corporate safety,

a) Portics to the conrracts and tranvoetions Inclnde:

= Persons related to the Company, persons related to members of the Board of
Directors, members of the Internal Audit Committee, General Director, Deputy
Gieneral Threctors, insiders, managers ol the Company, and their related persons,
(As listed in Appendix 1 attached (o this Proposal )
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Sharcholders and authorized representatives ol shareholders holding more
than 10% of the total ordinary shares of the Company and their related persons.

bl Main contenis of the coniracts and transactions include!

- Transactions involving borrowing/lending, loan guarantees, and other
sccurity measures (e.g., pledges and mortgages)

- Transactions and contracts for leasing, renting assels, or the sale and
purchase of products:

- Service provision contracts and other ¢ivil and commercial contracts:

- Agreements for extending debt repayment and other issues arising from the
transfer of shares in the companies: Vietravel Airlines (Contract No. 380-
HDHDOT-VP dated 15/12/2021 and attached appendices), Cultural Development
& Import-Export Jeint Stock Company (Cdimex) (Contract No, 398-TIED/HET-
VP dated 29/12/2021 and appendices), World Transportation Services Joint Stock
Company (Contracl No, 403-HEHDOT-VP dated 31/12/2021 and appendices),
transferred to Vietravel Corporation under the restructuring plan approved at the
Annual General Meeting on May 25, 2021,

2. The resolution adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders on this
matier shall be effective for transactions carried out in 20235 and until the 2026
Annual General Meeting ol Sharcholders,

The Board of Directors attaches io this Proposal the appendix listing related-
party transactions expected to be carried out in 2023 and until the 2026 AGM, and
is responsible for reporting on the implementation of these transactions at the next
AGM,

Respectlully submitied,

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
"HALRD FHE BOARD

- Shareholders' Meeting,
- Archive: BOD Office
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May, OF 205 ELECTION REGULATIONS
AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
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TRAKITL NENRING o

VIETNAM TRAVEL AND MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOINT 5TOCK
COMPANY - YIETRAVEL

- Under the Law on Enterprises No. 59202000H14 passed by the 14th National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnzm on June 17, 2020

- Under the Law on Securitics Ne, 534/2019/0QH14 passed by the 14th National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vigtnam on November 26, 2014,

- Under the Decree Noo 1352020ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government delailing the implementation of certain articles ol the Law on
Seeuries:

- Under the Charter on the Organization and Operation of Vietnam Travel and
Marketing Transports Joint $tock Company - Vietravel.

Ta ensure compliance with lepal regulations and the Company’s Charler: e uphold
transparcncy, demoerncy. and the lawlul rights of all Sharcholders; and to maintain order
and focus during the General Mecting ol Shareholders.

At the 2025 Annual General Meeling of Shareholders ol Vietnam Travel and
Marketing Transports Joint Stock Company - Vietravel, the Election Regulations for the
additional clection of Members of the Board of 1 Jirectors for the 20242029 term is herehy
approved as follows:

1. Qualifications of Candidates and Number of Board Members to be Elected:

Candidates nominaled or selfnominated lor the Board of Directors must mect the
requirerments slipulated by law and the Company Charter. The number af members Lo be
elected shall be in necordance with the resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders.

2. Voting Method:

Each shareholder will receive one ballot for eleeting members of the Board ol Directors.
Voting shall be conducted by secret ballot using the cumulative voting method, whereby
cach shareholder's voting rights are caleulated by mulliplying the number el shares held
by the number of positions to be elected. Sharcholders may allocate all or part ol their total
votes to one or more candidates. {See Appendix 12 Instructions for Cumulative Yoting),
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3. Ballot Distribution and Voting Procedure:

Rallots, hearing the Company's seal and issued by the Llection Committee, must specily
the number of shares represented by the shareholder, corresponding to their voting nights.
Sharcholders shall record the number of vates allocated to each sclected candidate in the
“Number ol Votes™ box, The total votes allocated must not exceed the sharcholder’s total
allowable voles,

4. Valid and Invalid Ballots

i, Falid Ballogs:

Must be the olficial printed fonm issued by the Election Conumittee and bear the
Company’s scal;
Bust not be erased, aliered, damaged, or contain any additional content beyond the
prescribed format;

- Must be signed and clearly stale the full name of the attending sharcholder;

- Must vate for equal to or [ower candidates than the number approved by the Meeting;

- Must only include candidaies on the list approved by the Meeting.

b. Imvalid Ballofs:

- Mot issued by the Election Comnmities;
Contain erasures or modificatons (if incorrectly filled. a new ballot must be requested
and the old onc vouded);

- Exceed the number of Board members approved for election;

- Contain names of individuals not on the approved candidate list;

Allocate more voles than the shareholder is entitled to.

5. Determining Elected Board Members

Board members shall ke elected based on descending order of total votes received, unl
the reguired number of positions is filled. In case multiple candidates receive the sume
number of voles lor the [nal position, a re-vote will be conducted among those candidates
or a decision shall be made by the Presiding Committes through a vole.

6. Election Committee:

The General Meeling shall elect an Election Committee responsible for conducting the
election in accordunce with these regulations, The Committes must cnsure Tansparency,
canfidentiality, and accuracy in the vote counting process. In the event ol any viclations,
the Commiliee shall bear responsibility. After counting, the Comunitiee must prepare and
announce the voting results, seal the ballots, delele all digital election data, and onfy unseal
the ballots upon a decision by the General Meeting of Sharcholders.



7. Handling Complaints:

All complaints related 1o the election results must be raised and resolved dunng the
General Meeting. Sharcholders may net contest the results at a later time. In case of
disputes concerning election procedures or resulls, the Election Comimittee shall conduct
a review and submil the matter to the General Meeting for a decision,

These Election Regulations shull be publicly announced and take immediate ellect
upon approval at the Annual General Meeting of Sharchelders on May 17, 2025, and shall
be binding upon all attending shareholders,

OON BEHALF OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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APPENDIX 1: INSTRUCTIONS FOR CUMULATIVE VOTING

(lssued together with the Election Reglations for Board Member Election at the 2025
Annuic! Ceneral Meeting of Shareholders of Viemam Travel and Markeling Transports
Joint Stock Company - Vietravel)

1. Regulativns on Cumulative Voting

e 2lection of Board members at the General Meeting shall follow the cumulative voting

methed, whereby each sharcholder may allocate their total voting righls 1o one or maore
candidales. The munber of votes allocated 1w each candidate docs not need 1o be equal,
Sharcholders may choose to allocate only part ol their total votes, and the remaiming votes
may be left unallocated.

2. Yoting Method

a) Calculating Total Voling Rights of a Shareholder (or Authorized Representative):
I'he total voting rights are determined by the following lormula:

Total Voting Rights = Number of voting shares held (or represented) = Number of
Board members to be elected.

Yidu:
Assurmne Lthat the list of candidates lor the Board of Directors has been approved by the

Giencral Meeting of Shareholders, comprising five eandidates, and the number of Board
members Lo be elected, as approved by (he Meeting, is three.

Mr. A is a shareholder holding 1,000 voling shares. Accordingly, the total number of
votes Mr. A is enlitled to cast for the clection of the Board of Dircelors is:

L1000 = 3 = 3,000 votes
b) Casling Votes:

I essence, the voting process involves allocating all or part of the shareholder’s (or
authorized representative’s) total voting rights for the Board of Directors o one or
more candidates, wherehy the number of votes allocaled 1o each candidate may vary
depending on the level of trust placed in each respeetive candidate,
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Example {continwed): Mr. A may allocate his 3,000 votes as follows:

Nao. Candidate name Votes Allocated
l Mzuyen Van B 3.000
K E - Nguyen Thi C 0
3 Nguyen Van C 0
4 Neoven Yan D | ]
5 | Nguvén Thi E i}
Total 3,004
o S =

- Mr. A may choose to use either all or only a portion of his total voting rights for
the Board of Directors {(in this example, his tolal voling rights amount w 3,000 votes)
to volo for the candidates. If he allocates more than 3,000 votes, his ballol will be
considered invalid.

- - Each ballot clearly states the total number of voting rights for the Board of =
Directors assigned to the kallot holder, This number varies on each hallot, depending
on the number of voting shares held and/or represented by the respective shareholder
or proxy, The total number of votes allocated to candidates must not exceed the

total voting rights assigned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
YVIETNAM TRAYEL ARD MARKETING TRANSPORTS JOHNT STOCK CONMPANY -
VIETRAVEL

- Purveond Lo the current Low o Errerprises;

- Purswant fo the Charrer of Urgarization and Operation of Fietmam Trove! and Moarfeting
Travisparis Joint Stock Company - Fietravel,

= Pursugnt fo the Mimtes of the Boord of Divectors” Meeting deated May 7. 2023,

HEREBY RESOLVES

Article 1. To approve the adjustment ol the 2025 business figures stated in the 2024 Performance
Beport and 2025 Business Plan No, 748/CVBC-V'1/2023 dated April 28, 2023, specifically:

- Adjusted revenue: YND 8418 billion

- Adjusted pross profit: VD 749 billion
Article 2. o approve the adjustment of the 2025 business figures stated in the Beard of Directors’
Report N, 17-BOHBOT — VP daled April 235, 2023, specitically:

- Adjusted revenus: VWD 8,418 billion (an increase of approximately 25% compared to

2024 actual results)

- Adjusted pross profit WVND 749 billion

- Adjusted profit before tax: VNI 50 billion
Article 3. The Board of Threclors shall recorumend/submit the above adjustments to the 2025
business plan for approval at the 2025 Anoual Gencral Mecting of Sharcholders.
Article 4, Implementation

- Members of the Board of Directors, the General Threclor, Depuly General Directors. and
relevant Departments of the Company shall be responsible for implementing this Resolution,

- This Resolution was adopted with 100% apprmal ﬂmu all voting members of the Board of
Directors and shall take effect from the date of signing..

Recipicnis:

- Nhareholders, ON BEHALFY OF

- Members af the Board of THE BOARD OF DIRECI'GRW
Dhiivectars, Generad Thivector's
C2ffice;

- Information Disclosure Cfficer;
- Archive: Office of the Board of
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